
           

CALENDAR FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
AND FOR SPECIAL DISTRICTS, AGENCIES, AND AUTHORITIES GOVERNED BY THE BOARD

BOARD CHAMBERS ROOM 107, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 651 PINE STREET

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA 94553-1229

JOHN GIOIA, CHAIR, 1ST DISTRICT

CANDACE ANDERSEN, VICE CHAIR, 2ND DISTRICT

MARY N. PIEPHO, 3RD DISTRICT

KAREN MITCHOFF, 4TH DISTRICT

FEDERAL D. GLOVER, 5TH DISTRICT

DAVID J. TWA, CLERK OF THE BOARD AND COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, (925) 335-1900

PERSONS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD DURING PUBLIC COMMENT OR WITH RESPECT TO

AN ITEM THAT IS ON THE AGENDA, WILL BE LIMITED TO THREE (3) MINUTES.

The Board Chair may reduce the amount of time allotted per speaker at the beginning of each item or public comment period depending on the number of speakers and the business of

the day. Your patience is appreciated.

A lunch break or closed session may be called at the discretion of the Board Chair.

Staff reports related to open session items on the agenda are also accessible on line at www.co.contra-costa.ca.us.

AGENDA

November 10, 2015

             

9:00 A.M. Convene, Call to Order and Opening Ceremonies

Inspirational Thought- “I long to accomplish a great and noble task; but it is my chief duty to

accomplish small tasks as if they were great and noble.” -- Helen Keller
 

CONSIDER CONSENT ITEMS (Items listed as C.1 through C.58 on the following agenda) –

Items are subject to removal from Consent Calendar by request of any Supervisor or on request

for discussion by a member of the public. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be

considered with the Discussion Items.
 

PRESENTATIONS (5 Minutes Each)
 

PR.1   PRESENTATION recognizing the California Association of County Veterans

Service Officers for 70 years of service to California’s veterans and their families.

(Supervisor Gioia)

 

 

PR.2   PRESENTATION on Contra Costa County participation in the October 28, 2015

White House Convening on Data Driven Justice. (Phil Kader, County Probation

Officer)

 

 

PR.3   PRESENTATION recognizing all those involved in the Disaster Medical Mutual

Aid response during the Valley Fire and aftermath from September 14, 2015

through October 5, 2015. (Patricia Frost, Emergency Medical Services Director)

 

 

http://www.co.contra-costa.ca.us


 

DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

D. 1 CONSIDER Consent Items previously removed.
 

D.2   CONTINUED hearing to consider adopting Ordinance No. 2015-18 to prohibit

commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds at all times

on Camino Diablo between Marsh Creek Road and Byron Highway, Byron area.

(No fiscal impact) (Monish Sen, Public Works Department)
 

D.3   CONTINUED hearing to consider adopting Ordinance No. 2015-17 to prohibit

commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds at all times

on Holway Drive between Camino Diablo and Byron Highway, Byron area. (No

fiscal impact) (Monish Sen, Public Works Department)
 

D.4   CONSIDER accepting report and findings of the working group convened by the

County Administrator to study deputy sheriff recruitment and retention. (David

Twa, County Administrator)
 

D.5   CONSIDER adoption of Resolution No. 2015/371 approving the Side Letter

between Contra Costa County and the Physicians’ and Dentists’ Organization of

Contra Costa adding Dentists as eligible for a differential for extra hours worked

in extended hours clinics. (David Twa, County Administrator)
 

D.6   CONSIDER accepting actuarial valuation of future annual costs of potential

changes to Retirement Benefits, changing the pension Cost Of Living Adjustment

for employees in specific units who become members of the CCCERA on or after

January 1, 2016, as provided by Buck Consultants. (Lisa Driscoll, County

Administrator's Office)
 

D. 7 PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minutes/Speaker)
 

D. 8 CONSIDER reports of Board members.
 

11:00 a.m. 2015 Veterans Day Recognition
 

Closed Session

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

1. Agency Negotiators: David Twa and Bruce Heid.

Employee Organizations: Contra Costa County Employees’ Assn., Local No. 1; Am. Fed., State,

County, & Mun. Empl., Locals 512 and 2700; Calif. Nurses Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union,

Local1021; District Attorney’s Investigators Assn.; Deputy Sheriffs Assn.; United Prof.



Firefighters, Local 1230; Physicians’ & Dentists’ Org. of Contra Costa; Western Council of

Engineers; United Chief Officers Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union United Health Care Workers

West; Contra Costa County Defenders Assn.; Probation Peace Officers Assn. of Contra Costa

County; Contra Costa County Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn.; and Prof. & Tech. Engineers,

Local 21, AFL-CIO.

2. Agency Negotiators: David Twa.

Unrepresented Employees: All unrepresented employees.

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Gov. Code, § 54956.9(d)(2): One potential case
 

ADJOURN  
 

CONSENT ITEMS

 

Road and Transportation
 

C. 1   AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to advertise for the 2016

On-Call contract(s) for various road and flood control maintenance work, for

routine maintenance and repair of existing road pavement and flood control

facilities, Countywide. (100% Local Road and Flood Control Funds)
 

C. 2   AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to advertise for the 2016

On-Call Trucking Services Contract for various road and flood control

maintenance work, for routine maintenance and repair of existing road pavement

and flood control facilities, Countywide. (100% Local Road and Flood Control

Funds)
 

C. 3   AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to advertise for the 2016

On-Call Trucking Services Contract for aggregate stockpiling and transportation

for the stockpiling and transportation of the chip seal aggregate that will be used

for the Public Works Department’s 2016 chip seal program, Countywide. (100%

Local Road Funds)
 

C. 4   ADOPT Traffic Resolution No. 2015/4434 to establish a speed limit of 25 miles

per hour on Colusa Avenue, Kensington area, as recommended by the Public

Works Director. (No fiscal impact)
 

C. 5   ADOPT Traffic Resolution No. 2015/4435 to prohibit parking at all times on a

portion of the north side of Pacheco Boulevard, as recommended by the Public

Works Director, Martinez area. (No fiscal impact)
 

C. 6   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/428 ratifying the prior decision of the Public Works



C. 6   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/428 ratifying the prior decision of the Public Works

Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of the Buskirk Avenue northbound

off-ramp at Oak Road, on October 30, 2015, from 9:00 a.m. through 3:00 p.m., for

the purpose of completing final paving for an emergency water main repair,

Walnut Creek area. (No fiscal impact)
 

C. 7   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/419 approving and authorizing the Public Works

Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of Jackson Way and the north bound

lanes of Danville Boulevard between Orchard Lane and Jackson Way, on

November 22, 2015, from 4:30 p.m. through 6:30 p.m., for the purpose of the

Annual Alamo Tree Lighting Ceremony, Alamo area. (No fiscal impact)
 

C. 8   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/427 approving and authorizing the Public Works

Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of Pomona Street between

Alexander Street and Rolph Avenue, on November 11, 2015 from 9:30 a.m.

through 11:30 a.m., for the purpose of a marching band parade in honor of

Veteran's Day, Crockett area. (No fiscal impact)
 

Engineering Services

 

C. 9   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/423 accepting completion of improvements for

minor subdivision MS04-00012, for a project developed by Oscar A. Salazar and

Oscar W. A. Dias, as recommended by the Public Works Director, Bay Point area.

(100% Developer Fees)
 

Special Districts & County Airports

 

C. 10   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a

month-to-month hangar rental agreement with Bright Apps, LLC for a shade

hangar at Buchanan Field Airport effective October 11, 2015 in the monthly

amount of $177.07, Pacheco area. (100% Airport Enterprise Fund)
 

C. 11   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, or designee to execute, on

behalf of the Contra Costa County Flood Control & Water Conservation District,

a Right of Way Contract with Hall & Loads, Inc., to acquire various easement

rights, in the amount of $70,000, for the West Antioch Creek Channel

Improvements Project, Antioch area. (100% Drainage Area 55 funds)
 

C. 12   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chair, Board of Supervisors, as Chair of the

governing body of the Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water

Conservation District, to execute a Grant of Easement conveying an easement to

Pacific Gas & Electric Company, and take related actions under the California

Environmental Quality Act, as recommended by the Chief Engineer. (100%

Applicant Fees) 



 

C. 13   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, Contra Costa County Flood

Control and Water Conservation District, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment, with Environmental Science Associates, to increase the payment limit

by $35,000 to a new payment limit of $590,042, and add planning and project

development services for the Lower Walnut Creek Restoration Project, with no

change to the original term, Martinez area. (100% Flood Control District Zone 3B

Funds)
 

C. 14   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller or designee to issue, on

behalf of the Public Works Director, a payment in the amount of $1,500 from

County Service Area R-7A, made payable to the Community Foundation of

Alamo for the holiday lights at Andrew H. Young Park, Alamo area. (100%

County Service Area R-7A Funds)
 

Claims, Collections & Litigation

 

C. 15   DENY claims filed by Janeane Corallo, Adam Farr, Keith Lucia and Mary Sue

Lucia, on behalf of the Estate of Megan Nicole Lucia, and CSAA for Amita

Pawar. DENY late claim filed by Joanne Alice Lewis.
 

Honors & Proclamations

 

C.16   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/438 honoring Contra Costa County Veterans, as

recommended by Supervisor Gioia.
 

C.17   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/410 recognizing all those involved in the Disaster

Medical Mutual Aid response during the Valley Fire and aftermath from

September 14, 2015 through October 5, 2015, as recommended by the Health

Services Director.
 

C.18   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/429 recognizing Richard O'Connor for his dedicated

service to both the United States Marine Corps and to all those he serves and

supports through various Veterans events, as recommended by Supervisor

Andersen.
 

C. 19   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/432 recognizing Sentinels of Freedom, as

recommended by Supervisor Andersen.
 

Ordinances

 

C. 20   ADOPT Ordinance No. 2015-21 amending the County Ordinance Code to re-title



C. 20   ADOPT Ordinance No. 2015-21 amending the County Ordinance Code to re-title

the exempt classification of Assistant County Recorder-Exempt (ALB3) to

Assistant County Clerk-Recorder-Exempt (ALB3) in the Clerk-Recorder

Department. (No fiscal impact)
 

Appointments & Resignations

 

C. 21   ACCEPT the resignation of Simone Gikanga, DECLARE a vacancy in the

At-Large 5 seat on the Family and Children's Trust Committee, and DIRECT the

Clerk of the Board to post the vacancy, as recommended by the Employment and

Human Services Director.
 

C. 22   REAPPOINT Ron Tervelt, Keith Katzman, Arthur Kee, and Nina Clark to the

Advisory Council on Aging, as recommended by the Employment and Human

Services Director.
 

C. 23   RESCIND Board action of October 20, 2015 regarding the resignation of Belinda

Lucey from the District II seat of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families

Commission, as recommended by Supervisor Andersen.
 

Personnel Actions

 

C. 24   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21659 to establish the class of

Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor (represented); and reclassify one Lead

Materials Technician (represented) position and its incumbent to Recycle and

Surplus Center Supervisor (represented) in the Public Works Department. (100%

Third Party revenues)
 

C. 25   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21754 to add one Social Service

Program Analyst (represented) position in the Employment and Human Services

Department. (45% Federal, 45% State, 10% County)
 

C. 26   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21755 to add one Social Services

Program Analyst (represented) position in the Employment and Human Services

Department. (45% Federal, 45% State, 10% County)
 

C. 27   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21764 to cancel one part time

(20/40) Library Assistant-Journey Level (represented) position and increase the

hours of one Library Assistant-Journey Level (represented) position from part time

(20/40) to full time in the Library Department. (Cost savings)
 

C. 28   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21767 to establish the classification



C. 28   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21767 to establish the classification

of Probation Chief of Administrative Services (unrepresented) and reclassify one

Administration Services Officer (unrepresented) position and its incumbent in the

Probation Department. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 29   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21780 to add one Administrative

Aide position, two Senior Health Education Specialist positions, three Health

Education Specialist positions, and one Public Health Program Specialist II

position in the Health Services Department. (All represented) (100% Teen

Pregnancy Prevention Program grant funds)
 

Leases 
 

C. 30   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a lease amendment with Sand Creek Business Associates I, LLC, for 4,046 square

feet of additional medical and office space for the Brentwood Health Clinic

located at 171 Sand Creek Road, Units A through G, Brentwood, at an initial

monthly rental of $20,258 for a term of ten years, as requested by the Health

Services Department. (100% Health Services – Enterprise Fund 1)
 

Grants & Contracts
 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreements between the County and the

following agencies for receipt of fund and/or services:

 

C. 31   APPROVE clarification of Board action of August 18, 2015 (C.55), which

authorized a contract amendment with the Department of Health Care Services, to

reflect the correct payment increase of $1,411,253, with no change in the original

term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. (No County match)
 

C. 32   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Clerk-Recorder, or designee, to execute

a contract amendment with the California Secretary of State to extend the term

from December 31, 2015 through March 31, 2016 with no change in the original

payment limit to the County of $566,000, for funding of equipment, software, and

other costs related to State and federal voting requirements under the Help

America Vote Act. (100% Federal funds, no County match)
 

C. 33   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the Antioch Unified School District, to pay the County an

amount not to exceed $5,600, for Public Health Clinic Services Scoliosis

Screening Project for the District's 7th and 8th grade students, for the period

September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016. (No County match)
 

C. 34   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to



C. 34   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development, to receive McKinney-Vento funding, payable to the County in an

amount not to exceed $132,682, for the County’s Continuum of Care Project, for

the period January 1 through December 31, 2016. (25% County match)
 

C. 35   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development to receive McKinney-Vento funding, payable to the County in an

amount not to exceed $296,528, for the County’s Homeless Destination Home

Program, for the period December 1, 2015 through November 30, 2016. (25%

County match)
 

C. 36   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with the Catholic Council for the

Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of Stockton for the County to provide food

services to the childcare program at El Concilio Preschool with no change to the

payment limit of $28,000 and to extend the term through December 31, 2015. (No

County match)
 

C. 37   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a

contract with the Contra Costa County Housing Authority, including mutual

indemnification, to pay the County an amount not to exceed $488,000 to provide

law enforcement services at public housing developments for the period July 1,

2015 through June 30, 2016. (100% Contra Costa County Housing Authority

funding)
 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreement between the County and the

following parties as noted for the purchase of equipment and/or services:

 

C. 38   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the Pittsburg Unified School District in an amount not to

exceed $125,000 to provide Teenage Pregnancy Project services to students, for

the period September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2020. (100% Federal

Department of Health and Human Services)
 

C. 39   AWARD and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

Job Order Contracts 001, 002, and 003, respectively, with Sea Pac Engineering,

Inc., John F. Otto, Inc., and Mark Scott Construction, Inc., in the amount of

$2,000,000 each, for a term of one year each, for repair, remodeling, and other

repetitive work to be performed pursuant to the Job Order Contract Construction

Task Catalog. (100% Facilities Lifecycle Improvement Program Funds)
 

C. 40   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on



C. 40   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on

behalf of the Public Works Director, a purchase order with Enterprise Rent-A-Car

in an amount not to exceed $200,000 for car and light truck rentals, for the period

November 1, 2015 through October 31, 2016, Countywide. (100% Department

User Fees)
 

C. 41   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

amendments to the Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) Product and

Services Agreement and Proposal Number 2, to extend the term through July 15,

2017 for the replacement of high pressure sodium vapor lights with light emitting

diode street lights on all County-owned street lights, with no change to the original

payment limit of $450,000, Countywide. (100% County Service Area L-100

Funds)
 

C. 42   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a

contract with Moose Boats, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $246,530 for repairs

to a Moose Boat Patrol Vessel, Countywide. (100% 2014 Port Security Grant

Program Funds)
 

C. 43   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Assistant Director of Human Resources, or

designee, to execute a contract, including amended indemnification language, with

Benefit Coordinators Corporation in an amount not to exceed $75,000 to assist the

County in complying with the reporting and eligibility requirements of the

Affordable Care Act for the period September 1, 2015 through September 2, 2016.

(100% Departmental Charges)
 

C. 44   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with William E. Berlingieri, M.D., in an amount not to exceed

$313,600 to provide outpatient psychiatric services to adult clients in West

County, for the period January 1 through December 31, 2016. (100% Mental

Health Realignment)
 

C. 45   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with Staff Care, Inc., effective November 1, 2015,

to increase the payment limit by $172,000 to a new payment limit of $1,472,000 to

provide additional hours of locum tenens temporary physician services at Contra

Costa Regional Medical and Health Centers, with no change in the original term of

January 1 through December 31, 2015. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 46   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Contra Costa Interfaith Transitional Housing, Inc., in an

amount not to exceed $146,000 to provide community-based mental health

services for seriously disturbed youth for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30,

2016, with a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016 in an

amount not to exceed $73,000. (50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% Mental

Health Realignment)
 



C. 47   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Health Services Director, a purchase order with Abbott Laboratories, Inc., in the

amount of $120,000 for reagents and supplies needed for the IStat Handheld

Analyzer for the Contra Costa Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the

period September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2018. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 48   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Rubicon Programs, Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$1,345,200 to provide comprehensive case management services to adults

suffering from severe mental illness, for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30,

2016. (48% Federal Medi-Cal; 52% Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 49   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Louro Consulting Services, Inc., in an amount not to

exceed $163,000 to provide consulting services to the Contra Costa Health Plan,

for the period January 1 through December 31, 2016. (100% Health Plan

Enterprise II Funds)
 

C. 50   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Nurse- Family Partnership in an amount not to exceed

$100,000 to provide home visits for first-time mothers in Contra Costa County, for

the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2019. (21% State Funds and 79% County

Funds)
 

C. 51   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the West Contra Costa Unified School District in an

amount not to exceed $562,000 to provide wraparound services to severely

emotionally disturbed children for the period September 1, 2015 through June 30,

2016, with a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016 in an

amount not to exceed $281,000. (49% Federal Financial Participation, 50% Mental

Health Realignment and 1% West Contra Costa Unified School District)
 

C. 52   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with BHC Sierra Vista Hospital, Inc., including mutual

indemnification, in an amount not to exceed $250,000 to provide inpatient

psychiatric hospital services to residents of Contra Costa County, aged eighteen

and older, as referred and authorized by the County, for the period July 1, 2015

through June 30, 2016. (100% Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 53   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with La Clinica De La Raza, Inc. in an amount not to exceed

$403,200, to provide primary care medical services for the Contra Costa CARES

Program, for the period November 1, 2015 through April 30, 2017. (50% County

Funds, 50% other hospital entities)
 

C. 54   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to



C. 54   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Lifelong Medical Care in an amount not to exceed

$403,200, to provide primary care medical services for the Contra Costa CARES

Program, for the period November 1, 2015 through April 30, 2017. (50% County

Funds, 50% other hospital entities)
 

C. 55   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer (Department of

Information Technology), or designee, to execute a contract amendment with

Sirius Computer Solutions, Inc., including modified indemnification, to extend the

term from October 31, 2015 through October 31, 2016 and increase the payment

limit by $100,000 to a new payment limit of $250,000 for continued IBM System

Z Mainframe Operating System services as needed by the Department of

Information Technology. (100% User Fees)
 

C. 56   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer (Department of

Information and Technology), or designee, to execute a contract amendment with

CherryRoad Technologies, Inc., effective November 1, 2015, to extend the term

through December 31, 2016 and increase the payment limit by $4,334,950 to a

new payment limit of $5,684,950 to provide additional services to upgrade

County’s PeopleSoft software system. (100% General Fund; PeopleSoft Project)
 

C. 57   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on

behalf of the Chief Information Officer (Department of Information Technology),

a purchase order amendment with R-Computer to increase the payment limit by

$150,000 to a new payment limit of $370,000, for the procurement of minor

computer equipment and software. (100% User fees)
 

Other Actions
 

C. 58   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Sheriff-Coroner, a purchase order with LC Action in an amount not to exceed

$200,000 to provide general and specialized police equipment for the period

November 1, 2015 through October 31, 2016. (100% General Fund)
 

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Board meets in all its capacities pursuant to Ordinance Code Section 24-2.402, including as the

Housing Authority and the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency. Persons who wish to

address the Board should complete the form provided for that purpose and furnish a copy of any

written statement to the Clerk.

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and

distributed by the Clerk of the Board to a majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors less

than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 651 Pine Street, First

Floor, Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553, during normal business hours.

All matters listed under CONSENT ITEMS are considered by the Board to be routine and will be

enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a



member of the Board or a member of the public prior to the time the Board votes on the motion to

adopt. 

Persons who wish to speak on matters set for PUBLIC HEARINGS will be heard when the Chair

calls for comments from those persons who are in support thereof or in opposition thereto. After

persons have spoken, the hearing is closed and the matter is subject to discussion and action by the

Board. Comments on matters listed on the agenda or otherwise within the purview of the Board of

Supervisors can be submitted to the office of the Clerk of the Board via mail: Board of

Supervisors, 651 Pine Street Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553; by fax: 925-335-1913.

The County will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to

attend Board meetings who contact the Clerk of the Board at least 24 hours before the meeting, at

(925) 335-1900; TDD (925) 335-1915. An assistive listening device is available from the Clerk,

Room 106.

Copies of recordings of all or portions of a Board meeting may be purchased from the Clerk of the

Board. Please telephone the Office of the Clerk of the Board, (925) 335-1900, to make the

necessary arrangements.

Forms are available to anyone desiring to submit an inspirational thought nomination for inclusion

on the Board Agenda. Forms may be obtained at the Office of the County Administrator or Office

of the Clerk of the Board, 651 Pine Street, Martinez, California.

Subscribe to receive to the weekly Board Agenda by calling the Office of the Clerk of the Board,

(925) 335-1900 or using the County's on line subscription feature at the County’s Internet Web

Page, where agendas and supporting information may also be viewed:

www.co.contra-costa.ca.us 

STANDING COMMITTEES

The Airport Committee (Karen Mitchoff and Supervisor Mary N. Piepho) meets quarterly on the

second Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. at Director of Airports Office, 550 Sally Ride Drive,

Concord.

The Family and Human Services Committee (Supervisors Federal D. Glover and Candace

Andersen) meets on the second Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County

Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

The Finance Committee (Supervisors 

Mary N. Piepho and Federal D. Glover) meets on the first Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in

Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

The Hiring Outreach Oversight Committee (Supervisors Federal D. Glover and Karen Mitchoff)

meets on the first Thursday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration

Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

http://www.co.contra-costa.ca.us


The Internal Operations Committee (Supervisors Karen Mitchoff and John Gioia) meets on the

second Monday of the month at 2:30 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Legislation Committee (Supervisors Karen Mitchoff and Federal D. Glover) meets on the

first Thursday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Public Protection Committee (Supervisors John Gioia and Federal D. Glover) meets on the

second Monday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Transportation, Water & Infrastructure Committee (Supervisors Candace Andersen and

Mary N. Piepho) meets on the first Monday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County

Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

Airports Committee December 14,

2015

10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Family & Human Services Committee December 14,

2015 

10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Finance Committee December 7,

2015 

10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Hiring Outreach Oversight Committee December 3, 2015 1:00 p.m. See

above

Internal Operations Committee December 14,

2015 

2:30 p.m. See

above

Legislation Committee November 16,

2015

Special Meeting

10:00

a.m. 

See

above

Public Protection Committee December 14,

2015 

1:00 p.m. See

above

Transportation, Water & Infrastructure

Committee

December 7,

2015 

1:00 p.m. See

above

AGENDA DEADLINE: Thursday, 12 noon, 12 days before the Tuesday Board meetings.

Glossary of Acronyms, Abbreviations, and other Terms (in alphabetical order):

Contra Costa County has a policy of making limited use of acronyms, abbreviations, and

industry-specific language in its Board of Supervisors meetings and written materials. Following is

a list of commonly used language that may appear in oral presentations and written materials

associated with Board meetings:



AB Assembly Bill

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments

ACA Assembly Constitutional Amendment

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

AFSCME American Federation of State County and Municipal Employees

AICP American Institute of Certified Planners

AIDS Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome

ALUC Airport Land Use Commission

AOD Alcohol and Other Drugs

ARRA American Recovery & Reinvestment Act of 2009

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District

BayRICS Bay Area Regional Interoperable Communications System

BCDC Bay Conservation & Development Commission

BGO Better Government Ordinance

BOS Board of Supervisors

CALTRANS California Department of Transportation

CalWIN California Works Information Network

CalWORKS California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids

CAER Community Awareness Emergency Response

CAO County Administrative Officer or Office

CCCPFD (ConFire) Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

CCHP Contra Costa Health Plan

CCTA Contra Costa Transportation Authority

CCRMC Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

CCWD Contra Costa Water District

CDBG Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act

CIO Chief Information Officer

COLA Cost of living adjustment

ConFire (CCCFPD) Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

CPA Certified Public Accountant

CPI Consumer Price Index

CSA County Service Area

CSAC California State Association of Counties

CTC California Transportation Commission

dba doing business as

DSRIP Delivery System Reform Incentive Program

EBMUD East Bay Municipal Utility District

ECCFPD East Contra Costa Fire Protection District

EIR Environmental Impact Report

EIS Environmental Impact Statement

EMCC Emergency Medical Care Committee

EMS Emergency Medical Services

EPSDT Early State Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment Program (Mental Health)

et al. et alii (and others)



FAA Federal Aviation Administration

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency

F&HS Family and Human Services Committee

First 5 First Five Children and Families Commission (Proposition 10)

FTE Full Time Equivalent

FY Fiscal Year

GHAD Geologic Hazard Abatement District

GIS Geographic Information System

HCD (State Dept of) Housing & Community Development

HHS (State Dept of ) Health and Human Services

HIPAA Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

HIV Human Immunodeficiency Syndrome

HOME Federal block grant to State and local governments designed exclusively to create

affordable housing for low-income households

HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS Program

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle

HR Human Resources

HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

IHSS In-Home Supportive Services

Inc. Incorporated

IOC Internal Operations Committee

ISO Industrial Safety Ordinance

JPA Joint (exercise of) Powers Authority or Agreement

Lamorinda Lafayette-Moraga-Orinda Area

LAFCo Local Agency Formation Commission

LLC Limited Liability Company

LLP Limited Liability Partnership

Local 1 Public Employees Union Local 1

LVN Licensed Vocational Nurse

MAC Municipal Advisory Council

MBE Minority Business Enterprise

M.D. Medical Doctor

M.F.T. Marriage and Family Therapist

MIS Management Information System

MOE Maintenance of Effort

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission

NACo National Association of Counties

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act

OB-GYN Obstetrics and Gynecology

O.D. Doctor of Optometry

OES-EOC Office of Emergency Services-Emergency Operations Center

OPEB Other Post Employment Benefits

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration

PARS Public Agencies Retirement Services

PEPRA Public Employees Pension Reform Act

Psy.D. Doctor of Psychology

RDA Redevelopment Agency



RFI Request For Information

RFP Request For Proposal

RFQ Request For Qualifications

RN Registered Nurse

SB Senate Bill

SBE Small Business Enterprise

SEIU Service Employees International Union

SUASI Super Urban Area Security Initiative

SWAT Southwest Area Transportation Committee

TRANSPAC Transportation Partnership & Cooperation (Central)

TRANSPLAN Transportation Planning Committee (East County)

TRE or TTE Trustee

TWIC Transportation, Water and Infrastructure Committee

UASI Urban Area Security Initiative

VA Department of Veterans Affairs

vs. versus (against)

WAN Wide Area Network

WBE Women Business Enterprise

WCCTAC West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

A. OPEN the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2015-18 (uncodified), receive testimony, and CLOSE the public

hearing.

B. FIND that the segment of Camino Diablo between Marsh Creek Road and Byron Highway cannot support

commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds.

C. ADOPT the attached Ordinance No. 2015-18 (uncodified), which prohibits at all times commercial vehicles with a

gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds from traveling on Camino Diablo, between its intersection with Marsh

Creek Road, and its intersection with Byron Highway.

D. DIRECT the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors to publish the ordinance in the Contra Costa Times within 15 days

after its adoption, with the names of the Supervisors voting for and against it.

E. DIRECT the Public Works Director, or designee, to post appropriate signs at the above-specified intersections of

Camino Diablo to provide notice of the restriction imposed by the ordinance. This ordinance will not be enforced

until those signs are first posted. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Monish Sen (925)

313-2187

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.2

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Prohibit commercial vehicles exceeding a max. gross weight of 14,000 pounds at all times on Camino Diablo (Road

No. 7941), Byron area. (District III)



FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact.

BACKGROUND:

After receiving several complaints of unsafe conditions and traffic hazards, the Public Works Department

Transportation Engineering Division staff, as supported by the Byron Municipal Advisory Council and County

Supervisor Piepho’s Office, conducted an engineering analysis of Camino Diablo between Marsh Creek Road and

Byron Highway. The purpose of the analysis was to determine whether the roadway is able to support commercial

vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds. Staff prepared the “Camino Diablo Truck Restriction

Study” (the “Engineer’s Report”) to document the results of the analysis. A copy of the Engineer’s Report is

attached hereto as Attachment A and incorporated herein by reference. 

As more particularly described in the Engineer’s Report, Transportation Engineering staff has determined that,

based on accepted engineering standards, the above-described section of Camino Diablo cannot support

commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds. Trucks off-tracking the paved roadway

surface damage the shoulders and create dangerous depressions that make it difficult for vehicles to return to the

paved roadway. Truck off-tracking may also result in encroaching onto the opposite direction of travel, leading to

broadside or head-on collisions. Commercial vehicles weighing more than 14,000 pounds cannot travel on

Camino Diablo without creating a traffic hazard for other vehicles, bicyclists, pedestrians, and persons that are

simultaneously traveling on the roadway.

In order to prohibit at all times commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds from using

Camino Diablo, the Public Works Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance

attached hereto as Attachment B.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds will continue to use the above-described

segment of Camino Diablo, which cannot support those vehicles.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A 

Attachment B 









































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

A. OPEN the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2015-17 (uncodified), receive testimony, and CLOSE the public

hearing.

B. FIND that the segment of Holway Drive between Camino Diablo and Byron Highway cannot support commercial

vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds. 

C. ADOPT the attached Ordinance No. 2015-17 (uncodified), which prohibits at all times commercial vehicles with a

gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds from traveling on Holway Drive, between its intersection with Camino

Diablo, and its intersection with Byron Highway.

D. DIRECT the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors to publish the ordinance in the Contra Costa Times within 15 days

after its adoption, with the names of the Supervisors voting for and against it.

E. DIRECT the Public Works Director, or designee, to post appropriate signs at the above-specified intersections of

Holway Drive to provide notice of the restriction imposed by the ordinance. This ordinance will not be enforced until

those signs are first posted.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Monish Sen (925)

313-2187

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Prohibit commercial vehicles exceeding a max. gross weight of 14,000 pounds at all times on Holway Drive (Road

No. 8845A), Byron area. (District III)



FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact.

BACKGROUND:

After receiving several complaints of unsafe conditions and traffic hazards, the Public Works Department

Transportation Engineering Division staff, as supported by the Byron Municipal Advisory Council and County

Supervisor Piepho’s Office, conducted an engineering analysis of Holway Drive between Camino Diablo and

Byron Highway. The purpose of the analysis was to determine whether the roadway is able to support commercial

vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds. Staff prepared the “Holway Drive Truck Restriction

Study” (the “Engineer’s Report”) to document the results of the analysis. A copy of the Engineer’s Report is

attached hereto as Attachment A and incorporated herein by reference. 

As more particularly described in the Engineer’s Report, Transportation Engineering staff has determined that,

based on accepted engineering standards, the above-described section of Holway Drive cannot support

commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds. Trucks off-tracking the paved roadway

surface damage the shoulders and create dangerous depressions that make it difficult for vehicles to return to the

paved roadway. Truck off-tracking may also result in encroaching onto the opposite direction of travel, leading to

broadside or head-on collisions. Commercial vehicles weighing more than 14,000 pounds cannot travel on

Holway Drive without creating a traffic hazard for other vehicles, bicyclists, pedestrians, and persons that are

simultaneously traveling on the roadway.

In order to prohibit at all times commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds from using

Holway Drive, the Public Works Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance

attached hereto as Attachment B.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Commercial vehicles with a gross weight of more than 14,000 pounds will continue to use the above-described

segment of Holway Drive, which cannot support those vehicles.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A 

Attachment B 





















RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT attached report and findings of the working group convened by the County Administrator to study deputy

sheriff recruitment and retention. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. This is an informational report. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Sheriff Recruitment & Retention Working Group was formed by the County Administrator at the request of the

Board of Supervisors to identify issues with recruitment and retention of deputy sheriffs. The Working Group met

four times beginning on June 19, at which they identified areas for study, sources of needed data, collected and

analyzed data, and developed findings. The study encompassed recruitment, retention, compensation, and impacts to

the Sheriff's Department. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Julie DiMaggio Enea,

(925) 335-1077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.4

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: FINDINGS OF THE SHERIFF RECRUITMENT & RETENTION WORKING GROUP



ATTACHMENTS

Deputy Sheriff Recruitment/Retention Workgroup Report_11/10/15 

Powerpoint_Deputy Sheriff Recruitment/Retention Workgroup Key Findings_11/10/15 



 

1 
 

 

 

 

Findings of the Study of 

Sheriff Retention‐Recruitment  

 

 
 

 

Prepared by the 

Sheriff Recruitment & Retention Working Group 
 

David Livingston, Sheriff‐Coroner 

Shawn Welch, President, Deputy Sheriff’s Association 

Julie Enea, Senior Deputy County Administrator 

Lisa Lopez, Assistant Director, Human Resources Department 

 
 

November 10, 2015 

   



 

2 
 

Introduction 

The Sheriff Recruitment & Retention Working Group was formed by the County 
Administrator at the request of the Board of Supervisors to identify issues with 
recruitment and retention of deputy sheriffs.  The Working Group met four times 
beginning on June 19, at which time we identified areas for study, sources of 
needed data, and developed preliminary and final findings. 

We measured the problem using Peoplesoft data from the last five years beginning 
May 1, 2010.  We looked for patterns or markers in the employment separations 
to uncover possible hidden or external contributing factors. 

We examined the steps in the recruitment process and the time required for each 
step, both in the Human Resources and Sheriff’s Departments.  We identified 
trends in the number of applicants and the drop‐out rate of applicants at each step 
of the recruitment process. 

We also surveyed Contra Costa cities, Bay Area counties, and BART regarding their 
recruitment and hiring practices, and compensation.  This information was 
supplemented by data gathered from internet research for each agency. 

We made comparisons of Base Salary for Recruits, Post‐Academy Deputies, and 
Deputies with five years of experience, and also compared those salaries net of the 
employee share of retirement for both new and Classic PEPRA hires to roughly 
simulate and assess the County’s competitiveness on take‐home pay. 

What follows is a report of our findings from this research, which we hope will 
better inform the County’s contract negotiations. 

The report is organized into four sections: 

I. Recruitment 
II. Retention 
III. Compensation 
IV. Departmental Impact 

 

 

 



 

3 
 

I.  RECRUITMENT 

Recruitment for Deputy Sheriff is done continuously through a partnership 
between the Office of the Sheriff and the Human Resources Department.  All job 
applications for the Sheriff's Department are handled through the Human 
Resources Department’s NeoGov Online system; however, the testing process is 
handled by the staff of the Administrative unit of the Sheriff’s department.  

The steps of the recruitment process include: 

A. Application Filing:  All applicants, including County employees, must apply on‐
line at www.cccounty.us/hr, and submit the required information as indicated 
on the job announcement by a final filing date. All applicants must clearly 
demonstrate that they meet the minimum qualifications provided on the job 
announcement.  

 
Below is a summary of recruitments conducted in the last five years, showing 
the number of recruitments per year, the total and average number of 
applications received each year, the total and average number of applications 
accepted each year, and the application acceptance rate for each year. 

 

 
 

B. Written Examination:  The written examination for Deputy Sheriff‐Recruit may 
consist of the following areas:  reading comprehension, vocabulary, and 
information processing/reasoning ability. It is scheduled on a monthly basis.  
The written examination is scored on a pass/fail basis.  A passing score allows 
the candidate to progress to the next step but the score does not otherwise 
weigh into the final ranking.   

 



 

4 
 

Candidates are allowed to submit T‐Score (overall score) results from other 
agencies that administer the POST PELLETB exam. A current T‐score (within the 
last 12 months) of 48 or above allows a candidate to bypass the County’s 
written exam and advance to the “Physical Agility” step. 

 

C. Physical Agility Requirements:  Candidates successfully completing the written 
test will immediately participate in a physical agility examination.  The physical 
agility exam comprises running 500 yards, scaling a 6‐foot wall, and dragging a 
165 lb. dummy.  The physical agility examination is scored on a pass/fail basis.  
A passing score allows the candidate to progress to the next step but the score 
does not otherwise weigh into the final ranking.   

 
The written and physical agility examinations are held at the Law Enforcement 
Training Academy in Pittsburg. 

 

D. Oral Interview:  An oral interview is then conducted by a Qualifications 
Appraisal Board in Martinez.  The Board evaluates candidates in job‐related 
areas.  Candidates must receive a rating of at least 70 from a majority of the 
Board members to be ranked on the eligible list.  (Weighted 100%).  Rank on 
the eligible list is determined by the average oral board score and any veteran’s 
credit for which individual competitors may qualify.  

 

E. List Promulgation:  Applicants’ scores are grouped into Certification Bands. 
Scores from 83 to 100 are placed in Band A; scores between 77 to 82.99 are 
placed in Band B; and scores between 70‐76.99 are placed in Band C. The 
eligible list established from a recruitment will remain in effect for six months.  

 

F. Eligible List Certified:  Candidates placed in Band A are referred to the Office of 
the Sheriff Administration Unit for further consideration.  

 

G. Background Investigation:  The Office of the Sheriff Administrative Unit refers 

Band A candidates to the background unit for processing: 

1. Candidates are emailed a Personnel History Statement packet to complete 

and return within two weeks 

2. The Personal History Statement reviewed by the Unit Sergeant, who will 

determine if candidate will move forward in the process (2‐3 weeks) 



 

5 
 

3. The candidate is invited to a preliminary interview to review information in 

Personal History Statement.  The Sergeant will provide the Captain with pros 

and cons of the candidate interview.   

4. The candidate is scheduled for a polygraph examination.  The Sergeant will 

review and advise the Captain of findings. 

5. The candidate’s background is investigated ( 2‐4 months) 

6. The Captain and Assistant Sheriff meet with the candidate  

7. The Sheriff’s Office makes a conditional offer of employment 

8. The candidate is scheduled for psychological and medical evaluation 

9. The candidate is invited to a final interview with the Captain and Assistant 

Sheriff 

10. The candidate is appointed to Recruit and scheduled to participate in the 

Basic Academy  

 

Candidates may be disqualified at any of the preceding steps. 

Appointees will be assigned to attend a Basic Academy approved by the California 
Commission of Peace Officer Standards and Training (POST).  The Basic POST 
Academy program involves 26 weeks of intensive academic instruction on law 
enforcement procedures combined with a rigorous physical fitness‐training 
segment.  Upon successful completion of the Basic POST Academy, Deputy Sheriff‐
Recruits will graduate, be sworn in as Peace Officers, and will receive a salary 
increase to the first step of the Deputy Sheriff classification ($5,789 ‐ $7,212). 

The table below shows the time required to complete each step of the recruitment 
process and the number of candidates out of 1000 who pass and fail or withdraw 
at each step of the process.  Most of this data is based on 12 recruitments that 
were conducted in FY 2014/15. 

 



 

6 
 

 

 

Findings.  The Workgroup found that: 

A. The recruitments require, on average, nearly 10 months to complete. 
 

B. The average annual number of applications received and accepted peaked in 
2012 and 2013, and has since declined:  applications received have declined 
by 40% and applications accepted, by 30%. 
 

C. The application acceptance rate (the ratio of applications accepted and 
applications received) has ranged from 16%‐28% since 2010 and is currently 
at about 20%. 
 

D. Nearly half of the applicants fail to appear for the written exam.  Of the 
applicants who submit T‐Scores in lieu of taking the written exam, about half 
do not appear for the physical agility test.  Consequently, within three 



 

7 
 

months of applying, more than 60% of the applicants withdraw from the 
recruitment. 
 

E. The recruitment success rate is estimated at 2.2%.  
 

F. Many of the applicants withdraw and reapply due to the County’s practice 
of continuous examination. 
 

II. RETENTION 

High turnover is a vicious cycle, i.e., the worse it gets, the worse it gets.  The 
repeating process of recruitment and training, along with low staffing levels, a 
shrinking array of assignments, and mandatory overtime over an extended period 
takes a toll on staff and leads to more turnover.  Halting the trend can be as 
challenging as trying to stop a downhill train, especially in an environment of fierce 
industry competition for staff.  

There are many factors that can contribute to high turnover and attrition; certainly 
compensation, the desirability of assignments, operating policies, equipment and 
technology, and employee morale are all such factors.  In Contra Costa County, 
even the daily commute can be a contributing factor. 

Summaries of deputy exit interviews cited many of these factors but the most 
common reason cited in the interviews was compensation and, in particular,  take‐
home pay.  Consequently, the Working Group focused its efforts on measuring the 
attrition problem and analyzing why it is occurring in terms of the County’s 
competitiveness on take‐home pay. 

We measured the problem two different ways:  (1) How many of the deputies and 
recruits who were hired in the last five years also separated during that same 
period, and (2) In the last five years, how many recruits and deputies were hired, 
and how many recruits and deputies separated or retired.  Our findings on these 
two measurements follow. 

Findings. 

A. Analysis of recruits and deputies who were both hired AND who separated 

(not retired) between May 1, 2010 and April 30, 2015 

 



 

8 
 

1. Since May 2010, 342 recruits and laterals were hired and of those, 110 or 

32% separated within five years of hire: 

 Recruits.  The SO hired 299 deputy sheriff recruits and, of those, lost 99 

during the same period (33%).  Of the 99 recruits that separated: 

 

o 64 had graduated from the academy to deputy.  The chart below 

shows the time, in years, from the date of promotion at which the 

separations occurred.  Most of the 64 separated 1‐2 years from 

promotion, most likely because after one year as a deputy, they 

pass probation and meet the minimum lateral transfer experience 

requirement of other agencies. 

 

 
 

o 32 of the 299 recruits separated without being promoted.  It is 

assumed that the recruits opted to voluntarily resign in lieu of 

termination to preserve their standing to work in other agencies. 

o 3 recruits were reassigned to different job classes. 

 

 Laterals.  Between 5/1/10 and 5/1/15, the SO hired 43 lateral deputy 

sheriffs and lost 11 of those during the same period (26%). 

 

B. Analysis of recruits and deputies who were hired OR who separated between 

May 1, 2010 and April 30, 2015: 

 

1. In the last five years, 342 recruits and laterals were hired (299 were 

recruits and 43 were lateral hires).  During that same period, 168 



 

9 
 

voluntarily separated (42 were recruits and 126 were post‐academy 

deputies, and another 71 deputies and 61 higher ranking sworn 

personnel retired.   

 

2. Of the 132 personnel who retired, 25 retired due to disability. 

 

 
 

3. Of the 168 who separated: 

 50 or 30% left within one year of hire 

 80  or 48% left within two years of hire 

 101 or 60% left within three years of hire 

 The remaining 40% had greater than three years longevity 

 



 

10 
 

4. Below are summaries of the ethnicity and gender of the 132 deputies 

who separated during 2012‐2015, when ethnicity and gender data was 

collected: 

 

 
 

5. Of the 168 that separated, 130 or 78% left from the Detention 

assignment, with the specific breakdown shown below.  Only two left 

from a Patrol assignment. 

   

 



 

11 
 

6. According to the Sheriff’s exit interviews, the Contra Costa agencies that 

most frequently hired our deputies are:  BART (22), Richmond PD (11), 

Antioch PD (10), Brentwood PD (7), Concord PD (9), San Ramon PD (8) 

and Pittsburg PD (6). 

 

7. The Cities of El Cerrito, Moraga and Pleasant Hill, and the Counties of 

Sonoma and Santa Clara all report recruitment and/or retention 

problems with sworn personnel during the last three years.   

 

8. The majority of recruits whose home addresses were 50+ miles away left 

to go to agencies outside of the Bay Area.   

 

9. Since we began the study in May, another 29 deputies have voluntarily 

separated from County service. 

 

III. Compensation 

The Workgroup recognized that the influence of compensation on recruitment and 

retention is different for employees who were hired prior to the enactment of 

public employees’ pension reform (PEPRA) than for new hires.  Accordingly, we 

analyzed salary and employee share of retirement for both pre‐PEPRA and post‐

PEPRA employees.  For pre‐PEPRA employees, we assumed five years longevity as 

a post‐academy deputy sheriff and adjusted the salary step accordingly.  For new 

hires, we used Step 1 of the post‐academy deputy sheriff salary range. 

   



 

12 
 

A. In comparison to Contra Costa cities, Bay Area counties and BART, Contra 

Costa County is 14%‐15% behind the market in net pay: 

 

 
*See supporting data in Exhibit 2. 

 

B. In comparison to just those Contra Costa agencies that hire most of the 

County’s deputies (Antioch, BART, Brentwood, Concord, Pittsburg, 

Richmond, and San Ramon), Contra Costa is nearly 25% behind them in 

net pay.  (See Exhibit 3) 

 

C. 19 of the 24 competing agencies in our analysis are members of CalPERS. 

 

D. For most CCC Deputies with five years of service, the difference in 

methodology between the CalPERS and CCCERA FAS (final annual salary) 

results in a 2½ ‐ 5% difference in FAS in favor of CalPERS (all other things 

being equal) due to the education incentives.  For long‐term employees, 

the CalPERS FAS may be 5%‐7½% higher than the CCCERA FAS due to 

longevity differentials. 

 

E. Non‐retirement benefits offered by competing agencies (uniform 

allowance, academy tuition, health coverage, incentive pays, special 

assignment pays, etc.) are generally commensurate with the County’s 



 

13 
 

benefits.  However, only about half of the 15 agencies that responded to 

our survey offer longevity differentials. 

 

F. Most of the 15 agencies that responded to our survey require, like the 

Sheriff’s Office, the use of in‐field computers, electronic incident 

reporting, the wearing of body armor, and the carrying of tasers; and also 

provide or require training in community policing and preparedness 

activities.   

 

G. Only a handful of the 15 agencies provide or require body cameras or 

video cameras on the patrol cars. 

 

H. Some of the competing agencies offer or have previously offered hiring 

incentives such as a signing bonus or a bank of vacation hours at the time 

of hire.  

 

 

IV. Departmental and Public Safety Impacts 

There are broad and varied impacts in both the Custody and Field Operation 

Bureaus due to high attrition at the rank of Deputy Sheriff. 

Custody Services Bureau  

 Security and safety issues to include a reduction in facility searches for all 

types of contraband to include weapons and drugs due to limited staffing 

 No second perimeter Deputy for West County on all shifts   

 Reduced free time out of cells for inmates 

 Reduced family visitation hours 

 Escort Deputies being used to fill gaps in staffing, which reduces critical 

incident response capability within the facilities 

   



 

14 
 

Field Operations Bureau 

 Possible implementation of mandatory “fair‐share” overtime to address 

deputy fatigue 

 Reduced enforcement activity – less patrol beats are filled 

 Increased response time for Priority 1 calls for service (avg. increase of ≈ 2 

minutes in 2014) 

 Increased sick leave usage (up 18%) 

 Two vacant patrol beats, one in unincorporated Concord and Walnut Creek 

and one in East County  

 No capability to do focused problem area enforcement due to the 

reassignment of the J‐ Team back to fill patrol beats. 

 Reduced Marine Patrol functions (7 deputies had to be reassigned back to 

patrol.  Now only per diem employees staff the Marine Patrol.) 

 

   



 

15 
 

Exhibit 1: 

 

 
 

 



 

16 
 

Ex
h
ib
it
 2
: 
 C
o
n
tr
a 
C
o
st
a 
C
o
u
n
ty
 

Sa
la
ry
 a
n
d
 R
e
ti
re
m
e
n
t 
C
o
m
p
ar
is
o
n
 f
o
r 
D
e
p
u
ty
 S
h
e
ri
ff
 a
n
d
 R
e
cr
u
it
 

B
ay
 A
re
a 
C
o
u
n
ti
e
s,
 C
o
n
tr
a 
C
o
st
a 
C
it
ie
s 
&
 B
A
R
T 



 

17 
 

                                :    

 

Ex
h
ib
it
 3
: 
 C
o
n
tr
a 
C
o
st
a 
C
o
u
n
ty
 

Sa
la
ry
 a
n
d
 R
e
ti
re
m
e
n
t 
C
o
m
p
ar
is
o
n
 f
o
r 
D
e
p
u
ty
 S
h
e
ri
ff
 a
n
d
 R
e
cr
u
it
 

A
ge
n
ci
e
s 
W
h
o
 H
ir
e 
O
u
r 
D
e
p
u
ti
e
s 
M
o
st
 O
ft
e
n
 



Study Findings



David Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner
Shawn Welch, President, Deputy Sheriff’s Assoc.

Julie Enea, Senior Deputy CAO
Lisa Lopez, Asst. Director of Human Resources

Convened by County Administrator

Identify issues with recruitment and retention of deputy sheriffs:

• How many deputies are leaving, at what stage, and for what reason(s)?
• What is the recruitment timeline?
• Other considerations?



 County Personnel System:  Peoplesoft

 Contra Costa County Human Resources Department

 Sheriff’s Department Administration

 CalPERS Website

 Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association

 Survey of Contra Costa Cities and Bay Area Counties and 
websites of those agencies

 FBI Database 2013



Recruitment

 Recruitments require, on average, nearly 10 months to complete.

 Application acceptance rate is approximately 20%.

 Applications have decreased 40% since the peak in 2012/13.

 Nearly half of the applicants fail to appear for the written exam.  Of those 
who submit T-scores in lieu of exam, nearly half fail to appear for the physical 
agility test.  Within 90 days, nearly 60% withdraw from the process.

 Recruitment success rate is estimated at 2.2%.  In other words, for every 
1,000 Deputy Sheriff Recruit applicants, 22 are hired.





Retention

 About 1/3 of new recruits hired since 5/1/10 have already 
separated, most within 1-2 years of graduation from the 
academy.

 About ¼ of deputies hired from other agencies (laterals) since 
5/1/10 have already separated.

 In the five year period from 5/1/10, 342 recruits/deputies were 
hired.  During the same period, 300 left County service (168 
separated plus 132 sworn personnel retired).



Retention (continued…)

Nearly 50% of the 168 who separated since 5/1/10 left within 
two years of hire.

Nearly 80% of the 168 who separated since 5/1/10 left from the 
Detention assignment.

Since we began the study in May, another 29 deputies have 
voluntarily separated from County service.



Retention (continued…)

Agency Who Most Often Hire from CCC
Number of CCC 
Deputies Hired

BART 22

Richmond 11

Antioch 10

Concord 9

San Ramon 8

Brentwood 7

Pittsburg 6



Compensation

 In comparison to Contra Costa cities, Bay Area counties and 
BART, the County is 14%-15% behind the market in net pay*.

 In comparison to just those Contra Costa agencies that hire 
most of the County’s deputies, the County is nearly 25% 
behind them in net pay*.

 19 of the 24 competing agencies are members of CalPERS, 
which has a more advantageous final annual salary 
computation than CCCERA.

*Net pay in our study was simplified to base salary minus the employee contribution to retirement.



Departmental and Public Safety Impacts
Custody Services Bureau

Security and safety issues to include a reduction in facility 
searches for all types of contraband to include weapons and drugs 
due to limited staffing

No second perimeter Deputy for West County on all shifts  

Reduced free time out of cells for inmates

Reduced family visitation hours

Escort Deputies being used to fill gaps in staffing, which reduces 
critical incident response capability within the facilities



Departmental and Public Safety Impacts
Field Operations Bureau

 Possible implementation of mandatory “fair-share” overtime to address deputy 
fatigue

 Reduced enforcement activity – less patrol beats are filled

 Increased response time for Priority 1 calls for service (avg. increase of ≈ 2 
minutes in 2014)

 Increased sick leave usage (up 18%)

 Two vacant patrol beats, one in unincorporated Concord and Walnut Creek and 
one in East County 

 No capability to do focused problem area enforcement due to the reassignment 
of the J- Team back to fill patrol beats.

 Reduced Marine Patrol functions (7 deputies had to be reassigned back to patrol.  
Now only per diem employees staff the Marine Patrol.)



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/371 approving the Side Letter between Contra Costa County and the Physician and

Dentists Organization of Contra Costa (PDOCC), adding Dentists to receive Fall Back Pay Differential as outlined in

amended Sections 6.2.D, 6.3.D, and 6.7 of the current Memorandum of Understanding (October 1, 2008 – October

31, 2016). In addition, Exhibit B of the MOU is applicable to dentists. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The clinics generate FQHC reimbursement and therefore will have a net positive fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

A physician is eligible for Fall Back differential pay for hours a physician works in excess of his/her designated

weekly or monthly position hours in an extended hours’ clinic. Extended hours clinics are clinics organized to meet

peak patient demands Monday through Saturday. Dental is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) covered

service and Health Services cannot keep up with demand as our waiting lists exceed 90 days.

The Dentists previously received Fall Back pay, but compensation was stopped effective July, 2015. As a result,

PDOCC filed grievances stating that Dentists work extended hours’ clinics in the evening and on weekends in

accordance with Section 6.2, 6.3, and 6.7 of the PDOCC MOU, and should, therefore, continue to receive the Fall

Back differential. With the approval of this side letter, two grievances filed by PDOCC, will be resolved. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Glynis Hughes, (925)

335-1784

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Harjit Nahal, Assistant Auditor-Controller,   Lisa Lopez, Assistant HR Director,   David Goldstein, Chief Medical Officer,   David MacDonald,   Glynis

Hughes, Principal Labor Relations Analyst   

D.5

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution No. 2015/371 - Physician and Dentists Organization of Contra Costa (PDOCC) Side Letter Fall Back Pay

For Dentists



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Dentists will not receive the Fall Back Pay Differential for working evening clinics and weekends; thereby

creating the potential for more grievances to be filed by PDOCC.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/371 

PDOCC - Side Letter - Fall Back Pay 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 11/10/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/371

In the Matter of: The Side Letter Agreement between the County of Contra Costa and the Physician and Dentists Organization

of Contra Costa, adding Dentists to receive Fall Back Pay as outlined in amended Sections 6.2.D, 6.3.D, and 6.7 of the current

Memorandum of Understanding and permitting Exhibit B of the MOU to be applicable to dentists.

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors acting solely in its capacity as the governing board of the County of Contra Costa

RESOLVES THAT:

Effective July 1, 2015, the attached Side Letter of Agreement dated October 21, 2015, between the County of Contra Costa and

the Physician and Dentists Organization of Contra Costa (PDOCC), be ADOPTED.

Contact:  Glynis Hughes, (925) 335-1784

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Harjit Nahal, Assistant Auditor-Controller,   Lisa Lopez, Assistant HR Director,   David Goldstein, Chief Medical Officer,   David MacDonald,   Glynis

Hughes, Principal Labor Relations Analyst   







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT actuarial valuation of future annual costs of potential changes to Retirement Benefits, changing the pension

COLA for employees in specific units of Probation Management, Fire Management, and AFSCME 512 (Safety) who

become members of the CCCERA on or after January 1, 2016, as provided by Buck Consultants, in letters dated

October 12, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

As shown in the valuations and the chart below, the result of the retirement changes described herein for employees

would result in a savings of annual pensionable pay with the first hire in year one. Future valuation results will change

with demographic and cost updates. These projections do accurately measure the direction of the proposed plan

change costs. Over time, as more employees are hired into the new PEPRA tier at a 2% COLA, the savings will

become more significant. It should be noted that the figures presented in this report represent the savings associated

only with the negotiation of a 2% COLA. The actual savings from both the new State law and the negotiated change

beginning January 1 is the savings between the new PEPRA tier with a 2% COLA and Tiers A and III with a 3%

COLA. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director, 335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes
of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Ann Elliott, Employee Benefits Manager,   Harjit S. Nahal, Assistant County Auditor   

D.6

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Government Code 7507 Compliance - Retirement Benefits - Safety Units of Probation Management, Fire

Management, and AFSCME 512



BACKGROUND:

Government Code, Section 7507 requires with regard to local legislative boards, that the future costs of changes in

retirement benefits or other post employment benefits as determined by the actuary, shall be made public at a

public meeting at least two weeks prior to the adoption of any changes in public retirement plan benefits or other

post employment benefits. The code also requires that an actuary be present to provide information as needed at

the public meeting at which the adoption of a benefit change shall be considered. 

Assembly Bill 340 (AB340), known as the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA),

took effect January 1, 2013. Generally, for employees who become miscellaneous members of the Contra Costa

County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) on or after January 1, 2013, PEPRA requires a pension

formula of 2% at age 62, 36 month final compensation averaging, and a maximum salary amount used for

pension calculation of $110,100 (plus CPI). Under PEPRA the safety retirement benefit is generally 2.7% at age

57, 36 month final compensation averaging, and a maximum salary amount used for pension calculation of

$132,000 (plus CPI). PEPRA does not address Cost of Living Adjustments (COLAs).

The County has completed all negotiations with all bargaining groups with respect to a proposed change in the

COLA to the pension benefit. The Board of Supervisors is taking no action today other than accepting the

attached reports. This report is a technical clean-up action. Both the Probation Management Unit and the

AFSCME 512 Safety Unit were tied to the Probation Peace Officers negotiation and the Fire Management Unit is

tied to the United Chief Officers Association. All three of these units have an effective date of January 1, 2016,

for the two percent cost of living adjustment to the pension benefit.

Three 7507 compliance reports from Buck Consultants, dated October 12, 2015 are attached. The following

summarizes existing provisions regarding pension COLAs:

Probation Management - Current Management Resolution, Section 44.11, Safety PEPRA Tier, "For

employees who become Safety New Members of the Contra Costa County Employees Retirement

Association (CCCERA) on or after January 1, 2013, retirement benefits are governed by the California

Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) (Chapters 296 and 297, Statutes of 2012) and

Safety Option Plan Two (2.7% @ 57) applies. To the extent that this resolution conflicts with any provision

of PEPRA, PEPRA governs." Two percent cost of living language will be included in the next Management

Resolution.

Fire Management - Current Fire Management Resolution, Section 4.13.b "For employees who become

Safety New Members of the CCCERA on or after January 1, 2016, the cost of living adjustment to the

retirement allowance will not exceed two percent (2%) per year, and the cost of living adjustment will be

banked." No change is needed to implement the 2% pension COLA for this group.

AFSCME 512 Safety - Current MOU with AFSCME, Section 28.3, Subsection C.2 "PEPRA Safety Option

Plan Two (2.7% @ 57) applies to employees who, under PEPRA, become Safety New Members of

CCCERA. Future agreement reached with the Probation Peace Officers of Contra Costa County (PPOCCC)

regarding the cost of living adjustment to the retirement allowance for PEPRA Safety Option Plan Two

Safety members retirement will apply to Safety members of AFSCME, Local 512, effective on the same

date." No change is needed to implement the 2% pension COLA for this group. The PPOCCC cost of living

adjustment becomes effective January 1, 2016.

The reports explain that this change affects only future employees; it will have no effect on the unfunded actuarial

accrued liabilities of CCCERA. The expressed savings are in annual dollar amounts and as percentages of

covered payroll for calendar years 2016, 2017 and 2018. For calendar year 2016, the start date is assumed to be

January 1, 2016. The cost impacts are shown based upon one hire per year (results are the average of one male

and one female). The savings shown are combined employee and employer normal costs. The savings are equal to

the excess of the normal cost for the PEPRA structure and a 3.00% COLA to the pension benefit over the normal

cost of a PEPRA structure and a 2.00% pension COLA.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Possible delay in the implementation of the pension COLA reduction, resulting in loss of savings.



Possible delay in the implementation of the pension COLA reduction, resulting in loss of savings.

ATTACHMENTS

7507 Report for Probation Management dated October 12, 2015 

7507 Report for Fire Management dated October 12, 2015 

7507 Report for AFSCME 512 Safety dated October 12, 2015 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

October 12, 2015 

 

Ms. Lisa Driscoll 

Finance Director 

Contra Costa County  

651 Pine Street, 10
th
 floor 

Martinez, CA  94553 

 

 

Re: Complying with California Government Code Section 7507 Regarding Changes to Pension 

Benefits of Probation Management 

 

 

Dear Ms. Driscoll: 

 

We have been asked to estimate the effect on the County’s current and future unfunded actuarial 

accrued liabilities and Annual Required Contributions resulting from a new tier of benefits in the 

structure of Assembly Bill 340 (AB340)  with a 2.00% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) effective on 

January 1, 2016 or alternatively, effective July 1, 2016. Both dates are used as potential effective 

dates for the proposed change for the members of Probation Management.  We are comparing this 

benefit structure to the AB340 structure with a 3.00% COLA which the plan currently provides.   

 

Because this change affects only future entrants, it will have no effect on the unfunded actuarial 

accrued liabilities of Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) as of the 

effective dates.  We show the cost impacts on the enclosed charts per one hire per year (results are 

averages of one male and one female).  The costs shown are combined employee and employer 

normal costs.  By going from a 3.00% COLA to a 2.00% COLA, the County will realize a savings.  The 

savings are equal to the excess of the normal cost for an AB340 structure with a 3.00% COLA over 

the normal cost of an AB340 structure with a 2.00% COLA. 

 

We have expressed the savings in annual dollar amounts and as percentages of covered payroll for 

calendar years 2016, 2017 and 2018 (2019 is also included for the July 1, 2016 effective date).  These 

results are merely illustrative and the actual impact will depend upon the actual demographic 

characteristics of the employees as well as the pattern of future hiring.  On the exhibit for the July 1, 

2016 effective date, results shown for 2016 are for the six month period July 1 through December 31. 

 

  

Buck Consultants, LLC 

353 Sacramento Street 

Suite 800 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

 

tel 415.392.0616 

fax 415.392.3991 
 



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 2 
 
 

 

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurement presented in this 

report due to such factors as:  plan experience different from that anticipated by the economic and 

demographic assumptions; increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the 

methodology used for these measurements;  and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.  Due to 

the limited scope of this report, an analysis of the potential range of such future measurements has not 

been performed. 

 

The methods and assumptions used are the same as those used in the December 31, 2014, actuarial 

valuation of CCCERA.  The demographic as well as the economic assumptions with respect to 

investment yield, salary increase and inflation set forth in the December 31, 2014 valuation have been 

based upon a review of the existing portfolio structure as well as recent and anticipated experience.  

Information on our new entrant profile is given in Note 2 of the enclosed projections. 

 

The report was prepared under the supervision of David Kershner and Stephen Drake, who are both 

Enrolled Actuaries and Members of the American Academy of Actuaries.  David Kershner is a Fellow 

of the Society of Actuaries and Stephen Drake is an Associate of the Society of Actuaries.  Both meet 

the qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions 

contained in this report.  This report has been prepared in accordance with all Applicable Actuarial 

Standards of Practice.  We are available to answer any questions on the material contained in the 

report, or to provide explanations or further details as may be appropriate.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

David J. Kershner, FSA, EA, MAAA   Stephen Drake, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Principal and Consulting Actuary   Director, Retirement Actuary 

 

  



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 3 
 
 

 

Probation Management – January 1, 2016 

 
Notes: 
1. The methods and assumptions used to determine the savings were the same as those used for the 

December 31, 2014 valuation for the Safety members. 

2. The County is assumed to hire one Safety employee into Probation Management at January 1 of each 

projection year (we have averaged results for one male and one female).  The assumed age at entry for 

new hires is 45, and the annual salary is assumed to be $111,800, $115,700, and $119,700 for the 2016, 

2017, and 2018 hires, respectively.  These assumptions were provided by the County. 

3. The maximum compensation limit for the retirement benefit is assumed to be 120% of $120,870, or 

$145,044, for 2016 and it is expected to grow 2.00% per year. 

4. In the AB340 benefit structure, the multiplier is 2.5% at 55. The multiplier increases by 0.1% for ages above 

55 to a maximum of 2.7% at 57. It decreases by 0.1% for ages below 55 to a minimum of 2.0% at 50.  

  

Calendar Year 2016 2017 2018

Valuation Pay $101,200 $208,200 $321,400

Annual Cost

AB340 with 3.00% COLA

i) $ $42,700 $87,600 $134,800

ii) % of Pay 42.2% 42.1% 41.9%

AB340 with 2.00% COLA

i) $ $38,300 $78,500 $120,800

ii) % of Pay 37.8% 37.7% 37.6%

Saving/(Cost)

i) $ $4,400 $9,100 $14,000

ii) % of Pay 4.4% 4.4% 4.3%

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

2016 2017 2018

Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Contra Costa County - AB340 with 3.00 COLA vs. AB340 with 2.00 COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year ($)

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

2016 2017 2018
Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year (% of Pay)



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 4 
 
 

 

Probation Management – July 1, 2016 

 
Notes: 
1. The methods and assumptions used to determine the savings were the same as those used for the 

December 31, 2014 valuation for the Safety members. 

2. The County is assumed to hire one Safety employee into Probation Management at July 1 of each 

projection year (we have averaged results for one male and one female).  The assumed age at entry for 

new hires is 45, and the annual salary is assumed to be $111,800, $115,700, $119,700, and $123,900 for 

the 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019 hires, respectively.  These assumptions were provided by the County. 

3. The maximum compensation limit for the retirement benefit is assumed to be 120% of $120,870, or 

$145,044, for 2016 and it is expected to grow 2.00% per year. 

4. In the AB340 benefit structure, the multiplier is 2.5% at 55. The multiplier increases by 0.1% for ages above 

55 to a maximum of 2.7% at 57. It decreases by 0.1% for ages below 55 to a minimum of 2.0% at 50.  

5. Results for 2016 are for six months only (July 1 through December 31). 

Calendar Year 2016 2017 2018 2019

Valuation Pay $50,600 $158,400 $272,300 $392,900

Annual Cost

AB340 with 3.00% COLA

i) $ $21,400 $66,700 $114,400 $165,000

ii) % of Pay 42.3% 42.1% 42.0% 42.0%

AB340 with 2.00% COLA

i) $ $19,100 $59,800 $102,500 $147,800

ii) % of Pay 37.7% 37.8% 37.6% 37.6%

Saving/(Cost)

i) $ $2,300 $6,900 $11,900 $17,200

ii) % of Pay 4.6% 4.3% 4.4% 4.4%

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

2016 2017 2018 2019

Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Contra Costa County - AB340 with 3.00 COLA vs. AB340 with 2.00 COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year ($)

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

2016 2017 2018 2019
Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year (% of Pay)



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

October 12, 2015 

 

Ms. Lisa Driscoll 

Finance Director 

Contra Costa County  

651 Pine Street, 10
th
 floor 

Martinez, CA  94553 

 

 

Re: Complying with California Government Code Section 7507 Regarding Changes to Pension 

Benefits of Fire Management 

 

 

Dear Ms. Driscoll: 

 

We have been asked to estimate the effect on the County’s current and future unfunded actuarial 

accrued liabilities and Annual Required Contributions resulting from a new tier of benefits in the 

structure of Assembly Bill 340 (AB340)  with a 2.00% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) effective on 

January 1, 2016 or alternatively, effective July 1, 2016. Both dates are used as potential effective 

dates for the proposed change for the members of Fire Management.  We are comparing this benefit 

structure to the AB340 structure with a 3.00% COLA which the plan currently provides.   

 

Because this change affects only future entrants, it will have no effect on the unfunded actuarial 

accrued liabilities of Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) as of the 

effective dates.  We show the cost impacts on the enclosed charts per one hire per year (results are 

averages of one male and one female).  The costs shown are combined employee and employer 

normal costs.  By going from a 3.00% COLA to a 2.00% COLA, the County will realize a savings.  The 

savings are equal to the excess of the normal cost for an AB340 structure with a 3.00% COLA over 

the normal cost of an AB340 structure with a 2.00% COLA. 

 

We have expressed the savings in annual dollar amounts and as percentages of covered payroll for 

calendar years 2016, 2017 and 2018 (2019 is also included for the July 1, 2016 effective date).  These 

results are merely illustrative and the actual impact will depend upon the actual demographic 

characteristics of the employees as well as the pattern of future hiring.  On the exhibit for the July 1, 

2016 effective date, results shown for 2016 are for the six month period July 1 through December 31. 

 

  

Buck Consultants, LLC 

353 Sacramento Street 

Suite 800 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

 

tel 415.392.0616 

fax 415.392.3991 
 



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 2 
 
 

 

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurement presented in this 

report due to such factors as:  plan experience different from that anticipated by the economic and 

demographic assumptions; increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the 

methodology used for these measurements;  and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.  Due to 

the limited scope of this report, an analysis of the potential range of such future measurements has not 

been performed. 

 

The methods and assumptions used are the same as those used in the December 31, 2014, actuarial 

valuation of CCCERA.  The demographic as well as the economic assumptions with respect to 

investment yield, salary increase and inflation set forth in the December 31, 2014 valuation have been 

based upon a review of the existing portfolio structure as well as recent and anticipated experience.  

Information on our new entrant profile is given in Note 2 of the enclosed projections. 

 

The report was prepared under the supervision of David Kershner and Stephen Drake, who are both 

Enrolled Actuaries and Members of the American Academy of Actuaries.  David Kershner is a Fellow 

of the Society of Actuaries and Stephen Drake is an Associate of the Society of Actuaries.  Both meet 

the qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions 

contained in this report.  This report has been prepared in accordance with all Applicable Actuarial 

Standards of Practice.  We are available to answer any questions on the material contained in the 

report, or to provide explanations or further details as may be appropriate.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

David J. Kershner, FSA, EA, MAAA   Stephen Drake, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Principal and Consulting Actuary   Director, Retirement Actuary 

 

  



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 3 
 
 

 

Fire Management – January 1, 2016 

 
Notes: 
1. The methods and assumptions used to determine the savings were the same as those used for the 

December 31, 2014 valuation for the Safety members. 

2. The County is assumed to hire one Safety employee into Fire Management at January 1 of each projection 

year (we have averaged results for one male and one female).  The assumed age at entry for new hires is 

42, and the annual salary is assumed to be $121,100, $125,300, and $129,700 for the 2016, 2017, and 2018 

hires, respectively.  These assumptions were provided by the County. 

3. The maximum compensation limit for the retirement benefit is assumed to be 120% of $120,870, or 

$145,044, for 2016 and it is expected to grow 2.00% per year. 

4. In the AB340 benefit structure, the multiplier is 2.5% at 55. The multiplier increases by 0.1% for ages above 

55 to a maximum of 2.7% at 57. It decreases by 0.1% for ages below 55 to a minimum of 2.0% at 50.  

  

Calendar Year 2016 2017 2018

Valuation Pay $109,700 $226,100 $350,000

Annual Cost

AB340 with 3.00% COLA

i) $ $38,300 $78,700 $121,500

ii) % of Pay 34.9% 34.8% 34.7%

AB340 with 2.00% COLA

i) $ $34,300 $70,400 $108,600

ii) % of Pay 31.3% 31.1% 31.0%

Saving/(Cost)

i) $ $4,000 $8,300 $12,900

ii) % of Pay 3.6% 3.7% 3.7%

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

2016 2017 2018

Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Contra Costa County - AB340 with 3.00 COLA vs. AB340 with 2.00 COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year ($)

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

2016 2017 2018
Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year (% of Pay)



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 4 
 
 

 

Fire Management – July 1, 2016 

 
Notes: 
1. The methods and assumptions used to determine the savings were the same as those used for the 

December 31, 2014 valuation for the Safety members. 

2. The County is assumed to hire one Safety employee into Fire Management at July 1 of each projection year 

(we have averaged results for one male and one female).  The assumed age at entry for new hires is 42, 

and the annual salary is assumed to be $121,100, $125,300, $129,700, and $134,200 for the 2016, 2017, 

2018, and 2019 hires, respectively.  These assumptions were provided by the County. 

3. The maximum compensation limit for the retirement benefit is assumed to be 120% of $120,870, or 

$145,044, for 2016 and it is expected to grow 2.00% per year. 

4. In the AB340 benefit structure, the multiplier is 2.5% at 55. The multiplier increases by 0.1% for ages above 

55 to a maximum of 2.7% at 57. It decreases by 0.1% for ages below 55 to a minimum of 2.0% at 50.  

5. Results for 2016 are for six months only (July 1 through December 31). 

Calendar Year 2016 2017 2018 2019

Valuation Pay $54,900 $171,900 $296,200 $428,700

Annual Cost

AB340 with 3.00% COLA

i) $ $19,200 $59,900 $103,000 $148,900

ii) % of Pay 35.0% 34.8% 34.8% 34.7%

AB340 with 2.00% COLA

i) $ $17,100 $53,600 $92,000 $133,100

ii) % of Pay 31.1% 31.2% 31.1% 31.0%

Saving/(Cost)

i) $ $2,100 $6,300 $11,000 $15,800

ii) % of Pay 3.9% 3.6% 3.7% 3.7%

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

2016 2017 2018 2019

Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Contra Costa County - AB340 with 3.00 COLA vs. AB340 with 2.00 COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year ($)

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

2016 2017 2018 2019
Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year (% of Pay)



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

October 12, 2015 

 

Ms. Lisa Driscoll 

Finance Director 

Contra Costa County  

651 Pine Street, 10
th
 floor 

Martinez, CA  94553 

 

 

Re: Complying with California Government Code Section 7507 Regarding Changes to Pension 

Benefits of AFSCME 512 Safety 

 

 

Dear Ms. Driscoll: 

 

We have been asked to estimate the effect on the County’s current and future unfunded actuarial 

accrued liabilities and Annual Required Contributions resulting from a new tier of benefits in the 

structure of Assembly Bill 340 (AB340)  with a 2.00% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) effective on 

January 1, 2016 or alternatively, effective July 1, 2016. Both dates are used as potential effective 

dates for the proposed change for the members of AFSCME 512 Safety.  We are comparing this 

benefit structure to the AB340 structure with a 3.00% COLA which the plan currently provides.   

 

Because this change affects only future entrants, it will have no effect on the unfunded actuarial 

accrued liabilities of Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) as of the 

effective dates.  We show the cost impacts on the enclosed charts per one hire per year (results are 

averages of one male and one female).  The costs shown are combined employee and employer 

normal costs.  By going from a 3.00% COLA to a 2.00% COLA, the County will realize a savings.  The 

savings are equal to the excess of the normal cost for an AB340 structure with a 3.00% COLA over 

the normal cost of an AB340 structure with a 2.00% COLA. 

 

We have expressed the savings in annual dollar amounts and as percentages of covered payroll for 

calendar years 2016, 2017 and 2018 (2019 is also included for the July 1, 2016 effective date).  These 

results are merely illustrative and the actual impact will depend upon the actual demographic 

characteristics of the employees as well as the pattern of future hiring.  On the exhibit for the July 1, 

2016 effective date, results shown for 2016 are for the six month period July 1 through December 31. 

 

  

Buck Consultants, LLC 

353 Sacramento Street 

Suite 800 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

 

tel 415.392.0616 

fax 415.392.3991 
 



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 2 
 
 

 

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurement presented in this 

report due to such factors as:  plan experience different from that anticipated by the economic and 

demographic assumptions; increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the 

methodology used for these measurements;  and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.  Due to 

the limited scope of this report, an analysis of the potential range of such future measurements has not 

been performed. 

 

The methods and assumptions used are the same as those used in the December 31, 2014, actuarial 

valuation of CCCERA.  The demographic as well as the economic assumptions with respect to 

investment yield, salary increase and inflation set forth in the December 31, 2014 valuation have been 

based upon a review of the existing portfolio structure as well as recent and anticipated experience.  

Information on our new entrant profile is given in Note 2 of the enclosed projections. 

 

The report was prepared under the supervision of David Kershner and Stephen Drake, who are both 

Enrolled Actuaries and Members of the American Academy of Actuaries.  David Kershner is a Fellow 

of the Society of Actuaries and Stephen Drake is an Associate of the Society of Actuaries.  Both meet 

the qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions 

contained in this report.  This report has been prepared in accordance with all Applicable Actuarial 

Standards of Practice.  We are available to answer any questions on the material contained in the 

report, or to provide explanations or further details as may be appropriate.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

David J. Kershner, FSA, EA, MAAA   Stephen Drake, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Principal and Consulting Actuary   Director, Retirement Actuary 

 

  



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 3 
 
 

 

AFSCME 512 Safety – January 1, 2016 

 
Notes: 
1. The methods and assumptions used to determine the savings were the same as those used for the 

December 31, 2014 valuation for the Safety members. 

2. The County is assumed to hire one Safety employee into AFSCME 512 Safety at January 1 of each 

projection year (we have averaged results for one male and one female).  The assumed age at entry for 

new hires is 56, and the annual salary is assumed to be $79,700, $82,500, and $85,400 for the 2016, 2017, 

and 2018 hires, respectively.  These assumptions were provided by the County. 

3. The maximum compensation limit for the retirement benefit is assumed to be 120% of $120,870, or 

$145,044, for 2016 and it is expected to grow 2.00% per year. 

4. In the AB340 benefit structure, the multiplier is 2.5% at 55. The multiplier increases by 0.1% for ages above 

55 to a maximum of 2.7% at 57. It decreases by 0.1% for ages below 55 to a minimum of 2.0% at 50.  

  

Calendar Year 2016 2017 2018

Valuation Pay $70,800 $143,000 $216,900

Annual Cost

AB340 with 3.00% COLA

i) $ $46,100 $93,000 $141,200

ii) % of Pay 65.1% 65.0% 65.1%

AB340 with 2.00% COLA

i) $ $41,800 $84,400 $128,100

ii) % of Pay 59.0% 59.0% 59.1%

Saving/(Cost)

i) $ $4,300 $8,600 $13,100

ii) % of Pay 6.1% 6.0% 6.0%

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

2016 2017 2018

Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Contra Costa County - AB340 with 3.00 COLA vs. AB340 with 2.00 COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year ($)

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

2016 2017 2018
Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year (% of Pay)



Ms. Lisa Driscoll 
October 12, 2015 

Page 4 
 
 

 

AFSCME 512 Safety – July 1, 2016 

 
Notes: 
1. The methods and assumptions used to determine the savings were the same as those used for the 

December 31, 2014 valuation for the Safety members. 

2. The County is assumed to hire one Safety employee into AFSCME 512 Safety at July 1 of each projection 

year (we have averaged results for one male and one female).  The assumed age at entry for new hires is 

56, and the annual salary is assumed to be $79,700, $82,500, $85,400, and $88,400 for the 2016, 2017, 

2018, and 2019 hires, respectively.  These assumptions were provided by the County. 

3. The maximum compensation limit for the retirement benefit is assumed to be 120% of $120,870, or 

$145,044, for 2016 and it is expected to grow 2.00% per year. 

4. In the AB340 benefit structure, the multiplier is 2.5% at 55. The multiplier increases by 0.1% for ages above 

55 to a maximum of 2.7% at 57. It decreases by 0.1% for ages below 55 to a minimum of 2.0% at 50.  

5. Results for 2016 are for six months only (July 1 through December 31). 

Calendar Year 2016 2017 2018 2019

Valuation Pay $35,400 $109,500 $185,100 $262,700

Annual Cost

AB340 with 3.00% COLA

i) $ $23,000 $71,200 $120,500 $170,900

ii) % of Pay 65.0% 65.0% 65.1% 65.1%

AB340 with 2.00% COLA

i) $ $20,900 $64,600 $109,300 $155,100

ii) % of Pay 59.0% 59.0% 59.0% 59.0%

Saving/(Cost)

i) $ $2,100 $6,600 $11,200 $15,800

ii) % of Pay 6.0% 6.0% 6.1% 6.1%

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

2016 2017 2018 2019

Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Contra Costa County - AB340 with 3.00 COLA vs. AB340 with 2.00 COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year ($)

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

2016 2017 2018 2019
Saving/(Cost) AB340 with 3.00% COLA AB340 with 2.00% COLA

Annual Cost by Plan Year (% of Pay)



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to advertise for the 2016 On-Call contract(s) for various road

and flood control maintenance work, for routine maintenance and repair of existing road pavement and flood control

facilities, Countywide.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The 2016 On-Call Contract(s) for Various Road and Flood Control Maintenance Work is to be funded by 100%

Local Road and Flood Control Funds.

BACKGROUND: 

The Public Works Department will use the 2016 On-Call Contract(s) for Various Road and Flood Control

Maintenance Work to provide support as needed to Public Works Maintenance crews for various routine road and

flood control maintenance repairs, such as but not limited to, storm damage repair work, including rock slope

protection, slope stabilization, culverts, and concrete structures, on an as-needed basis, in various 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kristen Hoy,

925-313-7006

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 1

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Advertise the 2016 On-Call Contract(s) for Various Road and Flood Control Maintenance Work



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

locations within Contra Costa County. The Public Works Department intends to award at least one $300,000

contract, but not more than four $300,000 contracts, to the responsible bidder(s). Each contract will have a term of

one year with the option of two one-year extensions and will be used as needed with no minimum amount that has to

be spent.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Public Works Department may be unable to complete routine road and flood control maintenance work in a

timely manner.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to advertise for the 2016 On-Call Trucking Services

Contract(s) for various road and flood control maintenance work, for routine maintenance and repair of existing road,

pavement and flood control facilities, Countywide.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract(s) for Various Road and Flood Control Maintenance Work is to be

funded by 100% Local Road and Flood Control Funds.

BACKGROUND: 

The Public Works Department will use the 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract(s) for Various Road and Flood

Control Maintenance Work to provide supplemental trucking services as needed to Public Works Maintenance crews

for routine road and flood control maintenance repairs in various locations throughout Contra Costa County. The

Public Works Department intends to award at least one $300,000 contract, but not more 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Henry Finch,

925-313-7004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 2

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Advertise the 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract(s) for Various Road and Flood Control Maintenance Work



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

than four $300,000 contracts, to the responsible bidder(s). Each contract will have a term of one-year with the option

of two one-year extensions, and used as needed with no minimum amount that has to be spent.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Where trucking services are required, the Public Works Department may be unable to complete routine road and

flood control maintenance work in a timely manner.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to advertise for the 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract

for aggregate stockpiling and transportation for the stockpiling and transportation of the chip seal aggregate that will

be used for the Public Works Department’s 2016 chip seal program, Countywide.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract for Aggregate Stockpiling and Transportation is to be funded by 100%

Local Road Funds.

BACKGROUND: 

The Public Works Department will use the 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract for aggregate stockpiling and

transportation to provide trucking services for the transportation of chip seal aggregate from the quarry to various

stockpile locations throughout Contra Costa County, and also for the transportation of the chip 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Henry Finch,

925-313-7004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Advertise the 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract for Aggregate Stockpiling and Transportation



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

seal aggregate from the stockpile locations to various roads within Contra Costa County. The aggregate will be used

by Public Works Maintenance crews for routine pavement surface treatment activities on various roads within Contra

Costa County. The Public Works Department intends to award one $300,000 contract with a term of one year, and

will be used as needed with no minimum amount that has to be spent.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Public Works Department may be unable to complete the 2016 chip seal program.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Traffic Resolution No. 2015/4434 to establish a speed limit of 25 miles per hour on Colusa Avenue (Road

No. 1452), Kensington area. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

Colusa Avenue is classified as a minor arterial roadway by the Federal Highway Administration. As such, the speed

limit must be set according to standards established by the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices

and CVC 22358, if the speed limit is to be set lower than the prima facie speed limit of 55 miles per hour. This

requires an Engineering and Traffic Survey (E&TS) to be conducted to establish an appropriate speed limit. On

October 20, 2015, an E&TS was conducted according to established traffic engineering standards. Based on the

results of the E&TS, the Traffic Engineer recommends the establishment of a speed limit of 25 miles per hour for the

entire length of Colusa Avenue contained within Kensington. This speed limit is also consistent with posted 25 miles

per hour speed limits on Colusa Avenue in the neighboring cities of El Cerrito and Berkeley. This action will allow

local law enforcement agencies to enforce the speed limit on Colusa Avenue. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Monish Sen (925)

313-2187

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 4

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Establish speed limit of 25 miles per hour on Colusa Avenue (Road 1452), Kensington area



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The speed limit on Colusa Avenue would have to be posted at 55 miles per hour, as mandated by CVC 22349(b),

which would impact public safety negatively.

ATTACHMENTS

traffic reso 4434 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 

Adopted this Traffic Resolution on November 10, 2015, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ABSTAIN: RESOLUTION NO. 2015/4434 

 Supervisorial District I 

 

TRAFFIC RESOLUTION NO. 2015/4434 

SUBJECT: Establish a speed limit of 25 miles per hour on Colusa Avenue (Road 1452), 

Kensington area.  

 

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors RESOLVES that:  

 

On the basis of an Engineering and Traffic Survey and recommendations by the County Public 

Works Department’s Transportation Engineering Division and pursuant to County Ordinance 

Code Sections 46-2.002 – 46-2.012, the following traffic regulation is established: 

 

 Pursuant to Section 22358(a) of the California Vehicle Code, no vehicle shall 

travel in excess of 25 miles per hour on Colusa Avenue (Road No. 1452), 

within Kensington.  

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 
SR:mbt 

 

Orig. Dept.: Public Works (Traffic) 
    Contact: Monish Sen (925-313-2187) 

 

            c: California Highway Patrol 
 Kensington Police Department 

 Sheriff’s Department 

   
 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an 

action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of 

Supervisors on the date shown. 

 

 

ATTESTED:  

DAVID TWA, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and 

County Administrator 

 

 

By  ,  

Deputy 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Traffic Resolution No. 2015/4435 to prohibit parking at all times on a portion of the north side of Pacheco

Boulevard (Road No. 3951C), from a point 28 feet east of the centerline of Goree Court (Road No. 3687A), and

continuing north for a distance of 33 feet, Martinez area. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the end of Summer 2015, a Capital Improvement Project enhancing the frontage of Pacheco Boulevard was

completed. Since that time, the Public Works Department has received multiple complaints from residents on Goree

Court that there was limited sightlines for motorists entering Pacheco Boulevard from Goree Court. In response, an

investigation was conducted in October 2015. Sightlines were measured and found to be limited based on current

highway design standards. It was concluded that restricting parking on the northeast corner of the intersection would

improve sightlines and traffic safety. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Vehicles will continue to park at this location. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Monish Sen (925)

313-2187

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 5

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Prohibit Parking on a portion of Pacheco Boulevard ( Road No. 3951C), Martinez area



ATTACHMENTS

Traffic Reso

4435 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 

Adopted this Traffic Resolution on November 10, 2015, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ABSTAIN: RESOLUTION NO. 2015/4435  

 Supervisorial District V 

 

TRAFFIC RESOLUTION NO. 2015/4435 

SUBJECT: Prohibit parking at all times on a portion of Pacheco Boulevard (Road No. 

3951C), Martinez area  

 
 

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors RESOLVES that:  

 

Based on the recommendations by the County Public Works Department’s Transportation 

Engineering Division and pursuant to County Ordinance Code Sections 46-2.002 – 46-2.012, the 

following traffic regulation is established: 

 

 Pursuant to Section 22507 of the California Vehicle Code, vehicles are prohibited from 

parking at all times on the north side of Pacheco Boulevard (Road No. 3951C), from a 

point 28 feet east of the centerline of Goree Court (Road No. 3951C) and continuing 

easterly for a distance of 33 feet, Martinez area. 

  

 

 

 
 

  

   

 

 

 

 

 
SR:mbt 

 

Orig. Dept.: Public Works (Traffic) 
    Contact: Monish Sen (925-313-2187) 

 

            c: California Highway Patrol 
 Sheriff’s Department 

   

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an 

action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of 

Supervisors on the date shown. 

 

 

ATTESTED:  

DAVID TWA, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and 

County Administrator 

 

 

By  ,  

Deputy 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/428 ratifying the prior decision of the Public Works Director, or designee, to fully close

a portion of the Buskirk Avenue northbound off-ramp at Oak Road, on October 30, 2015, from 9:00 a.m. through

3:00 p.m., for the purpose of completing final paving for an emergency water main repair, Walnut Creek area.

(District IV) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

Applicant shall follow guidelines set forth by the Public Works Department. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Applicant will not have Board approval for completed road closure. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Bob Hendry,

925-674-7744

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 6

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Ratifying prior decision to fully close a portion of the Buskirk Ave. northbound off-ramp at Oak Rd., October 30,

2015, 9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/428 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 11/10/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/428

IN THE MATTER OF: Ratifying the prior decision of the Public Works Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of the

Buskirk Avenue northbound off-ramp at Oak Road, on October 30, 2015, from 9:00 a.m. through 3:00 p.m., for the purpose of

completing final paving for an emergency water main repair, Walnut Creek area. (District IV)

RC15-16

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that permission is granted to Contra Costa Water District to fully close the Buskirk

Avenue northbound off-ramp at Oak Road, except for emergency traffic, on October 30, 2015, for the period of 9:00 a.m.

through 3:00 p.m., subject to the following conditions:

1. Traffic will be detoured via neighboring streets per traffic control plan reviewed by Public Works.

2. All signing to be in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

3. Contra Costa Water District shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance Code of Contra Costa County.

4. Provide the County with a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.00 for Comprehensive General Public Liability

which names the County as an additional insured prior to permit issuance.

5. Obtain approval for the closure from the Sheriff’s Department, the California Highway Patrol and the Fire District.

Contact:  Bob Hendry, 925-674-7744

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/419 approving and authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to fully close a

portion of Jackson Way and the northbound lanes of Danville Boulevard between Orchard Lane and Jackson Way,

on November 22, 2015, from 4:30 p.m. through 6:30 p.m., for the purpose of the Annual Alamo Tree Lighting

Ceremony, Alamo area. (District II)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

Applicant shall follow guidelines set forth by the Public Works Department. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Applicant will be unable to close the road for planned activities. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Bob Hendry,

925-674-7744

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 7

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Fully close a portion of Jackson Way & northbound lanes of Danville Blvd. between Orchard Ln. & Jackson Wy Nov.

22, 2015 for tree lighting, Alamo area



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/419 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 11/10/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/419

IN THE MATTER OF approving and authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of Jackson Way

and the north bound lanes of Danville Boulevard between Orchard Lane and Jackson Way, on November 22, 2015, from 4:30

p.m. through 6:30 p.m., for the purpose of the Annual Alamo Tree Lighting Ceremony, Alamo area. (District II)

RC15-14

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that permission is granted to the Community Foundation of Alamo to fully close a

portion of Jackson Way and the northbound lanes of Danville Boulevard between Orchard Lane and Jackson Way, except for

emergency traffic, on November 22, 2015 for the period of 4:30 p.m. through 6:30 p.m., subject to the following conditions:

1. Traffic on Jackson Way will be detoured via neighboring streets and on Danville Boulevard to the adjacent lane per the traffic

control plan reviewed by Public Works.

2. All signing to be in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

3. Community Foundation of Alamo shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance Code of Contra Costa County.

4. Provide the County with a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.00 for Comprehensive General Public Liability

which names the County as an additional insured prior to permit issuance.

5. Obtain approval for the closure from the Sheriff’s Department, the California Highway Patrol and the Fire District.

Contact:  Bob Hendry, 925-674-7744

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/427 approving and authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to fully close a

portion of Pomona Street between Alexander Street and Rolph Avenue, on November 11, 2015, from 9:30 a.m.

through 11:30 a.m., for the purpose of a marching band parade in honor of Veteran's Day, Crockett area. (District V)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

Applicant shall follow guidelines set forth by the Public Works Department. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Applicant will be unable to close the road for planned activities. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Bob Hendry,

925-674-7744

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 8

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Fully close a portion of Pomona Street between Alexander Street and Rolph Avenue, on November 11, 2015, 9:30

a.m. - 11:30 a.m., Crockett area.



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/427 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 11/10/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/427

IN THE MATTER OF approving and authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to fully close a portion of Pomona

Street between Alexander Street and Rolph Avenue, on November 11, 2015 from 9:30 a.m. through 11:30 a.m., for the purpose

of a marching band parade in honor of Veteran's Day, Crockett area. (District V)

RC 15-15

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that permission is granted to John Swett Band Boosters to fully close Pomona Street

between Alexander Street and Rolph Avenue, except for emergency traffic, on November 11, 2015 for the period of 9:30 a.m.

through 11:30 a.m., subject to the following conditions:

1. Traffic will be detoured via neighboring street per traffic control plan reviewed by Public Works.

2. All signing to be in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

3. John Swett Band Boosters shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance Code of Contra Costa County.

4. Provide the County with a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.00 for Comprehensive General Public Liability

which names the County as an additional insured prior to permit issuance.

5. Obtain approval for the closure from the Sheriff’s Department, the California Highway Patrol and the Fire District.

Contact:  Bob Hendry, 925-674-7744

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/423 accepting completion of improvements for minor subdivision MS04-00012, for a

project developed by Oscar A. Salazar and Oscar W. A. Dias, as recommended by the Public Works Director, Bay

Point area. (District V) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact to County funds. The funds to be released are developer fees that have been held on deposit. 

BACKGROUND: 

The developer has completed the improvements per the Subdivision Agreement, and in accordance with Title 9 of the

County Ordinance Code. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The completion of improvements will not be accepted. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  J. A.B. LaRocque,

925-313-2315

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Public Works, Records,   Public Works, Design/Construction,   H. Finch, Public Works, Maintenance Division,   Public Works, Mapping,   K. Dahl, Public

Works, Engineering Services, Originator,   L. Brown, Public Works, Finance,   Oscar A. Salazar/Oscar W.A. Davis 1697 St. Germain Pl Concord, CA 94521,  
Indemnity Co of California 2999 Oak Rd Ste 420, Walnut Creek, CA 94597   

C. 9

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Accepting Completion of Improvements for minor subdivision MS04-00012, Bay Point area.



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/423 



Recorded at the request of: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Return To: PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, ENGINEERING SERVICES DIVISION

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 11/10/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/423 

IN THE MATTER OF accepting completion of improvements for minor subdivision MS04-00012, for a project developed by

Oscar A. Salazar and Oscar W. A. Dias, as recommended by the Public Works Director, Bay Point area. (District V)

WHEREAS the Public Works Director has notified this Board that the improvements in minor subdivision MS04-00012 have

been completed as provided in the Subdivision Agreement with Oscar A. Salazar and Oscar W. A. Dias, heretofore approved by

this Board in conjunction with the filing of the Subdivision Map.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the improvements have been COMPLETED as of November 3, 2015, thereby

establishing the six-month terminal period for the filing of liens in case of action under said Subdivision Agreement:

DATE OF AGREEMENT: September 19, 2006

NAME OF SURETY: Indemnity Company of California

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the payment (labor and materials) surety for $39,100.00 Bond No. 720830S issued by the

above surety be RETAINED for the six-month lien guarantee period until May 3, 2016, at which time the Board AUTHORIZES

the release of said surety less the amount of any claims on file.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is no warranty period required, and the Public Works Director is AUTHORIZED to

apply the $7,820.00 cash deposit (Auditor’s Deposit Permit No.469817 dated August 31, 2006) to payment of fees owed to the

Public Works Department in accordance with the Subdivision Agreement; and the Subdivision Agreement and surety bond are

thereafter exonerated, except for the six-month lien guarantee period as provided above.

Contact:  J. A.B. LaRocque, 925-313-2315

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and
entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Public Works, Records,   Public Works, Design/Construction,   H. Finch, Public Works, Maintenance Division,   Public Works, Mapping,   K. Dahl, Public



cc: Public Works, Records,   Public Works, Design/Construction,   H. Finch, Public Works, Maintenance Division,   Public Works, Mapping,   K. Dahl, Public

Works, Engineering Services, Originator,   L. Brown, Public Works, Finance,   Oscar A. Salazar/Oscar W.A. Davis 1697 St. Germain Pl Concord, CA 94521,  
Indemnity Co of California 2999 Oak Rd Ste 420, Walnut Creek, CA 94597   



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a month-to-month hangar rental

agreement with Bright Apps, LLC for a shade hangar at Buchanan Field Airport effective October 11, 2015 in the

monthly amount of $177.07, Pacheco area. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Airport Enterprise Fund will realize $2,124.84 annually. 

BACKGROUND: 

On September 1, 1970, Buchanan Airport Hangar Company entered into a 30-year lease with Contra Costa County

for the construction of seventy-five (75) hangars and eighteen (18) aircraft shelters at Buchanan Field Airport.

Buchanan Airport Hangar Company was responsible for the maintenance and property management of the property

during that 30-year period.

On September 1, 2000, the County obtained ownership of the aircraft hangars and shelters, pursuant to the terms of

the above lease. 

On February 13, 2007, Contra Costa County Board 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Beth Lee, (925)

681-4200

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 10

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Keith Freitas, Airports Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a hangar rental agreement with

Buchanan Field Airport Hangar tenant



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

of Supervisors approved the new Large Hangar Lease Agreement for use with the larger East Ramp Hangars. 

On February 3, 2008, Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors approved the amended shade hangar Lease

Agreement which removed the Aircraft Physical Damage Insurance requirement. The new amended shade hangar

Lease Agreement will be used to enter into this aircraft rental agreement.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

A negative action will cause a loss of revenue to the Airport Enterprise Fund.

ATTACHMENTS

Hangar Rental Agreement 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

The Board of Supervisors, as the Governing Board of the Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water

Conservation District (District):

APPROVE the Right of Way Contract; and ACCEPT the Grant of Easement dated October 8, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Angela Bell,

925-313-2337

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 11

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: West Antioch Creek Channel Improvements Project - Hall &Loads



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

2015 from Hall and Loads, Inc. for property rights located on a portion of APN Nos. 074-020-025 and 036 in

Antioch, pursuant to Section 31 of the Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Act.

(Project No. 7579-6D8399 [SCH#: 2014042078])

AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, or designee, to execute the Right of Way Contract on behalf of the District.

APPROVE payment in the amount of $70,000 for said property rights; and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller

to issue a check in said amount payable to Fidelity National Title Company, 191 Sand Creek Road, Suite 160,

Brentwood, CA 94513, Escrow No. FCHC-T015001886 to be forwarded to the Real Estate Division for delivery.

DIRECT the Real Estate Division to have the above referenced Grant of Easement and check delivered to the

Title Company for recording in the Office of the County Clerk-Recorder.

FISCAL IMPACT:

100% Drainage Area 55 funds.

BACKGROUND:

On March 10, 2015, this Board approved the proposed project and adopted the Mitigated Negative Declaration

pertaining to the Project, SCH # 2014042078. These property rights are required for the West Antioch Creek

Channel Improvements Project in accordance with the approved plans and specifications.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The project will not have sufficient land rights to allow construction in accordance with the approved plans and

specifications.

ATTACHMENTS

Contract 

Grant of Easement 



































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE the conveyance of a Grant of Easement to Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), for utility

purposes pursuant to Section 31 of the Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Act.

(Project No. EF1300629 [(WL083A) CP#13-33])

DETERMINE that the conveyance of said easement is in the public interest and will not substantially conflict or

interfere with the Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District’s (District) use of the property.

DETERMINE that this activity is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to

Article 5, Section 15061 (b)(3) of the CEQA guidelines. DIRECT the Director of the Department of Conservation and

Development (DCD) to file a Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk; and DIRECT the Public Works Director,

or designee, to arrange for payment of the $50 fee to the County Clerk for filing and a $25 fee to the DCD for

processing of the Notice of Exemption.

AUTHORIZE the Chair, Board of Supervisors, to execute the Grant of Easement on behalf of the District in

consideration for payment received in full in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500).

DIRECT the Real Estate Division 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jann Edmunds,

925-313-2250

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 12

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE the conveyance of a Grant of Easement to PG&E for utility purposes.



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

of the Public Works Department to cause said Grant of Easement to be delivered to the Grantee for acceptance

and recording in the Office of the County Clerk-Recorder.

FISCAL IMPACT:

100% Applicant Fees.

BACKGROUND:

PG&E has requested a five-foot wide easement from the District for the installation of a deep well anode,

rectifier, conduit and cable on District property. The installation is needed to protect an existing pipeline easement

already encumbered by PG&E for their facilities. This will also allow PG&E to access their equipment and any

reasonably necessary installation, maintenance, and/or replacement of said facilities.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

PG&E would not have the necessary land rights to its facilities installed on a portion of District property.

ATTACHMENTS

Grant of Easement 

CEQA 

























RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water Conservation

District (FC District), or designee, to execute Contract Amendment No. 1 with Environmental Science Associates, to

increase the payment limit by $35,000 to a new payment limit of $590,042, and add planning and project

development services for the Lower Walnut Creek Restoration Project, with no change to the original term, Martinez

area. (100% Flood Control District Zone 3B Funds) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This project is 100% funded by Flood Control Zone 3B (Walnut Creek watershed) funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 25, 2013, the Board of Supervisors authorized the FC District to remove the lowest 4 miles of the Army

Corps of Engineers’ “Walnut Creek Project” from Corps oversight. The FC District sought this removal to return the

facility to local control and permit the FC District to manage it in a more sustainable manner. Legislation was

subsequently introduced to selectively deauthorize Lower Walnut Creek from the system. This legislation was

approved 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Carl Roner (925)

313-2213

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Steve Kowalewski, Deputy Chief Engineer,   Mike Carlson, Flood Control,   Paul Detjens, Flood Control,   Carl Roner, Flood Control,   Catherine Windham,

Flood Control   

C. 13

  

To: Contra Costa County Flood Control District Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract Amendment with Environmental Science Associates, for Lower Walnut Creek Restoration Project, Martinez

area. Project No. 7520-6B8285



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

by Congress and signed by President Obama on June 10, 2014. 

With the facility under local control, the FC District has the ability to proceed with the Lower Walnut Creek

Restoration Project, which encompasses the lowest 4 miles of Walnut Creek and Pacheco Creek. The objective of this

project is to transform this stretch of channel to a sustainable flood control facility.

This amendment provides for the following:

a. Additional funds to provide floodplain core analysis;

b. Additional funds to provide hydraulic modeling of ecologically significant flows;

c. Additional funds to provide for sea level rise modeling; and

d. Provide for additional modeling and analysis services to be performed by Contractor.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the amendment is not approved, the consultant will not be able to perform the additional work or be paid for it.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller, or designee, to issue a payment on behalf of the Public Works

Director, in the amount of $1,500 from County Service Area R-7A (CSA R-7A), made payable to the Community

Foundation of Alamo for the holiday lights at Andrew H. Young Park, Alamo area. (District II) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% CSA R-7A Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

CSA R-7A participates in Alamo’s Annual Tree Lighting Festival each year. The Community Foundation of Alamo

is the sponsor of the 2015 event. CSA R-7A contributes the use of Andrew H. Young Park and provides funding to

decorate the park with holiday lights. The event takes place on November 22, 2015 from 4:30 p.m. – 6:30 p.m.. The

lights will be installed on or after November 15, 2015 and will remain up through the first week of January 2016. The

Alamo Tree lighting event is a collaborative effort coordinated by the Community Foundation of Alamo. The event

was reviewed by the Alamo Municipal Advisory Council on May 5, 2015 when planning for the 2015-16 recreation

budget and $1,500 was recommended for this event.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Susan Cohen, Special

Districts, 925-313-2160

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: L. Byers, District 2,   J. Quallick, District 2,   D. Barclay, Alamo MAC Chair,   V. Skerritt, Special District,   J. Chen, Engineering Services,   K. Lachapelle,

Grounds   

C. 14

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller to issue a payment of $1,500 to the Community Foundation of

Alamo for the holiday lights, Alamo area.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without Board approval this event will not be funded by CSA R-7A.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

DENY claims filed by Janeane Corallo, Adam Farr, Keith Lucia and Mary Sue Lucia, on behalf of the Estate of

Megan Nicole Lucia, and CSAA for Amita Pawar. DENY late claim filed by Joanne Alice Lewis. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

* 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Joellen Balbas

925-335-1906

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 15

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: claims



APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  James Lyons,

510-231-8692

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.16

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Honoring Contra Costa County Veterans on Veterans Day



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Adopt resolution 2015/410 recognizing all those involved in the Disaster Medical Mutual Aid response associated

with the Valley Fire and aftermath from September 14, 2015 through Oct 5, 2015. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Valley Fire burned over 76,000 acres in Napa, Sonoma and Lake Counties devastating the community of

Middletown with many residents having to evacuate with only the clothes on their backs. On September 14, 2015, the

Napa County EMS Medical Health Operational Area Coordinator (MHOAC) contacted Contra Costa EMS with an

urgent medical mutual aid request to support the ongoing disaster shelter operations at the Calistoga Fairgrounds.

During the activation, volunteers and staff worked under austere and difficult conditions while providing 3 treatment

bays for first aid and medical operations for the onsite clinic. Conditions were harsh with the vast majority of

evacuees (over 1,000) camping outside on the ground under sweltering heat. In response to the mutual aid request

Contra Costa EMS coordinated the deployment of the following medical mutual aid:

1. In less than 24 hours American Medical Response (AMR) responded, mobilized and deployed their paramedic

regional disaster medical support vehicle. During their deployment AMR personnel were commended on their

engagement with volunteer groups providing those evacuated with much needed medical services, comfort and

compassionate care.

2. Within 24 hours EMS staff, Disaster Medical Preparedness Manager Steve Huck and Medical Reserve Corps

Coordinator, Lisa Vajgrt-Smith began to ready the Contra Costa Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) medical personnel,

tents, equipment for deployment. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Pat Frost, (925)

313-9554

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   Leticia Andreas   

C.17

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Adopt Resolution Recognizing All Those Involved in the Disaster Medical Mutual Aid response during the Valley

Fire and Aftermath



3. By 0700 on September 15, 2015 the Contra Costa MRC was ready with over 11 people available that same day to

deploy for various shifts and times. By 11pm that evening medical operations were setup and providing medical

services, first aid and clinical support 24/7 through September 22nd.

4. In the days and weeks after the fire, additional mutual aid requests were filled which included Contra Costa trained

mental health personnel who responded to fire devastated communities of Lake County, including Middletown. 

5. In all, over 40 prehospital nurses, physicians, mental health providers and other medical personnel were deployed.

In addition, disaster medical equipment, tents, oxygen equipment and pharmaceutical caches were successfully

mobilized over the duration of the event.

This disaster response was the largest activation of the Contra Costa MRC Corps since the MRC was created in 2009.

With this response Contra Costa MRC volunteers demonstrated that they are at the ready to rapidly meet critical

medical needs for those who are the most vulnerable. The Contra Costa Medical Mutual Aid Response was formally

demobilized on October 5, 2015.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Medical Mutual Aid

Responding Entities
Individuals and Volunteers Supporting Medical Mutual Aid Response

American Medical Response

Ambulance Mutual Aid
Brad Gates, Samantha Fox, Damon Richardson, Michael Marsh

Contra Costa Medical

Reserve Corps

Branden Scarbrough EMT, Lonni Cronin RN, Les Hata DDS, Sarah

Kaplan PA, Mike McMilian EMT, Jerri Murphy LVN, Kandy Heinen

RN, Albert Sebilia RN, Carol Sebilia SW, Les Berkes Psychologist,

Sue Lloyd RN, Cynthia Roberts RN, Donald Powell EMT, Deborah

Jett RN, Christina Gauthier LVN, Jennifer Cowell Paramedic, Debra

Hawkes RN, Nicole McGraw-Non-medical, Alfie Bondoc EMT, Pam

Dodson RN, Jim Mallory non-medical, Allan Tobias MD, Joyce

DeLeon RN, Loreen Atallah Pharm Tech, Stephen Martin Paramedic,

Susan Dell’Isola non-medical

Lisa Quinones MD, Katherina Gonzalez MA, Janice Withul

non-medical.

Contra Costa Behavioral

Health

Rachel Cohen, Amy Linsao, Amanda Dold, Diasy Lam, Steve Blum,

David Seidner, Matthew Luu

Contra Costa Regional

Medical Center

Pharmaceutical Cache

Shideh Attaii, Lori Carone, Marjan Orellana, Irene Segovia 

Contra Costa EMS Disaster

Preparedness Staff
Steve Huck, Lisa Vajgrt-Smith, Mateika Martin

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: Volunteers and response personnel would not be recognized for their
contributions and disaster service. ATTACHMENTS Resolution No. 2015/410 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/410

Recognizing all those involved in the Disaster Medical Mutual Aid Response Associated with the Valley Fire from

September 14th through October 5th 2015.

 

WHEREAS, the Valley Fire was one of the most destructive wildfires in California history, burning over

76,000 acres, destroying 2,953 residential structures and requiring rapid evacuation of over 11 communities

in Lake, Napa and Sonoma Counties; and 

WHEREAS, over 1,000 men, women and children including many with chronic and special medical needs

evacuated to the Calistoga Fairgrounds Sheltering Operations with few possessions camping outside on the

ground in hundreds of small tents in austere conditions; and 

WHEREAS, on September 14, 2015, the Napa County Medical Health Operational Area Coordinator

(MHOAC) contacted the Contra Costa Emergency Medical Services MHOAC to arrange for coordinated

deployment of medical mutual aid as part of a Regional Medical Health Disaster response; and 

WHEREAS, within hours of the first mutual aid request American Medical Response (AMR) was able to

deploy to the evacuation site with a paramedic advanced life support ambulance and the Disaster Mobile

Support Unit (DMSU) coordinating their response with Calistoga Fairground emergency operations, Napa

EMS Agency, and Napa County and Calistoga Fire/EMS Providers; and 

WHEREAS, within hours of an additional mutual aid request made on September 15, 2015 Contra Costa

EMS Disaster Preparedness Staff and Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) volunteers effectively deployed and

arrived to support and expand medical needs clinic operations at the Calistoga Fairgrounds Evacuation Site;

and 

WHEREAS, in the days following the fire, Costa Contra Health Services Behavioral Health Mental Health

Professionals were deployed to support the mental health needs of the many residents of fire devastated

communities; and 

WHEREAS, the Valley Fire Medical Mutual Aid deployment provided critical medical mutual aid in

Contra Costa Medical/Health and Emergency Medical Services System; and 

WHEREAS, this disaster response was the largest activation of the Contra Costa MRC Corps since the

MRC was created in 2009; and 

WHEREAS, Contra Costa MRC and Behavioral Health volunteers demonstrated that they are at the ready

to rapidly meet critical medical needs for those who are the most vulnerable in disasters.

NOW, THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County hereby recognizes all

individuals and volunteers who participated in providing medical mutual aid during the Valley Fire and recognizes their

capability to rapidly deploy medical services for disaster victims. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



By: ____________________________________, Deputy



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Resolution Recognizing Richard O'Connor 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

Recognizing Richard O'Connor for his dedicated service to both the United States Marine Corps and to all those he

serves and supports through various Veterans events. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

None. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jen Quallick (925)

957-8860

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C.18

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution Recognizing Richard O'Connor



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/429 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/429

Recognizing Richard O'Connor

 

Whereas, Richard O’Connor was born and raised in Martinez, California and learned to play the guitar

when he was just three years old; and 

Whereas, Richard inherited his talent and developed his love of music from his father, a professional singer

of Blue Grass Music, and performed with him on the radio, for community and school events, and later as a

member of Jack & The Rippers; and 

Whereas, Richard continued to play the guitar after joining the Marine Corps in August of 1966 where

music sustained both him and his troop, through both good times and bad; and 

Whereas, Richard was wounded in Vietnam and received three Purple Heart Medals and spent over five

months recovering at Oak Knoll Hospital in Oakland after being wounded for a third time.  He was

honorably discharged from the Marine Corps as a Corporal on August 16 th, 1968; and 

Whereas, Richard has played for wounded troops coming home to Travis Air Force Base, the same place he

once came home wounded in 1968; and 

Whereas, Veterans who served with Richard have contacted him, thanking him for his music and for

bringing them a sense of home while they were fighting in Vietnam; and 

Whereas, Richard has been playing guitar and singing at many Veteran’s events, including the Contra

Costa County Board of Supervisor’s Annual Veteran’s Day Ceremony since 2009. 

Now, Therefore, Be it Resolved that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County does hereby honor and thank Richard

O’Connor for his dedication and commitment to all he has served, both in the United States Marine Corps and since coming

home. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Resolution Recognizing Sentinels of Freedom 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

On September 9, 2015, the Contra Costa Community College District Governing Board accepted a letter of intent

from the Sentinels of Freedom Scholarship Foundation to partner together and establish Veterans’ Resource Centers

at Contra Costa College, Diablo Valley College, and Los Medanos College. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

None. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jen Quallick

925/957-8860

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 19

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution Recognizing Sentinels of Freedom



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/432 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/432

Recognizing Sentinels of Freedom

 

Whereas, on September 9, 2015, the Contra Costa Community College District Governing Board accepted a

letter of intent from the Sentinels of Freedom Scholarship Foundation to partner together and establish

Veterans’ Resource Centers at Contra Costa College, Diablo Valley College, and Los Medanos College;

and 

  

Whereas, The Sentinels of Freedom has a national reputation of partnering with companies, colleges, and

universities throughout the country to establish on-campus veterans’ resource centers that provide a safe

space for veterans to support one another as they transition from military service to civilian life; and 

  

Whereas, the additional donors of the endeavor offering monetary support are the Lennar Corporation,

PG&E, the David and Cheryl Duffield Foundation, Anvil Builders of San Francisco, The Dahlin Group,

Engeo, and non-profit HomeAid; and 

  

Whereas, The Resource Centers will be designed for the primary use by student veterans and the student

veterans organization.  Student veterans will collaborate with the college to determine what services and

support shall be offered; and 

  

Whereas, the first Resource Center backed by the Sentinels of Freedom opened at San Francisco State in

2012 allowing student veterans to build a safe sense of community.

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Contra Costa Board of Supervisors, does hereby recognize the Sentinels of Freedom and

their donating partners for all they do and will continue to do to support Contra Costa County veterans. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Ordinance No. 2015-21 amending the County Ordinance Code to re-title the exempt classification of

Assistant County Recorder-Exempt (ALB3) to the new title of Assistant County Clerk-Recorder-Exempt (ALB3) in

the Clerk-Recorder Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no cost associated with this action. 

BACKGROUND: 

Assistant County Recorder-Exempt is a single position classification. The department wishes to re-title the current

classification to correctly reflect the classifications official name, define the responsibilities within the department,

and to correspond with other County General Government departments. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this action is not approved, the classification will not be appropriately titled. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

No Impact. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Tanya Williams,

925-335-1714

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Tanya Williams,   James Hicks,   Debi Cooper,   Gladys Scott Reid,   Cheryl Koch   

C. 20

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Ito, Human Resources Consultant

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: ADOPT ORDINANCE 2015-21 to Retitle Assistant County Recorder-Exempt to Assistant County

Clerk-Recorder-Exempt



ATTACHMENTS

Ordinance No.

2015-21 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT the resignation of Simone Gikanga, DECLARE a vacancy in the At-Large Seat 5 on the Family and

Children's Trust Committee and DIRECT the Clerk of the Board to post the vacancy as recommended by the

Employment and Human Services Director. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

Ms. Gikanga notified the family and Children's Trust Committee (FACT) of her resignation effective October 21,

2015. The vacancy must be posted and potential candidates recruited to fill the reminder of the term which expires

September 30, 2016. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If not accepted, the at FACT large seat will not be posted and filled. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Elaine Burres,

313-1717

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 21

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Accept the Resignation of Simone Gikanga from the Family and Children's Trust Committee



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

REAPPOINT the following members to the Advisory Council on Aging for the term indicated as recommended by

the Employment and Human Services Director: 

Name Seat District Term

Ron Tervelt Local Clayton 6 9/30/2017

Keith Katzman Local Moraga 2 9/30/2017

Arthur Kee Local Brentwood 3 9/30/2017

Nina Clark Local Orinda 2 9/30/2017

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Not Applicable 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Elaine Burres

31717

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 22

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Reappointmentsto the Advisory Council on Aging



BACKGROUND:

The following members are being recommended for reappointment to the Advisory Council on Aging for the term

indicated. Member applications are attached. 

Name Seat Address District Term

Ron Tervelt Local Clayton
5617 Frank Place

Clayton, CA 94517
6 9/30/2017

Keith Katzman Local Moraga
1229 Rimer Drive

Moraga, CA 94556
2 9/30/2017

Arthur Kee
Local

Brentwood`

170 Moraga Way

Brentwood, CVA

94513

3 9/30/2017

Nina Clark Local Orinda
11 Meadow Court

Orinda, CA 94564
2 9/30/2017

The Advisory Council on Aging provides a means for county-wide planning, cooperation and coordination for

individuals and groups interested in improving and developing services and opportunities for the older residents

of this county. The Council provides leadership and advocacy on behalf of older persons and serves as a channel

of communication and information on aging. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Advisory Council on Aging may not be unable to conduct routine business.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable

ATTACHMENTS

Kee 

Katzman 

Clark 

Tervelt 





Contra 
Costa 
County 

For Office Use Only For Reviewers Use Only: 

Date Received: Accepted Rejected 

BOARDS, COMMITIEES, AND COMMISSIONS APPUCATlON 

MAIL OR DELNER 10: 

cmra CoSa Gouty 

ctERKOF ll£BOARD 

651 Pile SIreet, Rrn.1oo 

~ CaIbrE 9«i53-1292 

PlEASE TYPE ClRPRM"N N< 

(Each PosDln RelJ*esaSeparift Apt'" ~ 


BOARD, COMMITTEE OR COMMISSION NAME AND SEAT 11l1E YOU ARE APPLYING FOR: 

PRINT EXACT NAME OF BOARD, COMMITTEE. OR COMMISSION PRINT EXACT SEAT NAME (if applicable) 

5. EDUCATION: Check appropriate box if you possess one of the following: 

High School Diploma [] G.E.D. Certificate 0 California High School Proficiency Certificate 0 


Give Highest Grade or Educational Level Achieved, _____________________ 


. ~' bate ' 

oe~ee 
. Awatdecd 

THIS FORM IS A PUBUC DOCUMENT 



6. PLEASE FILL OUT THE FOLLOWING SECllON COMPLETELY. Ust experience that relates to the qualifications needed to 
serve on the local appointive body. Begin with yoor most recent experience. A resume or other supporting documentation 
may be attached but it may not be used as a substitute for completing this section. 

A) Dates (Month, Day, Year) 
From To 

Total : Yrs. Mos. 

Hrs. per week __ . Volunteer 0 

Title 

\{e..u.. \*-01'" A5roc-~a.--k. 
Employer's Name and Address 

Duties Performed 

B) Dates (Month, Day, Year) 
From To 

Total: Yrs. Mos. 

Hrs. per week __ . Volunteer r:l 

TItJe Duties Performed 

-\- ~ ...... 

Employer's Name and Address 

Ma,CLq~ T-e...r,~ 

~o~~ L-..Iv'-U--:L ;\<:;S-oc...'.G 

{~6A) 

C) Dates (Month, Day, Year) 
From To 

Total: Yrs. Mos. 

Hrs. per week __ . Volunteer [J 

TitJe Duties Performed 

Employer's Name and Address 

G~5 H-OA 

D) Dates (Month, Day, Year) 
From To 

Total: Yrs. Mos. 

Hrs. per week __ . Volunteer 0 

Trtle Duties Performed 

Employer'S Name and Address 

THIS FORM IS A PUBUC DOCUMENT 



7. How did you learn about this vacancy? 

OCCC Homepage[]walk-ln ONewspaper Adverti.sement [JDistrict SUpervisor ~er 'f-(': e...~ 

8. Do you have a Familial or Financial Relationship with a member of the Board of SUpervisors? (Please see Board 
Resolution no. 2011155, attached): No ~ Yes--.O...... 

If Yes, please identify the nature of the relationship: ___________________ 

I CERl1FY that the statements made by me in this application are true, complete, and cOfrect to the best of my knO'Medge and 
belief, and are made In good faith.' acknowtedge and understand that an Information in this application Is publically 
accessible. I understand and agree that mi.sstalements I omiSSions of material fact may cause forfeiture of my rights to serve 
on a Board, Committee, or Co~mlssion In Contra costa County. 

Sign Name: ---I<'----'=-~--=____=~~------- Date: _~6....--~---'L=-.I6------=l'-S=----

Important Infonnation 

1. This awlication is a plbic documentand is 5li>jectto1he caiforna Pubic Records Pd. (CA GoY. Code §625Q.6270). 

2. Send1he completed ~appicab1 to 1he 0IIire of1he Clerk oflle Board a: 651 Pile Sbeet, Room 106, Marblez, CA 94553. 

3. Aresume or olher relevant iJ Ibnlillion may be submiledwitl this aw/iCaIiOO. 

4. AI members are re<JJi"ed to take Ile fobW1g 1raRlg: 1) The 8r<JMl Pd, 2) The Beeler GovermlentC>rti'alce, em 3) E1tics Traiing. 

5. 	Members ofboads, comnissions, ood COfTYT*es maybe re<P"ed b: 1)Ie a SIalementof Ec010mic Inlerest Form also krlov.1'l as a Form 
700, em 2) comple1e tie Stale Bhi:s Trai1ilg Com;e as re<J,Ji"ed by M31234. 

6. Jl.Dirsay body meetings may be held il vcrious locatims em some Dcaims mayndbe accessilIe byJU*:1rCJ'lspor1ation. 

7. 	Mee1i1g dates and times a-e subjedto d1ange em mayoccur l4> to t'M> da}s per montl. 

8. Some boads, cornrniIees,or comn IissioIIS may assi!Jl merrbers to Sli>oommiIees or v.ak ~ v.tlich mayr~i"e 00 ad<Iional 
col'l'Vlilment oftime. 

THIS FORM IS A PUBUC DOCUMENT 



Print Form 

Contra 

Costa 

County 


For Office Use Only 


Date Received: 

For Reviewers Use Only: 

Accepted Rejected 

BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS APPLICATION 

MAIL OR DELIVER TO : 

CooIJa Costa Co..ny 

CLERK a: 11-£ BOARD 

651 Pi1e S1reet, Rm. 100 

McIti1ez, Caifooia 94553-1292 

PlEASE TYPE OR PRINTIN IN< 

(Each Position ~ a Separate Appicafion) 


1. Name:Clark, Nina 

(Last Name) (First Name) (Middle Name) 

2. Address: 11 Meadow Court, Orinda, CA 94563 
(No.) (Street) (Apt.) (State) (Zip Code) 

3. Phones: 925-254-5332,925-212-9276 

(Home No.) (Work No.) (Cell No.) 

4. Email Address:clark_nina@yahoo.com 

5. EDUCATION: Check appropriate box if you possess one of the following: 


High School Diploma IE] G.E.D. Certificate 0 California High School Proficiency Certificate D 


Give Highest Grade or Educational Level Achieved,_P_h_.D_.____________________ 


DateDegree DegreeNames of colleges I universities DegreeUnits Completed Course of Study I Major TypeAwardedattended Awarded 
QuarterSemester 

A) UC San Diego Yes No 
B) University of Southern California BA 1989Political Science Yes No x 
C) University of Southern California MAiPh.D. 1994Pol. Sci. I Gerentology Yes No x 

x 

Hours Completed Certificate Awarded: Course Studied D) Other schools I training 
completed: Yes No rn 

THIS FORM IS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT 



6. PLEASE FILL OUT THE FOLLOWING SECTION COMPLETELY. List experience that relates to the qualifications needed to 
serve on the local appointive body. Begin with your most recent experience. A resume or other supporting documentation 
may be attached but it may not be used as a substitute for completing this section. 

A) Dates (Month, Day, Year) Duties Performed 

From To 


WV\ ftt~ 
Employer's Name and Address 


Total: Yrs. Mos. 

tAv~
lZ-. 
~JrA 


Hrs. per week~ . Volunteer 0 

8) Dates (Month, Day, Year) Title Duties Performed 

From To 


lJ}(J.} WOd 
Employer's Name and Address 

Total: Yrs. , Mos. UVliv. of ~i~~Y; 

Bn'~!fOr-tj c:r 


Hrs. per wee~. Volunteer LI 

C) Dates (Month, Day, Year) 

From To 


I~(P IPff\ 
Total: Yrs. Mos. 

~ 

Hrs. per weekJQ. . Volunteer D 

D) Dates (Month , Day, Year) Duties Performed 

From To 
 [XreWJ~ T~~5CMAJ' 


rAvYl 
~YlJJd mMhti~Msch61 

Total: Yrs. Mos. ~~yY). 
~ 

Hrs. per week..1Q. . Volunteer D 

THIS FORM IS A PUBLIC DOCLIMENT 

http:week..1Q


7. How did you learn about this vacancy? 

Dccc Homepage DWalk-ln rElNewspaper Advertisement DDistrict Supervisor DOther __________ 

8. Do you have a Familial or Financial Relationship with a member of the Board of Supervisors? (Please see Board 
Resolution no. 2011/55, attached): No ~ Yes~ 

If Yes, please identify the nature of the relationship: ___________________ 

I CERTIFY that the statements made by me in this application are true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, and are made in good faith. I acknowledge and understand that all infonnation in this application is publically 
accessible. I understand and agree that misstatements 1omissions of material fact may cause forfeiture of my rights to serve 
on a Board, Committee, or Commission in Contra Costa County. 

Important Infonnation 

1. This applK:alion is a pubic cbcument aoo is suqect to the California Pubic Records Pd. (CA Gov. Code §625O-6270). 

2. 	Send the completed paper appOCation to the ()ffre ci the Clerk ci the Board at 651 Pine Street, Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553. 

3. A resune or cther relevant infoonation may be submitted with this appIK::ation. 

4. All members are required to take the foIbNing training: 1)The EroNn Pd., 2) The Better Government Ordinarx::e, and 3) Ethes Training. 

5. Members ci boards, commissK>ns, and committees may be required to: 1) file a Statement ci Econcrnc Interest Form also kooNn as a Form 
700, and 2) complete the State Ethes Trainng Course as reqJired by AS 1234. 

6. /ldvisory body meetings may be held n vaious locations and some locations may not be aa:;essbIe by pubic tra'lspcl1ation. 

7. Meeting dates aoo tines are suqect to dlange and may occur up to tv.,{) days per month. 

8. 	Some boards, committees, or cx::mnissK>ns may assign members to sulxx:rnmittees or worI< groups v.11dl may require an additional 
commitment ci tiTle. 

THIS FORM IS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT 



Nina Bhojwani Clark 

11 Meadow Court. Orinda, CA 94563 • (925) 212-9276 • clark_nina@yahoo.com 

Education 

Ph.D. in American Politics, University of Southern California 
Subfields: Gerontology, Law and Public Policy 
Dissertation: "The Politics of Self-Deliverance" 

M.A. in Political Science, University of Southern California 
B.A. in Political Science, University of Southern California 
University of California, San Diego 

Experience 

1994 

1991 
1989 

1985-1987 

University of California Berkeley Extension, Online Instructor, Berkeley, CA 
Currently teaching: "Introduction to American Politics". 

2001-present 

University of Bridgeport, Online Learning Instructor, Bridgeport, CT 
Courses taught: American Government and American Political Parties. 

2007-2008 

University of Bridgeport, Adjunct Assistant Professor, Bridgeport, CT 
IDEAL (Adult Continuing Education) Program 

1996-1999 

Courses taught: American Government; Women and Politics; American Political Parties; Civil 
Rights and Civil Liberties; The Politics of Death; A Matter of Life and Death; Psychopolitics; 
Juvenile Delinquency. 

Sacred Heart University, Fairfield, CT 1995-2000 
Director, General Electric Scholarship Program (1996-2000) Managed multicultural scholarship 

program. Initiated programs and services that supported the development of the multicultural 
community, such as leadership training and academic advisement. Coordinated and 
supervised group partiCipation in community service activities. In collaboration with career 
services, provided counseling and placement advisement. Co-authored a grant that was 
successfully renewed by the General Electric Corporation for three consecutive years (1997
1999). 

Director, Women's Studies Program (1997-2000) Provided the thought-leadership behind the 
Women's Studies Program. Organized monthly student events, advised students, developed 
and oversaw course offerings, and heightened student awareness of the Women's Studies 
minor. Orchestrated Sacred Heart University's annual Women's Leadership Conference. 

Adjunct Assistant Professor Department of Political Science. Courses taught: Women and Politics; 
Introduction to American Politics; Freshman Seminar. 

Coordinator of Supplemental Instruction University Learning Center (1996-1997) Supervised and 
advised Classroom Learning Assistants. 

Director of Internships and Cooperative Education Career Services (1995-1996) 

Extracurricular: Faculty Friend, 1997-1998; LaHispanidad co-advisor, 1998-1999; Campus Life 
Leadership Awards Committee, Spring 1999; Eating Disorders Task Force, 1997-1999; LIFE 
club adVisor, 1999-2000. 

The Amos Tuck School of Business Administration at Dartmouth College 
Admissions Counselor, Hanover, NH July 1994-May 1995 
Conducted campus and city applicant interviews, reviewed and evaluated applications, partiCipated 
in the organization of yield activities, and managed the Tuck Alumni Admissions Program. 

mailto:clark_nina@yahoo.com


1993 
NINA BHOJWANI CLARK PAGE 2 

Glendale Community College, Adjunct Instructor, Glendale, CA 

Social Sciences Division. Course taught: Introduction to American Government (Spring). 


Publications and Papers 

Book 
The Politics of Physician Assisted Suicide Garland Publishing, Inc., New York January 1997 

Articles 
"A Matter of Life and Death: An Update on Physician Assisted Suicide in Oregon" (with Janie 

Steckenrider) 
Southwest Journal on Aging 18: #1 2002 

"The Politics of Physician Assisted Death: California's Proposition 161 and the Attitudes of the 
Elderly" (with Phoebe S. Liebig) Journal of Politics and the Life Sciences 15: #2September 1996 

Community Service 

Orinda City Liason: Contra Costa Advisory Board, Council on Aging 
Glorietta Parents Club Children Helping Children Community Liason 
Meadow Swim and Tennis Club Swim Team Board 
Glorietta Elementary School Hospitality Co-Chair 
Orinda Intermediate School Hot lunch Program Volunteer 
Glorietta Book Swap Co-Chair 
Glorietta Elementary School Hot Lunch Program Volunteer 
Glorietta Elementary School Room Parent 

2014 
2013-present 
2010-present 
2009-present 
2007-present 

2005-2012 
2003-2013 

2002-present 











RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RESCIND Board action of October 20, 2015 regarding the resignation of Belinda Lucey from the District II Seat of

the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission, as recommended by Supervisor Candace Andersen. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

Ms. Lucey is moving out of the county after the first of the year, but would like to continue to serve on the First 5

until her move is complete.  

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Ms. Lucey will be unable to serve as the District II Commissioner and the Seat will remain vacant. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Jill Ray,

925-957-8860

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: District 2 Supervisor,   Maddy Book   

C. 23

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: RESCIND RESIGNATION FROM THE FIRST 5 CONTRA COSTA CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21659 to establish the class of Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor

(GPHJ) (represented) at salary plan and grade ZA5 1459 ($4,719 - $5,736); and reclassify one Lead Materials

Technician (represented) (91VD) position #1979 at salary plan and grade QS5 1359 ($4,150 - $5,044) and its

incumbent to Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor (GPHJ) (represented) at salary plan and grade ZA5 1459

($4,719 - $5,736) in the Public Works Department.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This action will result in a cost to the Department of approximately $453.00 per month or $5,436.00 annually

(including $2,174 of pension costs), which will be covered by third party revenues. The anticipated cost for fiscal

year 2015/2016 is $2,718. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2014, former Lead Resource Center Attendant, suddenly and prior to her reclassification to Recycle & Work

Program Supervisor, retired. Consequently, the majority of her duties were assigned to the Lead Materials

Technician, including, but not limited to supervising all employees in the Recycle Center Division, coordinating all of

the pick-ups and moves for all County Departments, interviewing, selecting and training employees, setting

employee pay and recommending pay changes, evaluating and signing performances reviews, and reviewing and

signing off on time sheets and approving time off. Additionally, the Lead Materials Technician was already

responsible for all of the surplus activities, including but not limited to, collecting all surplus items from County

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Kelli Zenn,

925-313-2108

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: James Hicks,   Cheryl Koch ,   Christine Salam ,   Eva Barrios   

C. 24

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Establish class of Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor and Reclassify Lead Materials Technician and Incumbent



departments, taking inventory, recycling items or selling items using on-line auction, and collecting and recording

sales revenue. After reviewing the full scope of the Lead Materials Technician’s duties and level of responsibilities,

80% of the preponderance was found within former Recycle & Work Program Supervisor classification (currently

inactive class). Thus, in the effort to improve efficiency of services, management and coordination of the daily

operations of the recycle and surplus unit in the Public Works Department Materials Management Division, and to

properly classify and compensate the Lead Materials Technician incumbent, this personnel action is requesting to

establish the Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor and reclassify current Lead Materials Technician and its

position. 

In accordance with Section 14.4.E – 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Promotion via Reclassification Without Examination, of the MOU between the County and IFPTE, Local 21, the

Union agrees with the action.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not carried out, the Lead Materials Technician will not be properly compensated for the work he is

performing.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 21659 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21659 

DATE  5/13/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Public Works Budget Unit No. 0079  Org No. 4035  Agency No. A65 

Action Requested:  ESTABLISH the class of Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor and reclassify one Lead Materials 
Technician position #1979 and its incumbent to Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor in the Public Works Department. 

Proposed Effective Date:  9/1/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $5,436.00 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $2,718.00 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  100% Third Party Revenues 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  J.Bueren 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 L.Driscoll 11/5/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  11/5/2015 
ADOPT P300 21659 to establish the class of Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor (GPHJ) (represented) at salary plan and 
grade ZA5 1459 ($4,719 - $5,736); and reclassify one Lead Materials Technician (represented) (91VD) position #1979 at 
salary plan and grade QS5 1359 ($4,150 - $5,044) and its incumbent to Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor (GPHJ) 
(represented) at salary plan and grade ZA5 1459 ($4,719- $5,736).      
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
  9/1/2015(Date) L.Lopez 11/5/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/5/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources D.Twa 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/5/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21754 to add one (1) Social Service Program Analyst (X4SH)

(represented) position at salary plan and grade KZ5 1642 ($5,657-$6,876) in the Employment and Human Services

Department, Workforce Services Bureau.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, the costs associated with this action will be approximately $122,737 annually with benefits, including

$26,196 in pension costs. This position will be funded by 45% Federal revenue, 45% State revenue, and 10% County

funds.

BACKGROUND: 

The Employment and Human Services Department is requesting to add one permanent full time Social Service

Program Analyst for the Medi-Cal and CalFresh Services Center (MCSC). The center handles all of the county’s over

126,000 on-going CalFresh and Medi-Cal cases. The MCSC processes Income and Eligibility Verification System

(IEVS) reports for all active CalFresh cases. Information provided in the IEVS report requires the agency 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Roxana Mendoza, (925)

313-1672

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: EHSD,   Human Resources,   Human Resources,   Otilia Parra   

C. 25

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one (1) Social Service Program Analyst for Workforce Services Bureau of EHSD



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

to take appropriate actions on the households based upon this information. 

The Program Analyst is needed to understand the programmatic impacts of this and implications for the MCSC.

This requires an understanding of the CalFresh regulations as well as the business process. MCSC must take

appropriate programmatic actions in these cases consistent with these regulations. The MCSC must provide

additional programmatic training for staff surrounding SAR 7 and Change Reporting, relay this information to

customers, and budget cases accordingly; this item is randomly reviewed to ensure compliance. New CalFresh

regulations must be implemented at the MCSC. The Program Analyst at the MCSC will be needed to take the

regulations, understand them and create training materials for staff in an ongoing effort to comply with this

finding. 

The manager assigned to the MCSC has 18 direct reports and staff split between two offices located in Antioch

and Richmond. The Program Analyst is needed to assist with meeting the requirements of the CalFresh

Management Evaluation by understanding the program regulations for that program and developing, writing and

publishing them in the Business Processes for staff to meet the requirements. This position will analyze the

regulations and the operational impact, support training for staff and make administrative recommendations to the

manager. 

This position is also the primary person assigned to work with the contractor (InTelegy) on the Workload

Distribution and the Appointment Scheduling Tool implementation to streamline workload tasks while staying

within program regulations. The position will continue to assist the manager at the MCSC with upcoming

business process changes to the telephone schedule, phone queues as well as bifurcating the 126,000 cases into

team caseloads while staying within mandatory regulations.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this position is not added the MCSC division will have insufficient staff support to ensure that staff has updated

current regulations and business processes to comply with the CalFresh Management Evaluation and adequately

implement and maintain the Workload Distribution tool and Appointment Scheduling Tool.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21754 EHSD 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21754 

DATE  9/9/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Employment and Human Services Dept. Budget Unit No. 504  Org No. 5455  Agency No. A19 

Action Requested:  Add one (1) full time SS Program Analyst (X4SH) position in the Medi=Cal& CalFresh Services Center 
(MCSC) in Workforce Services Bureau  AR32776 

Proposed Effective Date:  10/6/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $122,737.00 Net County Cost  $12,273.00 

Total this FY  $102,281.00 N.C.C. this FY  $10,228.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  45% Federal, 45% State funds, 10% County 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Roxana Mendoza 313-1672 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Kevin J. Corrigan 9/17/15 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  10/19/2015 
Add one (1) Social Service Program Analyst (X4SH) (represented) full time position, allocate to salary schedule KZ5 1642 
($5,657-$6,876) in the Workforce Services Bureau of the Employment and Human Services Department. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Lisa Lopez 11/3/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/3/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Enid Mendoza 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/3/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21755 to add one (1) Social Services Program Analyst (X4SH)

(represented) position at Salary Plan and Grade KZ5 1642 ($5,657-$6,876) in Employment and Human Services

Department, Workforce Service Bureau.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, this position will have an approximate annual cost of $122,744. The position will be funded by 45%

Federal revenue, 45% State revenue, and 10% County funds. The annual pension cost is approximately $26,196.

BACKGROUND: 

The Employment and Human Services Department requests to add one permanent full time Social Service Program

Analyst in the Workforce Services (WFS) Bureau. The EHSD WFS Bureau policy division provides policy guidance

and direction for income maintenance programs including CalWORKs, Welfare to Work, Child Care, CalFresh and

Medi-Cal. The corrective action program analyst 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Holly Trieu (925)

313-1560

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: EHSD,   Human Resources,   Human Resources,   Otilia Parra   

C. 26

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Social Services Program Analyst in the Workforce Services Bureau of EHSD



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

will be responsible for the monitoring, tracking and coordinating the corrective action plans (CAP) and activities

in the WFS Bureau. The CAPs are created as a result of mandated State and Federal audits such as the

Management Evaluation, Local Program Access Review, the CalWORKs Work Participation rates (WPR), and

back log of Medi-Cal pending applications associated with the implementation of the Affordable Care Act. In

addition, corrective action strategies and activities are developed due to error trends identified by state Quality

Control and Program Integrity Unit case reviews. Working closely with QC and Program Integrity staff, the

analyst will coordinate, track and monitor activity that will mitigate payment accuracy errors and the negative

error rate for the CalFresh program.

Responsibilities for this program analyst (corrective action coordinator) include project management and

coordination of State and Federal audit reviews; review and analyze state and federal regulatory material;

develop, monitor and track all corrective action plans in the WFS bureau; review statistical information pertaining

to the operations of income maintenance programs; prepare written reports and staff correspondence; chair the

Department’s corrective action committee; may provide training and or training materials on policies and

procedures related to assignment; conduct internal operational studies and make recommendations for appropriate

actions. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this position is not added the WFS Bureau will not be able to adequately track and monitor CAPs which could

hinder our ability to increase CalFresh participation; improve processing of Medi-Cal application approvals; and

increase the WPR hours. Dedicating a full time program analyst to corrective action will support existing program

analyst ensuring program compliance and application processing time lines are met.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21755 EHSD 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21755 

DATE  9/2/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Employment and Human Services Budget Unit No. 0504  Org No. 5450  Agency No. A19 

Action Requested:  Add one Social Services Program Analyst (X4SH) in the Workforce Services Bureau of the Employment 
and Human Services Department. 

Proposed Effective Date:  10/6/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $122,744.00 Net County Cost  $12,274.00 

Total this FY  $92,058.00 N.C.C. this FY  $9,206.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  45% Federal, 45% State, 10% County Revenue 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Holly Trieu 3-1560 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Kevin J. Corrigan 9/17/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  10/19/2015 
Add one (1) Social Services Program Analyst  (X4SH) (represented) full time position at Salary Plan and Grade KZ5 1642 
($5657-$6876) in the Workforce Services Bureau of the Employment and Human Services Department. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Lisa Lopez 10/30/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/3/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Enid Mendoza 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/3/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21764 to cancel one (1) part-time (20/40) Library Assistant- Journey

Level (3KVB) (represented) vacant position No. 11832 and increase the hours of one (1) part-time (20/40) Library

Assistant-Journey Level (3KVB) (represented) vacant position No. 6040 to full-time (40/40) at salary plan and grade

QXX-1030 ($3,078 - $3,931) in the Library Department, Martinez Library. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, this action will result in an annual cost saving to the Library Fund of approximately $12,337. No

fiscal impact to the County General Fund. This position is funded in the Library budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

As part of a budget strategy to reduce benefits costs and to increase our competitive ability to fill vacant positions,

the Library carefully evaluated the possibility of merging part-time positions into full-time positions and determined

that it could make these position changes at the Martinez Library. Canceling one part-time Library Assistant-Journey

Level position and increasing the hours of another part-time Library Assistant-Journey Level position will result in a

net savings of $12,337 annually. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If these position changes are not implemented, the Library will not realize a cost savings and will remain

competitively disadvantaged in filling its vacant positions. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Michelle McCauley,

(925) 927-3202

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Cheryl Koch,   James Hicks,   Eldreai Ellis,   Michelle McCauley   

C. 27

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Jessica Hudson, County Librarian

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Cancel One (1) Library Assistant-Journey Level Position and Increase the Hours of One (1) Library Assistant-Journey

Level Position



ATTACHMENTS

P300 21764 Cxl PT Library Asst and Inc Hours of Lib Asst to full

time 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21764 

DATE  9/25/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  County Library Budget Unit No. 0621  Org No. 3753  Agency No. 85 

Action Requested:  Cancel one (1) part-time (20/40) Library Assistant-Journey Level (3KVB) (represented) position No. 11832 
and increase the hours of one (1) part-time (20/40) Library Assistant-Journey Level  (3KVB) (represented) position No. 6040 
to full-time (40/40). 

Proposed Effective Date:  12/1/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  ($12,337.00) Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  ($7,197.00) N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  Cost Savings 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Jessica A. Hudson 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 BR for JE 10/2/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE        
Cancel one (1) part-time (20/40) Library Assistant-Journey Level  (3KVB) (represented) position No. 11832 and increase the 
hours of one (1) part-time (20/40) Library Assistant-Journey Level  (3KVB) (represented) position No. 6040 to full-time (40/40). 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date)             
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/2/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources /s/  Julie DiMaggio Enea 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/2/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21767 to establish the classification of Probation Chief of

Administrative Services (APDJ) (unrepresented) and reclassify one (1) Administrative Services Officer (APDB)

(unrepresented) position No. 533 and its incumbent to the newly established classification at salary plan and grade

B82 1894 ($7,482 - $9,117) in the Probation Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$17,022 annually, $4,577 of which is attributable to employer pension costs; 100% General Fund. The proposed

increase will be offset by continued salary savings from ongoing vacancies. 

BACKGROUND: 

Upon review of the duties performed by the incumbent it was determined that the position is improperly classified. In

2010, as a result of the closure of the Office of Revenue Collections, the Probation Department assumed collection

responsibilities for Public Defender fees, Juvenile Hall fees, OAYRF fee and electronic monitoring fees. The

incumbent assumed management and supervision responsibilities for the newly created Probation Collections Unit.

The incumbent is 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Philip Kader (925)

313-4195

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Cheryl Koch,   James Hicks,   Fina Prak,   Cindy Nieman   

C. 28

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Philip F. Kader, County Probation Officer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Establish the classification of Probation Chief of Administrative Services and reclassify one Administrave Services

Officer position



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

responsible to provide input on budgetary and administrative decisions for the institutions and the field as well as

prepare directives and address departmental issues while working closely with business partners such as Risk

Management, County Counsel, Labor Relations and various outside auditors.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

This position is a pivotal and critical position in the Probation Department and if this action is not approved the

Probation Department will be unable to compensate the incumbent appropriately for the level of work being

performed.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21767 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21767 

DATE  10/8/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Probation Budget Unit No. 0308  Org No. 3000  Agency No. 30 

Action Requested:  ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21767 to establish the classification of Probation Chief of 
Administrative Services (APDJ) and reclassify one (1) Administrative Services Officer (APDB) (unrepresented) position No. 
533 and its incumbent to the newly established classification in the Probation Department. 

Proposed Effective Date:  11/1/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $17,011.00 Net County Cost  $17,011.00 

Total this FY  $11,341.00 N.C.C. this FY  $11,341.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  100% General Fund 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Danielle Fokkema 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 TME 10/8/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  10/23/2015 
Establish the classification of Probation Chief of Administrative Services (APDJ) (unrepresented) and reclassify one (1) 
Administrative Services Officer (APDB) (unrepresented) position No. 533 and its incumbent at salary plan and grade B82 
1894 ($7,482 - $9,117) in the Probation Department.  
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Fina Prak, Human Resources Consultant 10/23/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/2/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources TME 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/2/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21780 to add one (1) Administrative Aide position (AP7A) at salary

level B875-0972 ($2,915-$4,522); two (2) Senior Health Education Specialist positions (VMWE) at salary level

QT5-1543 ($5,128-$6,234); three (3) Health Education Specialist positions (VMWD) at salary level QT5-1207

($3,677-$4,469); and one (1) Public Health Program Specialist II position (VBND) at salary level ZA5-1711

($6,057-$7,362) in the Health Services Department. (All represented)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, this action will result in annual costs of approximately $765,224, which includes $160,872 in pension

costs. The cost will be funded 100% by Teenage Pregnancy Prevention Program grant funds.

BACKGROUND: 

The Public Health Clinic Services Unit of the Health Services Department received notification from the Department

of Health and Human Services regarding a new grant award from the Office of Adolescent Health (OAH) Teen

Pregnancy Prevention (TPP) Program. The OAH TPP Program is a national, evidence-based competitive grant

program that invests in the implementation of evidence-based TPP Programs. It provides funding to develop and

evaluate new and innovative approaches to prevent teen pregnancy. The award consists of a 5-year grant funding 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Arlene J. Lozada

(925)957-5269

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 29

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add seven positions in the Health Services Department



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

of $1.25 million per year to implement the Teenage Pregnancy Prevention Program. It has been determined that

adding the seven (7) full-time positions in the Health Services Department is necessary to complete the

requirements of the grant award. Projects funded under this program are critical in order to continue the reduction

rates of teen pregnancy and to eliminate existing disparities in Contra Costa County.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not approved, the Teen Pregnancy Prevention (TPP) Program requirements will not me

accomplished. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21780 HSD 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21780 

DATE  10/22/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Health Services Budget Unit No. 0450  Org No. 5792  Agency No. A18 

Action Requested:  Add one (1) Administrative Aide position (AP7A); two (2) Senior Health Education Specialist positions 
(VMWE); three (3) Health Education Specialist positions (VMWD); and one (1) Public Health Program Specialist II position 
(VBND) in the Health Service Department. 

 

Proposed Effective Date:  11/11/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $765,224.71 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $446,380.68 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  100% Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program grant funds 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Arlene J. Lozada 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Enid Mendoza 11/3/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE        
Exempt from Human Resources review under delegated authority. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date)             
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   11/3/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Enid Mendoza 
  Other:  Approve as requested by the department. ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 11/3/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a lease amendment with Sand

Creek Business Associates I, LLC, for 4,046 square feet of additional medical and office space for the Brentwood

Health Clinic located at 171 Sand Creek Road, Units A through G, Brentwood, at an initial monthly rental of $20,258

for a term of ten years, as requested by the Health Services Department, under the terms and conditions set forth in

the lease. (WLP883) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Health Services - Enterprise Fund I. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Brentwood Health Clinic has experienced a major increase in demand for medical services due to the growth in

the eligible population. The current clinic is at capacity on a daily basis and receives over 1,000 requests for primary

care appointments per month that cannot be scheduled due to lack of space. Support Services are using exam rooms

because there is inadequate office space. This additional medical and office space will allow integrating both suites

into one clinic expanding 8 additional exam rooms, 1 additional treatment room, 10 workstations, and 2 offices for

Women and Infant Children’s programs. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Julin Perez-Berntsen,

925-313-2010

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 30

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 171 Sand Creek Road, Units A through G, Brentwood - lease amendment for HSD.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this Second Amendment is not approved, the County will not provide medical and counseling services from this

location, and the County will incur additional expenses in finding a new location.

ATTACHMENTS

Second Amendment to Lease 

Work Letter 



































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE clarification of Board action of August 18, 2015 (C.55), which authorized Standard Amendment

Agreement #29-502-36 (State 14-90053, A01) with the Department of Health Care Services, effective July 1 2014,

for continuation of the Drug Medi-Cal Substance Abuse Treatment Services. The August 18, 2015 Board Order

incorrectly stated the payment increase amount of $1,286,253, and this Board Order clarifies the amendment to

Standard Agreement #29-502-34 (as amended by Amendment Agreement #29-502-35), reflects a funding increase

amount payable to County of $1,411,253, resulting in a new payment limit not to exceed $28,938,125 in funding,

with no change in the original term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this amendment agreement will result in an increase of up to $1,411,253 in funding to a new total of

$28,938,125 from the Department of Health Care Services. No County match required. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Standard Agreement #29-502 is a combined Negotiated Net Amount (NNA) and Drug/Medi-Cal contract. The

NNA Agreement requires counties to provide Drug/Medi-Cal services 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

925-957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: J Pigg,   N Rios   

C. 31

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Clarification of Payment Increase for August 18, 2015, Board Order Item #C.55 with the Department of Health Care

Services 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

up to their full State General Fund allocation for Drug/Medi-Cal match. If the required services exceed the allocation,

counties may access Drug/Medi-Cal reserve set aside for this purpose. On December 2, 2014, the Board of

Supervisors approved Standard Agreement #29-502-34 (as amended by Amendment Agreement #29-502-35), with

the Department of Health Care Services, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017, to provide

Substance Abuse Treatment services. 

This board order clarifies Board Order (C.55) approved by the Board of Supervisors on August 18, 2015 to

accurately reflect the correct amended payment increase amount of $1,411,253 for standard (Amendment) Agreement

#29-502-36, which increases funding and makes technical adjustment to the budget for the Drug Medi-Cal Substance

Abuse Treatment Services with no change in the original term, through June 30, 2017.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved the County will not be able to receive additional funds to support continuation of

the Substance Abuse Services, Prevention and Treatment Program.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Clerk-Recorder, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with the

California Secretary of State to extend the term of the contract from December 31, 2015 through March 31, 2016 with

no change in the original payment limit to the County of $566,000 for funding equipment, software, and other costs

related to State and Federal voting requirements under the Help America Vote Act (HAVA). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Federal funds (CFDA #90.401). No County matching funds are required. 

BACKGROUND: 

The contract is for the remaining balance of the County's HAVA 301 grant, which the Board authorized on October 4,

2011. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The County will lose these funds if not claimed by December 31, 2015. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  925-335-7808 Scott

Konopasek

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 32

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Joseph E. Canciamilla, Clerk-Recorder

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment to Clerk-Recorder-Registrar HAVA Contract with the Secretary of State



ATTACHMENTS

HAVA contract 





































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Interagency

Agreement #28-697-13 with Antioch Unified School District, a government agency, to pay County an amount not to

exceed $5,600, for the Public Health Clinic Services Scoliosis Screening Project for its 7th and 8th grade students,

for the period from September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this Interagency Agreement will allow Antioch School District to pay County $4.00 per student to

support the Public Health Clinic Services Scoliosis Screening Project. No County funds match required. 

BACKGROUND: 

Antioch School District has requested that Contra Costa Health Services, Public Health Clinic Services, provide

Scoliosis Screening Clinics at their middle schools for their 7th grade girls and 8th grade boys, throughout the school

year. By providing an outreach program such as the scoliosis screening of their students, the School District is able to

provide a valuable diagnostic and preventative service to their students who might otherwise go untreated. Approval

of Interagency Agreement #28-697-13 will allow Agency to offer continuous scoliosis-screening services to its

students, through August 31, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  DANIEL PEDDYCORD

(925) 313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A FLOYD,   N RIOS   

C. 33

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Interagency Agreement #28-697-13 with Antioch Unified School District



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the County will not receive funds in order to screen for scoliosis in approximately

1,400 7th and 8th grade students in Antioch Unified School District.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

N/A



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Grant

Award #29-544-2 (CA1306L9T051400) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

(HUD), for McKinney-Vento Act funds, to pay County an amount not to exceed $132,682, for the County’s

Continuum of Care Project, for the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this award will result in an amount not to exceed $132,682, payable to the County from HUD

McKinney-Vento Act funds for County’s Continuum of Care Project. 25% County match is required. No additional

appropriation is needed. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Contra Costa Continuum of Care (CoC), through its Inter-jurisdictional Council on Homelessness was awarded

funds for CoC Planning. The CoC’s planning needs and proposed activities include: 1) Evaluating the outcomes of

CoC and ESG funded projects; 2) Preparing and submitting an application to HUD on behalf 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon (925)

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: J Pigg,   N Rios   

C. 34

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Grant Award #29-544-2 with United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

of the entire Continuum of Care membership; 3) Conducting a sheltered and unsheltered point-in-time count; and 4)

Monitoring recipients and sub-recipients and enforcing compliance with CoC program requirements. The CoC’s

Executive Committee, with the CoC coordinator, will coordinate and implement the activities. This will improve the

members’ ability to comply with current and new Mckinney-Vento regulations related to their funding from HUD. 

Approval of Grant Award #29-544-2 will allow the County to continue to receive funding for the Continuum of Care

project, through December 31, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this award is not accepted, the County will not receive funding to support the Continuum of Care project.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Grant

Agreement #29-540-2 (CA1071L9T051402) from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

(HUD), Supportive Housing Program to receive McKinney-Vento funding, payable to County in an amount not to

exceed $296,528, for the County’s Homeless Destination Home Program, for the period from December 1, 2015

through November 30, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this grant will result in an amount not to exceed $296,528 of funding from HUD. Required 25% cash

match in the amount of $28,892 will be provided by County. Match is already appropriated in the budget. No

additional appropriations are required. 

BACKGROUND: 

The County’s Homeless Destination Home Program provides permanent supportive housing to adults throughout

Contra Costa County. Case management, assistance with enrolling in mainstream benefits and services, and access 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon (925)

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 35

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Grant Agreement #29-540-2 from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

to peer support groups are all part of a larger continuum of services that allow individuals to work through many of

the issues that led to their homelessness, while simultaneously moving toward a more sustainable future. Other

benefits of the program include assistance in accessing mainstream benefits like Medi-Cal and SSI/SSDI, referral to a

host of services, health and life skills education, as well as, crisis intervention and counseling. Participants enrolled

will have access to a strong network of services that work to resolve individuals' issues. This network includes,

County Behavioral Health Services/Mental Health, County Health Care for the Homeless, and County Alcohol and

Other Drug Services. Ultimately, with the foundation of a comfortable, permanent place to live, combined with such

extensive support services, disabled and chronically homeless individuals can successfully reintegrate into the

community with the skills and community network necessary to achieve and maintain a better quality of life.

On March 4, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Grant Award #29-540-1 with HUD for the County’s

Homeless Destination Home Program, through November 30, 2015.

Approval of Grant Agreement #29-540-2 will allow the County to continue the HUD Permanent Supportive Housing

Program, through November 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the County will not receive funding to support the County’s Homeless Destination

Home Program .

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment to extend the term to February 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 with the Catholic Council for the

Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of Stockton for the County to provide food services to the childcare program at El

Concilio Preschool with no change to the payment limit of $28,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No net County costs.

El Concilio Preschool has agreed to reimburse the County, up to the limits of the California Child and Adult Food

Program, for all food service expenses related to this contract. The County will provide breakfast and lunch to 20

children at the rate of $7.25 per day per child. 

BACKGROUND: 

El Concilio is a Migrant Head Start program operating through San Joaquin County’s program. The preschool

provides services to migrant children for only a limited number 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  CSB (925)

681-6304

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Jagjit Bhambra,   Sam Mendoza,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 36

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015 Food Services Agreement amendment with the Catholic Council for the Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of

Stockton



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

of months each year. The Community Services Bureau would provide meals that meet the HS performance

Standards and USDA meal guidelines. At some point in the future the Community Services Bureau may operate

the program in the months the school is closed to ensure continuity of care for those families.

The Center, located adjacent to Community Services Bureau's (CSB) Los Nogales Center serves the migrant

farm-worker families of Contra Costa County. Both Head Start programs have similar missions and similar client

needs. The San Joaquin agency has just taken over the E Concilio program and is unable to provide services to the

families due to a lack of facility space to provide nutritious meals to the children. CSB has offered to assist with

this unmet need for the following reasons:

• The same community is served;

• The continuity of services – the migrant program operates a limited amount per year. CSB would like to

continue serving those families since they qualify for our program;

• Besides our program, El Concilio is the only publicly funded program to provide these services to families. It is a

great need.

• Assisting with the nutrition program is one way that the two programs can partner.

The board approved the agreement on February 3, 2015. This amendment is to extend the term with no change to

the payment limit.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, County will be unable to provide food services to its childcare partner.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department Community Services Bureau supports three of Contra Costa

County’s community outcomes - Outcome 1: “Children Ready for and Succeeding in School,” Outcome 3:

“Families that are Economically Self-sufficient,” and, Outcome 4: “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing.”

These outcomes are achieved by offering comprehensive services, including high quality early childhood

education, nutrition, and health services to low-income children throughout Contra Costa County.

ATTACHMENTS

Food Service Agreement 



  Number:  39-926-1 

1 
  ______      ______ 

                                                                                  Agency               County 

STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR  
FOOD SERVICE / VENDING 

 
This Agreement is entered into on this first day of February 2015 by and between The 
Catholic Council for the Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of Stockton dba. El 
Concilio Preschool, hereinafter referred to as the Agency and Contra Costa County 
through and by its Employment & Human Services Department, Community 
Services Bureau hereinafter referred to as the Vendor.  
 
THE VENDOR AGREES TO: 
 

1. Prepare and supply the meals, inclusive of milk, to El Concilio Pre-School at 
their Nogales site at 321 Orchard Drive #B, Brentwood, CA 94513, by 
8:00 a.m. each day of Vendor operation, Monday through Friday in 
accordance with the number of meals requested and at the cost(s) per meal 
listed below.  FY 2014-2015 rates noted below. 

 
For preschool children ages 18 to 36 months: 

 
Breakfast   $3.00 each  Lunch  $4.25 each 
 
Supplement/Snack $n/a each  Supper $_n/a_each 

 
2. Provide the Agency the menu for each month at least five days prior to the 

beginning of the month to which the menu applies.   
 
3. Assure that each meal provided to the Agency under this contract meets the 

minimum nutritional requirements as defined by the California Child and Adult 
Care Food Program. 

 
4. Maintain on a daily basis an accurate count of the number of meals by meal 

type, prepared for the Agency.  Meal count documentation must include the 
number of meals requested by the Agency. 

 
5. Allow the Agency to increase or decrease the number of meal orders, as 

needed when the request is made within three business days of the 
scheduled delivery time. 

 
6. Present to the Agency an invoice accompanied by reports no later than the 

20th day of each month that itemizes the previous month’s delivery.  The 
Vendor agrees to forfeit payment for meals that are not ready within one (1) 
hour of the agreed upon delivery time, are spoiled or unwholesome at the 
time of delivery, are short of components, or do not otherwise meet the meal 
requirements contained in this agreement. 

 



  Number:  39-926-1 

2 
  ______      ______ 

                                                                                  Agency               County 

7. Provide the Agency with a copy of current health certifications for the food 
service facility in which it prepares meals.  The Vendor shall ensure that all 
health and sanitation requirement of the California Retail Food Facilities Law, 
and chapter 4 of the California Health and Safety Code, are met all times. 

 
8. Not subcontract for the total meal, with or without milk, or for the assembly of 

the meal.  
 

9. As required by the State Drug-Free workplace Act of 1990 (Government Code 
§ 8350 et. seq.) and the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and 
implementing regulations, Vendor certifies that it will continue to provide a 
drug-free workplace.   

 
 
THE AGENCY AGREES TO: 
 
1.  Notify Vendor of necessary increases or decreases in number of meal orders 

within three business days of the scheduled delivery time.  Errors in meal order 
counts made by the Agency shall be the responsibility of the Agency, and 
Agency shall pay Vendor for all meals ordered even if Agency erroneously 
ordered an excess number of meals. 

 
2. Ensure that an Agency representative is available at each delivery site, at the 

specified time on each specified delivery day to receive, inspect and sign for the 
requested number of meals.  This individual will verify the temperature, quality, 
and quantity of each meal service delivery.  The Agency assures the Vendor that 
this individual will be trained in health and sanitation practices.  

 
3. Provide personnel to serve meals, clean the serving and eating areas, and 

assemble transport carts and auxiliary items for pick-up/delivery by the Vendor 
no later than twenty-four hours following the delivery of such carts.   

 
4. Notify the Vendor within ten days of receipt of the next month’s proposed menu 

of any changes, additions, or deletions that will be required in the menu request. 
 

5. As required by the State Drug-Free workplace Act of 1990 (Government Code § 
8350 et. seq.) and the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and 
implementing regulations, Agency certifies that it will continue to provide a drug-
free workplace.   

 
6. Pay the Vendor by the thirtieth day of each month the full amount as presented 

in the monthly itemized invoice.  The Agency agrees to notify the Vendor within 
48 hours of receipt of any discrepancy in the invoice. 

 
7. Agency shall defend, indemnify, save and hold harmless Vendor and it’s officers 

and employees from any and all claims, costs and liability for any damages, 



  Number:  39-926-1 

3 
  ______      ______ 

                                                                                  Agency               County 

sickness, death or injury to person(s) or property, including without limitation all 
consequential damages, from any cause whatsoever arising directly or indirectly 
from or connected with the operations or services of Agency or its agents, 
servants, employees or subcontractors hereunder, save and except claims or 
litigation arising through the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct of Vendor 
or its officers or employees.  Agency will reimburse Vendor for any expenditures, 
including reasonable attorney fees, Vendor may make by reason of the matters 
that are the subject of this indemnification, and if requested by Vendor, will 
defend any claims or litigation to which this indemnification provision applies at 
the sole cost and expense of Agency. 

 
 
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
The effective date of this Contract amendment is February 1, 2015.  It terminates on 
October 31, 2015. This contract may be terminated by either party, in its sole 
discretion, upon thirty-day advance written notice thereof to the other, and may be 
cancelled immediately by written mutual consent.  
 



  Number:  39-926-1 

4 
  ______      ______ 

                                                                                  Agency               County 

IN WITINESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS 
AGREEMENT AS OF THE DATES INDICATED BELOW: 
 
 

 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S OFFICE 
 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
          Designee 

 

 
COUNTY COUNSEL 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
          Deputy 
 

 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

EMPLOYMENT & HUMAN SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

 
 

 
By:  _____________________________ 
         Director / Designee 

 
 
       ___________________________ 
          Title 
 
 

       (925)______________________  
          Telephone 
 
 

        _____________________________ 
          Date 

 
 
 

 
THE CATHOLIC COUNCIL FOR THE 

SPANISH SPEAKING OF THE 
DIOCESE OF STOCKTON DBA. EL 

CONCILIO PRESCHOOL 
 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
         Official Signature 

 
 
       _____________________________ 
          Title 
 
 

       _______________________ 
          Telephone 
 
 

        _____________________________ 
          Date 

 

 
       Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors Approval via Board Order      
       (attached) 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a contract with the Contra Costa

County Housing Authority, including mutual indemnification, to pay the County an amount not to exceed $488,000 to

provide law enforcement services at public housing developments for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

2. RATIFY the contract for the term above. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Revenue, $488,000. Budgeted. 100% Housing Authority. 

BACKGROUND: 

If authorized, the Office of the Sheriff will continue to provide two full-time deputies for law enforcement services in

the Las Deltas and Bayo Vista public housing developments. The deputies are integral parts of the communities and

provide residents with an increased sense of police awareness and trust. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Sandra Brown

925-335-1553

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 37

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Law Enforcement Services for Contra Costa County Housing Authority 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County will not have authority to enter into a new contract with the Housing Authority of Contra Costa for

reimbursement revenue to cover the costs of Deputy Sheriff assignments to various housing developments. This will

result in a revenue shortfall in the Sheriff's 2015/16 budget.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#72-020-3 with Pittsburg Unified School District (PUSD), a government agency, in an amount not to exceed

$125,000 to provide Teenage Pregnancy Project services to students, for the period from September 1, 2015 through

August 31, 2020.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This is funded 100% United State Department of Health and Human Services Teenage Pregnancy Project (TPP) Grant. (No rate

increase)

BACKGROUND: 

This Agreement meets the social needs of County’s population by implementing a TPP with the goal to reduce teen

birth rates among youth ages 15 - 19 years old who attend Riverside Continuation and Pittsburg High Schools. On

May 19, 2010, the Department and PUSD entered into “Memorandum of Understanding: Contra Costa Health

Services and Pittsburg Unified School 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Daniel Peddycord

313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 38

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #72-020-3 with Pittsburg Unified School District



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

District” (MOU), for the period from September 1, 2010 through August 31, 2015, to implement TPP at Riverside

Continuation and Pittsburg High Schools, and Hillview and Rancho Medanos Junior High Schools.

On March 15, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved Interagency Agreement #72–020 (as amended by

Amendment Agreements #72-020-1 and #72-020-2) allowing the agency to implement the TPP within the PUSD

including providing a substitute teacher, for the period from September 1, ,2010 through August 31, 2015. 

Approval of Interagency Agreement #72-020-3 will allow the Contractor to continue to provide TPP services to

students at Martín Luther King Jr. Junior High School and other schools specified in the agreement t, through August

31, 2020.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, students will not receive services from this Contractor. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This TPP program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Children and Youth Healthy and Preparing for Healthy Adulthood”; and “Communities that

are Safe and Provide a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include a

decrease in the number of teenage pregnancies in East Contra Costa County.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

(1) APPROVE contract General Conditions, Technical Specifications, and the Construction Task Catalog for Job

Order Contracts 001, 002, and 003.

(2) DETERMINE that each of Sea Pac Engineering, Inc. (“Sea Pac”), John F. Otto, Inc. (“Otto”), and Mark Scott

Construction, Inc. (“Mark Scott”) submitted the lowest responsive and responsible bids for the award of the job order

contracts.

(3) AWARD a job order construction contract for repair, remodeling, and other repetitive work to be performed

pursuant to the Construction Task Catalog to each of Sea Pac, Otto, and Mark Scott, each in the amount of

$2,000,000 for a term of one year each, and DIRECT that the Public Works Director, or designee, prepare the

contracts.

(4) DIRECT that Sea Pac, Otto, and Mark Scott shall each submit two good and sufficient security bonds

(performance and payment bonds) in the amount of $2,000,000 each.

(5) ORDER that, after each contractor has signed the job order contract and returned it, together with the bonds,

evidence of insurance, and other required documents, and the Public Works Director has reviewed and found them to

be sufficient, the Public Works Director, or designee, is authorized to sign the contract for this Board.

(6) ORDER that, upon signature of the job order contract by the Public Works Director, or designee, any bid bonds

posted by such bidder are to be exonerated 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ramesh Kanzaria, (925)

313-2000

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: PW Accounting,   PW CPM Division Manager,   PW CPM Clerical,   Auditor's Office,   County Counsel's Office,   County Administrator's Office,   County

Administrator's Office   

C. 39

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: AWARD Annual Job Order Contracts 001, 002, and 003 to Sea Pac Engineering, John F. Otto, Inc., and Mark Scott

Construction (WW0862) 





RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

and any checks or cash submitted for security shall be returned.

(7) AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to sign any escrow agreements prepared for this project to

permit the direct payment of retentions into escrow or the substitution of securities for moneys withheld by the

County to ensure performance under the contracts, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 22300.

(8) AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to order changes or additions to the work pursuant to

Public Contract Code Section 20142.

(9) DELEGATE, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 4114, to the Public Works Director, or designee, the

Board’s functions under Public Contract Code Sections 4107 and 4110.

(10) DECLARE that, should the award of the contract to Sea Pac, Otto, and/or Mark Scott be invalidated for any

reason, the Board would not in any event have awarded the contract to any other bidder, but instead would have

exercised its discretion to reject the bids received.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Job orders under the job order contracts will only be issued when there is an approved project and funding. The

contract value can range from a minimum of $25,000 to a maximum of $2,000,000.

BACKGROUND:

On September 15, 2015, the Board of Supervisors authorized the Public Works Director, or designee, to solicit bids

for job order contracts for repair, remodeling, and other repetitive work, and bring to the board recommendations to

award three contracts. On September 17, 2015, and September 19, 2015 bids were invited by the Public Works

Director. On October 20, 2015, the Public Works Director received bids for the job order contracts. The scope of

work for the work performed under the job order contracts will be determined by individual job orders using the

Construction Task Catalog. The three lowest responsive bidders are being recommended for contract award.

The contracts are being awarded based on the lowest Award Criteria Figure (ACF) that is calculated by each bidder

using the award criteria figure formula percentages required by each job order using adjustment factors called out in

the bidding documents.

Bid documents for Job Order Contracts 001, 002, and 003, including plans and specifications for typical work, were

prepared for the Public Works Department by County’s job order contracting consultant, The Gordian Group, Inc.

The general prevailing wage rates are on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and will be the minimum

rates paid on the projects covered by the annual Job Order Contracts.

Bids for Job Order Contracts 001, 002, and 003 were received and opened by the Public Works Department on

October 20, 2015, and the bid results are as follows:

BIDDER
AWARD CRITERIA

FIGURE

Sea Pac Engineering, Inc., Los Angeles 1.0269

John F. Otto, Inc., Sacramento 1.0795

Mark Scott Construction, Inc., Pleasant Hill 1.0878

Everlast Builders, Inc., Canyon Country 1.129

CWS Construction Group, Inc., Novato 1.1815

Vila Construction Co., Inc., Richmond 1.2078

Staples Construction, Ventura 1.2590

Southwest Construction & Property

Management, San Bruno 1.3885



Pacific Mountain Contractors of CA,

Concord
2.3661

Staff has determined that the three lowest bids received by Sea Pac, Otto, and Mark Scott are responsive. The Public

Works Director recommends the Board award the job order contracts for this project to Sea Pac, Otto, and Mark Scott

for a job orders under the job order contracts in amounts not less than $25,000 nor more than $2,000,000.

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements will be addressed on a project-by-project basis as job

orders occur. Each of the job order contractors will perform outreach required under the County’s Outreach Program

for the work to be performed under each job order in excess of $175,000.

On March 31, 2015, the Public Works Department participated in a County Building Infrastructure Workshop before

the Board. At that time, Capital Projects and Facilities Maintenance staff were reviewing the recommended priority

projects from the 2014 assessment of 81 buildings at 48 sites to present the list of projects to be funded with Facilities

Life-Cycle Investment Program (FLIP). On May 12, 2015, the Board approved the FLIP project list for the Fiscal

Year 2015/2016.

In order to be efficient in delivering projects, the County will need to employ a variety of project delivery methods.

One such method is Public Contract Code Section 20128.5, which authorizes counties to award one or more

individual annual contracts for repair, remodeling, or other repetitive work to be done according to unit prices. Once

an annual contract is awarded, individual projects are then done through written job orders performed by the job

order contractor at the unit prices bid for the annual contract. Such Job Order Contracting (JOC) is a project delivery

tool that has been proven to reduce costs, save time, and increase productivity.

The Board of Supervisors had previously approved the use of annual JOC contracts in 2002. From 2002 to 2010, the

County successfully utilized JOC as a responsive contracting technique for the accomplishment of maintenance,

repair, and remodeling projects totaling more than $15 million.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If JOC bid solicitation is not approved and authorized, the County will not have the resources to complete deferred

maintenance projects as described in the FLIP report and other County construction projects involving repair,

remodeling, and other repetitive work.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, to execute, on behalf of the Public Works Director,

a purchase order with Enterprise Rent-A-Car in an amount not to exceed $200,000.00, for car and light truck rentals,

for the period of November 1, 2015 through October 31, 2016, Countywide. (100% Department User Fees) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Department User Fees

BACKGROUND: 

Public Works Fleet Services is responsible for county wide vehicle rentals. There are various reasons for requiring

vehicle rentals, most recently when the Library required several bobtail type box trucks for long periods of time. The

District Attorney recently hired several new investigators and needed vehicles for them while new cars were on order

through Fleet Services. The Elections office needed a large number of rental units for the November election last

year. Fleet Services is requesting a one year purchase order for vehicle rentals.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Stan Burton, (925)

313-7077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 40

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE a purchase order with Enterprise Rent-A-Car



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, renting cars and light trucks through Enterprise Rent-A-Car will discontinue.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute term extensions on the following

two documents, authorizing Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) to replace high pressure sodium vapor lights with light

emitting diode (LED) lights on County-owned street lights:

(1) PG&E Product and Services Agreement from March 30, 2016 to July 15, 2017, Countywide. (All Districts)

(2) PG&E Proposal Number 2 from January 29, 2015 to July 15, 2017, with no change to the payment limit of

$450,000, Countywide. (All Districts)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% County Service Area L-100 Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

Public Works-Special Districts manages the street light program countywide, assuring the continuity of repairs and

ongoing operations. On March 30, 2011, the County entered into a five-year PG&E Products and Services 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  S. Cohen, Special Districts

925-313-2160

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: B. Balbas, Administration ,   W. Lai, Engineering Services Division Manager,   J. Chen, Special Districts,   J. Duffy, Special Districts ,   M. McAfee, Special

Districts,   C. Duenas, Finance,   J. Abraham, Facilities,   M. Ward, PG&E   

C. 41

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Extend terms of (1) PG&E Product and Services Agreement and (2) PG&E Proposal No. 2 to upgrade County-owned

street lights, Countywide.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Agreement (Attachment 3) for energy-efficient lighting improvements to County street lights, expiring in March

of 2016. This agreement was part of the County’s $3.57 million Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block

Grant. A successful pilot project was performed in 2011 to install 58 light emitting diode (LED) lights in two

locations under PG&E Proposal Number 1 (Attachment 4). PG&E Proposal Number 2 (Attachment 5), was

approved by the Board on November 4, 2014, for the installation of the LED lights on the remaining

County-owned street lights. This is a request to extend the duration of the work to cover the expected time needed

for the project.

Extending the terms of the PG&E Products and Services Agreement and PG&E Proposal Number 2 will allow

time to complete the scope of work for conversion of 100% of the County-owned street lights. The inventory of

street lights had to be completed before actual field installations could begin. The inventory required

reconciliation of PG&E and County data. After completing the inventory, PG&E began the street light

installations which are going smoothly. Extending the terms of the PG&E Products and Services Agreement and

PG&E Proposal Number 2 will provide time for the installation of the lights in the entire County and completion

of the remaining scope of work under the Agreement.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without Board approval, the conversion of the County-owned street lights to LEDs would not be able to be

funded.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - PG&E Amendment Number 1 to PG&E Products and Services Agreement No.

SLT-032 (Counsel Edits) 

Attachment 2 - PG&E Proposal 2 Amendment Number 1 (Counsel Edits) 

Attachment 3 - PG&E Products and Services Agreement No. SLT-032 

Attachment 4 - PG&E Proposal No. 1 

Attachment 5 - PG&E Proposal No. 2 



Page 1 of 1                                                                                                                                      _______   _______ initials  
 

 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO PG&E PRODUCTS AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 

NO. SLT-032 BETWEEN PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

AND CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
 
This Amendment No. 1 to the PG&E Products and Services Agreement (“First Amendment”) is entered 

into as of this day of 2015 between Pacific Gas and Electric Company (“PG&E”) and 

Contra Costa County (“Customer”), each being referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as 

the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, PG&E and Customer entered into the PG&E Products and Services Agreement, dated March 

30, 2011 ("Agreement") for the provision of streetlight replacement services by PG&E; and 
 
WHEREAS, PG&E and Customer desire to amend the Agreement to extend the term. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual obligations and covenants 

contained in this First Amendment, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and legal 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, PG&E and Customer hereby amend the Agreement as 

follows: 

 
1. In Section 10 of the Agreement  (Term and Termination), the first sentence is deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following:  

 

“The term of this Agreement is from the Effective Date until July 15, 2017, unless sooner 

terminated by Customer or PG&E as permitted by this Section 10.” 

 
2. This First Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so 

executed and delivered, shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts taken together shall 

constitute only one instrument. 

 

3. Except as expressly modified by the terms of this First Amendment, all other terms and 

conditions of the Agreement remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this First Amendment to be executed by their 

duly authorized representatives as of the date set forth above. 

 
 

CUSTOMER PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 
 

Signature:    Signature:    

 

Print Name: 
 

   
 

Print Name: 
 

   

 

Title: 
 

   
 

Title: 
 

   

 

Date: 
 

   
 

Date: 
 

   

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 1 _______   _______ initials   

 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO PG&E PROPSAL NUMBER 2 BETWEEN PACIFIC 

GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY AND CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
 

This Amendment No. 1 to Proposal Number 2 (“First Amendment”) is entered into as of this         day of 
2015 between Pacific Gas and Electric Company (“PG&E”) and Contra Costa County 

(“Customer”), each being referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, PG&E and Customer entered into the PG&E Products and Services Agreement, dated March 

30, 2011 (“Agreement”) for the provision of streetlight replacement services by PG&E; and 

 

WHEREAS, PG&E and Customer entered into Proposal Number 2, dated November 7, 2014 ("Proposal No. 

2"), which is subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, PG&E and Customer desire to amend Proposal No. 2 to extend the term. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual obligations and covenants 

contained in this First Amendment, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and legal 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, PG&E and Customer hereby amend Proposal No. 2 as 

follows: 

 
1. In the Description of Services section of the Agreement, the second paragraph which reads: 

“Estimated minimum number of days to complete scope of work: 45 days” is deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following:  

 

“Estimated minimum number of days to complete scope of work: 2 years and 7 months.” 

 
2. This First Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so 

executed and delivered, shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts taken together shall 

constitute only one instrument. 

 

3. E xcept as expressly modified by the terms of this First Amendment, all other terms and 

conditions of Proposal No. 2 remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this First Amendment to be executed by their 

duly authorized representatives as of the date set forth above. 

 
CUSTOMER PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

 

Signature:    Signature:    

 

Print Name: 
 

   
 

Print Name: 
 

   

 

Title: 
 

   
 

Title: 
 

   

 

Date: 
 

   
 

Date: 
 

   

 
 

 





































































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a contract with Moose Boats, Inc., in an

amount not to exceed $246,530, for repairs to a Moose Boat Patrol Vessel, Countywide. (100% 2014 Port Security

Grant Program Funds)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Work performed under this purchase order is funded 100% by the 2014 Port Security Grant Program. 

BACKGROUND: 

A Moose Boat patrol vessel operated by the Sheriff's Marine Patrol is in need of a complete overhaul. The vessel has

been towed to Moose Boat, Inc., the original manufacturer of the vessel. Moose Boat, Inc. has given Marine Patrol a

quote for repairs necessary to put this unit back in service. These repairs are required to maintain the seaworthiness

and operational effectiveness of the vessel. The repair work directly supports marine and ground operations, thus

enhancing maritime law enforcement, EMS, fire, military, and industry personnel to respond, detect, prevent, operate,

mitigate, and recover from any 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Stan Burton, (925)

313-7077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 42

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE a contract with Moose Boats Inc.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

and all of the Transportation Security Incidents listed in the Northern California Bay Area Maritime Security Plan.

Marine Patrol requests that Moose Boat, Inc., be considered as the sole source vendor for the repair work, as they are

knowledgeable and competent in all aspects of the vessel and its systems. The estimate of $246,530 is the cost if

determined that extensive repairs are needed. If the transmission and jet propulsion systems are found to be

repairable, the cost will be reduced up to $50k. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to perform the necessary repairs will preclude the Office of the Sheriff from fielding this maritime patrol

asset, as it is currently not seaworthy and, as such, is out of service. 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Assistant Director of Human Resources, or designee, to execute a contract,

including amended indemnification language, with Benefit Coordinators Corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$75,000 to assist the County in complying with the reporting and eligibility requirements of the Affordable Care Act

for the period September 1, 2015 through September 2, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The cost of this contract will be recovered through the Benefits Administration Fee. 

BACKGROUND: 

Starting in 2016, the Affordable Care Act (ACA) will require that the County file information returns with the

Internal Revenue Service and to provide statements to employees about the health insurance coverage offered by

Contra Costa County. Benefit Coordinators Corporation will assist the Human Resources - Benefits division to

comply with the ACA requirements.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lisa Lopez, Assistant Director of

Human Resources, 335-1779

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Llisa Lopez,   Ann Elliott, Employee Benefits Manager,   Laura Strobel, Senior Deputy County Administrator,   Nancy Zandonella, HR Project Manager   

C. 43

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Ito, Human Resources Consultant

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract with Benefit Coordinators Corporation



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the contract is not approved and the County does not file timely and accurate information, we may be liable for

significant fines imposed by the federal government. 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#74-419-5 with William E. Berlingieri, M.D., an individual, in an amount not to exceed $313,600, to provide

outpatient psychiatric services in West County, for the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

For a number of years the County has contracted with Medical, Dental and Mental Health Specialists to provide

specialized professional services that are not otherwise available. On January 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors

approved Contract #74-419-4 with William E. Berlingieri, M.D, for the period from January 1, 2015 through

December 31, 2015, for the provision of outpatient psychiatric services to mentally ill adults in West County.

Approval of Contract #74-419-5 will allow Contractor to continue providing outpatient psychiatric services through

December 31, 2015. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

925-957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 44

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #74-419-5 with William E. Berlingieri, M.D.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients requiring outpatient psychiatric services in West County will not have access

to Contractor’s services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

Amendment Agreement #26-294-36 with Staff Care, Inc., a corporation, effective November 1, 2015, to amend

Contract #26-294-35, to increase the payment limit by $172,000, from $1,300,000 to a new payment limit of

$1,472,000, with no change in the original term of January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This amendment is funded 100% Hospital Enterprise Fund I. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On March 31, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-294-35 with Staff Care, Inc. for the provision

of locum tenens temporary physician services at Contra Costa Regional Medical and Contra Costa Health Centers

(CCRMC), for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. At the time of negotiations, the payment

limit was based on target levels of utilization. However, the utilization during the term of the agreement was higher

than originally anticipated in order to provide coverage for critical roles primarily in the emergency, psychiatry and

radiology departments. Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #26-294-36 will allow the Contractor to

provide additional hours of locum tenens temporary physician services through December 31, 2015. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Samir Shah, M.D.,

925-370-5525

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   N Rios   

C. 45

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment #26-294-36 with Staff Care, Inc. 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, Contractor will not be reimbursed for additional hours of locum tenens temporary

physician services rendered.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #74-399-5 with Contra Costa Interfaith Transitional Housing, Inc., a non-profit corporation, in an amount

not to exceed $146,000, to provide community-based mental health services for Seriously Emotionally Disturbed

(SED) youth, for the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. This Contract includes a six-month automatic

extension through December 31, 2016, in an amount not to exceed $73,000.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% Federal Financial Participation; 50% Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing community-based mental health services,

including individual, group and family therapy; case management; and crisis intervention services for 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: E Suisala,   N Rios   

C. 46

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #74-399-5 with Contra Costa Interfaith Transitional Housing, Inc.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

SED youth and their families at the Garden Park Apartments.

On October 7, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #74-399-4 with Contra Costa Interfaith

Transitional Housing, Inc., for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, which included a six-month

automatic extension through December 31, 2015, for the provision of community-based mental health services.

Approval of Novation Contract #74-399-5 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, emotionally disturbed youth will have reduced access to the mental health services

provided by Contractor, including individual, group and family therapy; case management; and crisis intervention

services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent on behalf, of the Health Services Department, to execute a Purchase

Order with Abbott Laboratories, Inc., in the amount of $120,000 to purchase reagents and supplies needed for the

IStat Handheld Analyzer for the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center (CCRMC) and the Contra Costa Health

Centers for the period September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in the Hospital Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Abbott Laboratories Inc. has been CCRMC’s primary supplier for single use cartridges for the lactic acid test. The

integrated Nurses Leadership Program Cohort on Sepsis Mortality Reduction Project has requested a 10 minute

turn-around time for lactic acid results ordered on patients with possible sepsis. The IStat Analyzer with the single

use cartridge can perform testing in 3 minutes. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this Purchase Order is not approved, the CCRMC Clinical Laboratory will not be able to result the lactic acid test in

a timely manner, which could potentially affect patient care. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Anna Roth,

370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Tasha Scott,   N Rios   

C. 47

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Blanket Purchase Order for Abbott Laboratories Inc.



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24-728-85 with Rubicon Programs Incorporated, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$1,345,200, to provide comprehensive case management services to adults suffering from serious mental illness, for

the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 48% Federal Medi-Cal; 52% Mental Health Realignment (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing Mental Health Services Act Community

Services and Support Program, including outpatient mental health services, case management, crisis intervention,

and other mental health services to eligible adult clients in West Contra Costa County. On February 10, 2015, the

Board of Supervisors approved Contract #24-728-84 with Rubicon Programs Incorporated, for the provision of

mental health program services for adults in West Contra Costa County, for the period from July 1, 2014 through

June 30, 2015, with a six month automatic extension through December 31, 2015. Approval of Novation 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: A Floyd ,   N Rios   

C. 48

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24-728-85 with Rubicon Programs Incorporated 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Contract #24-728-85, replaces the six month automatic extension under the prior contract and will allow the

Contractor to provide comprehensive case management services, through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, County’s clients in West Contra Costa County will not receive the mental health

service they need from this Contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#27-603-13 with Louro Consulting Services, Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $163,000, to provide

consultation with regard to Health Plan committees, member benefits, and member services for the period from

January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Health Plan Enterprise Fund II. (Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On January 6, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #27-603-12 with Louro Consulting Services, Inc.,

for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 for the provision of consultation services with

regard to Health Plan committees, member benefits and member services.

Approval of Contract #27-603-13 will allow Contractor to continue providing services through December 31, 2016.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary,

313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Tasha Scott,   N Rios   

C. 49

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #27-603-13 with Louro Consulting Services, Inc. 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the Health Plan will not receive Contractor’s historical perspective and technical

expertise on issues related to Health Plan member benefits and services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#72-038-1 with Nurse-Family Partnership, a Non-Profit Corporation, in an amount not to exceed $100,000, for home

visits for first time mothers in Contra Costa County, for the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 21% by the California Department of Public Health Grant and 79% County Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The California Department of Public Health, Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (CDPH/MCAH) Division,

California Home Visiting Program has awarded funding to the County to implement the Nurse-Family Partnership

(NFP) within at-risk communities. The Nurse-Family Partnership Project represents a highly refined approach to the

long-established service strategy of home visiting. Starting at or before the 28th week of pregnancy, clients are

visited at home, one-on-one with a trained nurse and visits continue throughout the pregnancy and the first two years

of the child’s life. 

On June 26, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #72-038 with Nurse-Family Partnership to implement

the Nurse-Family Partnership Program in Contra Costa County, through June 30, 2015.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Dan Peddycord,

313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   N Rios   

C. 50

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #72-038-1 with Nurse-Family Partnership



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Approval of Contract #72-038-1 will allow Contractor to continue the Nurse-Family Partnership Program to provide

home visits for first time mothers in Contra Costa County, through June 30, 2019. Board of Supervisors approval is

required because of deviation from the County’s Standard Form Contact.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, Contra Costa County first time mothers would not receive the services of the

Nurse-Family Partnership Program.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Families that are Safe, Stable,

and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide a High Quality of Life for Children and Families.”

Expected program outcomes include better pregnancy outcomes, improve the children’s health and development and

help families become economically self-sufficient by working with parents to develop a vision of their own future,

plan future pregnancies, continue their education, and find jobs.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Interagency

Agreement #74–191–11 with West Contra Costa Unified School District, a government agency, in an amount not to

exceed $562,000, to provide wraparound services to Severely Emotionally Disturbed (SED) children for the period

from September 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. This Interagency Agreement includes a six-month automatic

extension through December 31, 2016, in an amount not to exceed $281,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 49% by Federal Financial Participation, 50% by Mental Health Realignment and 1% West

Contra Costa Unified School District. 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing child-family team facilitators and other

wraparound services to families of children with serious emotional and behavioral disturbances; facilitates

multi-agency collaborative service delivery; and minimizes the need for crisis services and involvement with the

Juvenile Justice System. Under Interagency Agreement #74-191-11, Contractor will provide wraparound services to

SED children at West Contra Costa Unified School District for the period from September 1, 2015 through June 30,

2016, which includes a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

925-957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 51

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Interagency Agreement #74–191–11 with West Contra Costa Unified School District



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, there will be fewer wraparound services available to families of children with serious

emotional and behavioral disturbances in West Contra Costa County, which may result in the need for crisis services

and involvement with the juvenile justice system.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#24–794–9(7) with BHC Sierra Vista Hospital, Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $250,000, to provide

inpatient psychiatric hospital services to residents of Contra Costa County for the period from July 1, 2015 through

June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

Assembly Bill (AB) 757, (Chapter 633, Statutes of 1994), authorized the transfer of state funding for

Fee-For-Service/Medi-Cal (FFS/MC) acute psychiatric inpatient hospital services from the Department of Health

Care Services to counties that chose to participate in this program. On September 9, 2014, the Board of Supervisors

approved Contract #24–794–9(6) with BHC Sierra Vista Hospital, Inc., for the period from July 1, 2014 through June

30, 2015 for the provision of inpatient psychiatric hospital services to residents of Contra Costa County. Approval of

Contract #24-794-9(7) will allow the Contractor to continue to provide services through June 30, 2016, including

mutual indemnification for any claims arising out of the performance of this contract. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon (925)

957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   N Rios   

C. 52

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #24–794–9 (7) with BHC Sierra Vista Hospital, Inc.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, County’s mental health clients will not receive needed inpatient psychiatric services

from Contractor’s facility.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcome: “Communities that are Safe and

Provide a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include a decrease in the

need for inpatient care and placement at a lower level of care.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#77-001 with La Clinica De La Raza, Inc. a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed $403,200, to provide

primary care medical services for the Contra Costa CARES Program, for the period from November 1, 2015 through

April 30, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded by 50% General County Funds and 50% from a combined contribution of local hospital

entities (Kaiser Permanente, John Muir Health and Sutter Delta Medical Center) for the Contra Costa CARES

Program. 

BACKGROUND: 

The goal of the Contra Costa CARES Program is to provide comprehensive primary health care coverage and

medical homes to low income, uninsured adults 19 years of age or older residing in Contra Costa County who are

ineligible for full-scope Medical or covered California and whose household gross income does not exceed 138% of

the Federal Poverty Level. The program anticipates enrolling up to 3,000 individuals. Specialty care, dental, vision,

emergency care and hospitalization are not covered benefits of the program.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary, (925)

313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Tasha Scott,   N Rios   

C. 53

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #77-001 with La Clinica De La Raza, Inc.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Under Contract #77-001, the Contractor will provide primary medical care services to the Contra Costa CARES

Program, through April 30, 2017.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, low income, uninsured adults would not have access to primary care services in

Contra Costa County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#77-002 with Lifelong Medical Care, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed $403,200, to provide

primary care medical services for the Contra Costa CARES Program, for the period from November 1, 2015 through

April 30, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded by 50% General County Funds and 50% from a combined contribution of local hospital

entities (Kaiser Permanente, John Muir Health and Sutter Delta Medical Center) for the Contra Costa CARES

Program.

BACKGROUND: 

The goal of the Contra Costa CARES Program is to provide comprehensive primary health care coverage and

medical homes to low income, uninsured adults 19 years of age or older residing in Contra Costa County who are

ineligible for full-scope Medical or covered California and whose household gross income does not exceed 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary, (925)

313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: T Scott,   N Rios   

C. 54

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #77-002 with Lifelong Medical Care



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

138% of the Federal Poverty Level. The program anticipates enrolling up to 3,000 individuals. Specialty care, dental,

vision, emergency care and hospitalization are not covered benefits of the program.

Under Contract #77-002, the Contractor will provide primary medical care services to the Contra Costa Cares

Program, through April 30, 2017.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, low income, uninsured adults would not have access to primary care services in

Contra Costa County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with

Sirius Computer Solutions, Inc., to extend the termination date from October 31, 2015 to October 31, 2016, and

increase the payment limit by $100,000 to a new payment limit of $250,000 for continued IBM System Z Mainframe

Operating System services as needed by the Department of Information Technology. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

As budgeted under Fiscal Year 2015/2016, Org 1060 

BACKGROUND: 

The County uses the IBM System Z mainframe operating system on its mainframe servers. During the term of the

proposed contract extension, Sirius Computer Solutions, Inc., will continue to work with County employees, under

the direction of the Chief Information Officer of the Department of Information Technology, to provide (on an

as-needed basis) IBM System Z mainframe operating system support including, without limitation, general

trouble-shooting assistance, application support, and system software administration.

The contract includes provisions requiring the contractor to indemnify the County for any claims for infringement of

a third party's intellectual property rights to the extent the infringement claims are based on Contractor's performance

of support services under the contract.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ed Woo

925-383-2688

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 55

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Ed Woo, Chief Information Officer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract Extension with Sirius Computer Solutions for IBM System Z Mainframe Operating System services



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

In accordance with Administrative Bulletin 605.3, service contracts exceeding $100,000 require the approval of the

Board of Supervisors.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Mainframe production job processing can impact the Courts Systems, Law and Justice Systems, Property Tax

System, and the Finance System. The County's business productivity and finance systems could be negatively

impacted if the Mainframe malfunctioned and we were unable to correct the issue; the implications could be severe.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with

CherryRoad Technologies, Inc., effective November 1, 2015, to extend the term through December 31, 2016 and

increase the payment limit by $4,334,950 to a new payment limit of $5,684,950 to provide additional services to

upgrade County’s PeopleSoft software system.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The $5,684,950 is budgeted under Org #1695 FY 2014-2015, FY 2015-2016, and FY 2016-2017, supported through

countywide inter-departmental charges to all departments. 

BACKGROUND: 

The PeopleSoft Human Capital Management (HCM) system is currently used to process the county’s payroll, in

addition to maintaining Human Resources and Employee Benefits records. The original contract provided for

Contractor to perform a fit/gap analysis, infrastructure assessment, and initial upgrade tasks to upgrade PeopleSoft

HCM version 8.8 to version 9.2, at a cost up to $1,200,000.

The County and contractor first amended the contract in September 2015 to provide that the Contractor would host

nine application test environments.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Sheryl Webster

925-313-1281

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 56

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Ed Woo, Chief Information Officer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract Amendment with CherryRoad Technologies Inc for a Fit/Gap Analysis and Software Upgrade



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

The proposed second amendment is for Contractor to perform the PeopleSoft HCM upgrade and implement

additional functionality for certain HCM modules. The purpose of the HCM upgrade is so the County can: (1) remain

on a supported version of HCM; (2) reduce existing HCM customizations to the extent possible; (3) reduce existing

reports and queries to the extent possible; (4) perform technical upgrades of remaining customizations; and (5)

evaluate and implement new functionality.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to approve the contract amendment will result in an inability to update the County's current version of its

payroll system, which will increase the risk that the County will be unable to process employee Payroll, Human

Resources and Employee Benefits timely and accurately.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on behalf of the Chief Information

Officer, a purchase order amendment with R-Computer to increase the payment limit by $150,000 to a new payment

limit of $370,000, for the procurement of minor computer equipment and software. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$150,000 in FY 2015/16 (100% User Fees); the cost is charged to the ordering department through DoIT's billing

process. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Department of Information Technology needs to be able to readily purchase small computer equipment and

software in order to complete work order requests and other jobs submitted by its customers. The customers are other

County departments, as well out various outside agencies. We need an additional $150,000 to continue to pay the

invoices related to these purchases. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this purchase order amendment is not approved, the purchase of minor computer equipment and software on behalf

of our customers will be negatively impacted. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ed Woo,

925-415-9997

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 57

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Ed Woo, Chief Information Officer

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Purchase Order Amendment with R-Computer



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the Sheriff-Coroner, a purchase order

with LC Action in an amount not to exceed $200,000 to provide general and specialized police equipment for the

period November 1, 2015 through October 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$200.000. 100% County General Fund; Budgeted in FY 2015/16. 

BACKGROUND: 

LC Action is a major, local police supply retailer who provides products that meet industry standards for current law

enforcement and military units. They carry a varied inventory of general and specialized police equipment, which is

fundamental for the day-to-day operation of the Office of the Sheriff personnel, in both field and custody settings.

Furthermore, this vendor offers certified reliability and warranty options, as well as notable cost-to-service ratios on

equipment they sell. This vendor has been in business since 1988.

The vendor is used routinely by other law enforcement agencies to 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   11/10/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Liz Arbuckle,

925-335-1529

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    November  10, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Liz Arbuckle,   Heike Anderson,   Tim Ewell   

C. 58

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: November  10, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Purchase Order - LC Action Police Supply



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

fulfill their equipment needs. In some cases, LC Action is one of only a few local suppliers who have the ability to

supply an agency the size of the Office of the Sheriff with the necessary equipment needed to provide basic police

functions in the County. LC Action is based in San Jose, California, which further streamlines the selection,

purchasing and maintenance of the equipment.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Sheriff's Office would not have Board authorization to enter into the purchase order with LC Action.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.


	Agenda
	D.2_Prohibit commercial vehicles exceeding a max. gross weight of 14,000 pounds at all times on Camino Diablo (Road No. 7941), Byron area.  (District III)
	D.2_ATT_Attachment B
	D.3_Prohibit commercial vehicles exceeding a max. gross weight of 14,000 pounds at all times on Holway Drive (Road No. 8845A), Byron area. (District III)
	D.3_ATT_Attachment B
	D.4_FINDINGS OF THE SHERIFF RECRUITMENT and RETENTION WORKING GROUP
	D.4_ATT_Deputy Sheriff Recruitment_Retention Workgroup Report_11_10_15
	D.4_ATT_Powerpoint_Deputy Sheriff Recruitment_Retention Workgroup Key Findings_11_10_15
	D.5_Resolution No. 2015_371 - Physician and Dentists Organization of Contra Costa (PDOCC) Side Letter Fall Back Pay For Dentists
	D.5_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_371
	D.6_Government Code 7507 Compliance - Retirement Benefits - Safety Units of Probation Management, Fire Management, and AFSCME 512
	D.6_ATT_7507 Report for Probation Management dated October 12, 2015
	D.6_ATT_7507 Report for Fire Management dated October 12, 2015
	D.6_ATT_7507 Report for AFSCME 512 Safety dated October 12, 2015
	C.  1_Advertise the 2016 On-Call Contract(s) for Various Road and Flood Control Maintenance Work
	C.  2_Advertise the 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract(s) for Various Road and Flood Control Maintenance Work
	C.  3_Advertise the 2016 On-Call Trucking Services Contract for Aggregate Stockpiling and Transportation
	C.  4_Establish speed limit of 25 miles per hour on Colusa Avenue (Road 1452), Kensington area
	C.  4_ATT_traffic reso 4434
	C.  5_Prohibit Parking on a portion of Pacheco Boulevard ( Road No. 3951C), Martinez area
	C.  5_ATT_Traffic Reso 4435
	C.  6_Ratifying prior decision to fully close a portion of the Buskirk Ave. northbound off-ramp at Oak Rd., October 30, 2015, 9_00 a.m. _ 3_00 p.m.
	C.  6_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_428
	C.  7_Fully close a portion of Jackson Way and northbound lanes of Danville Blvd. between Orchard Ln. _ Jackson Wy Nov. 22, 2015 for tree lighting, Alamo area
	C.  7_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_419
	C.  8_Fully close a portion of Pomona Street between Alexander Street and Rolph Avenue, on November 11, 2015, 9_30 a.m. - 11_30 a.m., Crockett area.
	C.  8_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_427
	C.  9_Accepting Completion of Improvements for minor subdivision MS04-00012, Bay Point area.
	C.  9_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_423
	C. 10_APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute a hangar rental agreement with Buchanan Field Airport Hangar tenant
	C. 10_ATT_Hangar Rental Agreement
	C. 11_West Antioch Creek Channel Improvements Project - Hall andLoads
	C. 12_APPROVE the conveyance of a Grant of Easement to PGandE for utility purposes.
	C. 13_Contract Amendment with Environmental Science Associates, for Lower Walnut Creek Restoration Project, Martinez area. Project No. 7520-6B8285
	C. 14_APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Auditor-Controller to issue a payment of $1,500 to the Community Foundation of Alamo for the holiday lights, Alamo area.
	C. 15_claims
	C.16_Honoring Contra Costa County Veterans on Veterans Day
	C.17_Adopt Resolution Recognizing All Those Involved in the Disaster Medical Mutual Aid response during the Valley Fire and Aftermath
	C.17_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_410
	C.18_Resolution Recognizing Richard O'Connor
	C.18_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_429
	C. 19_Resolution Recognizing Sentinels of Freedom
	C. 19_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_432
	C. 20_ADOPT ORDINANCE 2015-21 to Retitle Assistant County Recorder-Exempt to Assistant County Clerk-Recorder-Exempt
	C. 20_ATT_Ordinance No. 2015-21
	C. 21_Accept the Resignation of Simone Gikanga from the Family and Children's Trust Committee
	C. 22_Reappointmentsto the Advisory Council on Aging
	C. 22_ATT_Kee
	C. 22_ATT_Katzman
	C. 22_ATT_Clark
	C. 23_RESCIND RESIGNATION FROM THE FIRST 5 CONTRA COSTA CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION
	C. 24_Establish class of Recycle and Surplus Center Supervisor and Reclassify Lead Materials Technician and Incumbent
	C. 24_ATT_P300 21659
	C. 25_Add one (1) Social Service Program Analyst for Workforce Services Bureau of EHSD
	C. 25_ATT_P300 No. 21754 EHSD
	C. 26_Social Services Program Analyst
	C. 26_ATT_P300 No. 21755 EHSD
	C. 27_Cancel One (1) Library Assistant-Journey Level Position and Increase the Hours of One (1) Library Assistant-Journey Level Position
	C. 27_ATT_P300 21764 Cxl PT Library Asst and Inc Hours of Lib Asst to full time
	C. 28_Establish the classification of Probation Chief of Administrative Services and reclassify one  Administrave Services Officer position
	C. 28_ATT_P300 No. 21767
	C. 29_Add seven positions in the Health Services Department
	C. 29_ATT_P300 No. 21780 HSD
	C. 30_171 Sand Creek Road, Units A through G, Brentwood - lease amendment for HSD.
	C. 31_Clarification of Payment Increase for August 18, 2015, Board Order Item _C.55 with the Department of Health Care Services 
	C. 32_Amendment to Clerk-Recorder-Registrar HAVA Contract with the Secretary of State
	C. 32_ATT_HAVA contract
	C. 33_Interagency Agreement _28-697-13 with Antioch Unified School District
	C. 34_Grant Award _29-544-2 with United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
	C. 35_Grant Agreement _29-540-2 from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
	C. 36_2015 Food Services Agreement amendment with the Catholic Council for the Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of Stockton
	C. 36_ATT_Food Service Agreement
	C. 37_Law Enforcement Services for Contra Costa County Housing Authority 
	C. 38_Contract _72-020-3 with Pittsburg Unified School District
	C. 39_AWARD Annual Job Order Contracts 001, 002, and 003 to Sea Pac Engineering, John F. Otto, Inc., and Mark Scott Construction (WW0862) 
	C. 40_APPROVE a purchase order with Enterprise Rent-A-Car
	C. 41_Extend terms of (1) PGandE Product and Services Agreement and (2) PG_E Proposal No. 2 to upgrade County-owned street lights, Countywide.
	C. 41_ATT_Attachment 1 - PGandE Amendment Number 1 to PG_E Products and Services Agreement No. SLT-032 (Counsel Edits)
	C. 41_ATT_Attachment 2 - PGandE Proposal 2 Amendment Number 1 (Counsel Edits)
	C. 41_ATT_Attachment 4 - PGandE Proposal No. 1
	C. 41_ATT_Attachment 5 - PGandE Proposal No. 2
	C. 42_APPROVE a contract with Moose Boats Inc.
	C. 43_Contract with Benefit Coordinators Corporation
	C. 44_Contract _74-419-5 with William E. Berlingieri, M.D.
	C. 45_Amendment _26-294-36 with Staff Care, Inc. 
	C. 46_Novation Contract _74-399-5 with Contra Costa Interfaith Transitional Housing, Inc.
	C. 47_Blanket Purchase Order for Abbott Laboratories Inc.
	C. 48_Novation Contract _24-728-85 with Rubicon Programs Incorporated  
	C. 49_Contract _27-603-13 with Louro Consulting Services, Inc. 
	C. 50_Contract _72-038-1 with Nurse-Family Partnership
	C. 51_Interagency Agreement _74_191_11 with West Contra Costa Unified School District
	C. 52_Contract _24_794_9 (7) with BHC Sierra Vista Hospital, Inc.
	C. 53_Contract _77-001 with La Clinica De La Raza, Inc.
	C. 54_Contract _77-002 with Lifelong Medical Care
	C. 55_Contract Extension with Sirius Computer Solutions for IBM System Z Mainframe Operating System services
	C. 56_Contract Amendment with CherryRoad Technologies Inc for a Fit_Gap Analysis and Software Upgrade
	C. 57_Purchase Order Amendment with R-Computer
	C. 58_Purchase Order - LC Action Police Supply

